EDGAROnline

CELSION CORP

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 03/18/13 for the Period Ending 12/31/12

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

997 LENOX DRIVE

SUITE 100

LAWRENCEVILLE, NJ 08648

(609) 896-9100

0000749647

CLSN

2834 - Pharmaceutical Preparations
Biotechnology & Drugs

Healthcare

12/31

Powere d By ED‘GA;Rbn]ine

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2013, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
x] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-15911

CELSION CORPORATION

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaetr)

DELAWARE 52-1256615

(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Or ganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

997 LENOX DRIVE, SUITE 100
LAWRENCEVILLE, NJ 08648

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(609) 896-9100
Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

COMMON STOCK, PAR VALUE $.01 PER SHARE NASDAQ CAPITAL MARKET
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tiie Act:

None




Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40508#turities Act.  Yed No M
Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act. YesO No M

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant éF)filed all reports required to be filed by Sectk3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for ssiobtrter period that the Registrant was requirdieésuch reports) and (2) has been sul
to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es ¥ No [

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant hdwnited electronically and posted on its corporagdbsite, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaiule 405 of Regulation $8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grionths (c
for such shorter period that the Registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéiters pursuant to Item 405 of RegulationKSis not contained herein, and will not
contained, to the best of Registrantnowledge, in definitive proxy or information ®eents incorporated by reference in Part Il & forn
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-i

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-acelerated filer, or a smaller repor
company. See definition of “large accelerated fjléaccelerated filer” and “smaller reporting cormyd in Rule 12b2 of the Exchange A«
(Check one)

Large Accelerated Filer O Accelerated Filer 4}
Non-accelerated Filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting  Smaller Reporting Company O
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbeall company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the 8tes Exchange Act of 1934). Ydd
No M

As of June 29, 2012, the aggregate market valitheoEommon stock held by naffiliates of the Registrant was approximately $99,753
based on the closing sale price for the Regissazdimmon stock on that date as reported by the NiE D apital Market. For purposes
this calculation, shares of common stock held bgaiors and officers of the Registrant at June2P32 were excluded.
As of March 15, 2013, 50,832,933 shares of the Regit's common stock were issued and outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the Registrast'definitive Proxy Statement to be filed for its130Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporatgdeferenc

into Part Il hereof. Such Proxy Statement willfded with the Securities and Exchange Commissidthiw 120 days of the end of the fis
year covered by this Annual Report on Forr-K.




PART |
ITEM 1.

ITEM 1A.
ITEM 1B.
ITEM 2.
ITEM 3.
ITEM 4.

CELSION CORPORATION
FORM 10-K
TABLE OF CONTENTS

BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
OVERVIEW
THERMODOX® (DOXORUBICIN ENCAPSULATED IN HEAT-ACTIVATED LIPOSOME)
THERMODOX® IN RELATION TO PRIMARY LIVER CANCER
Liver Cancer Overview
Celsion’s Approach
Phase | Clinical Trial — Primary Liver Cancer
Phase Il Clinical Trial — Primary Liver Cancer @HEAT Study)
THERMODOX® IN RELATION TO CANCERS OTHER THAN PRIMAR LIVER CANCER
Recurrent Chest Wall Breast Cancer Overview
Celsion’s Approach
Breast Cancer Clinical Phase I/ll Trial — The DIGNIStudy
Colorectal Liver Metastases Overview
Celsion’s Approach
Phase Il Clinical Trial — (The ABLATE Study)
PRODUCT FEASIBILITY
BUSINESS STRATEGY
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES
FDA REGULATION
Research and Development
Post-Approval Requirements
Inspections
Recalls
Other FDA Regulations
PRODUCT LIABILITY AND INSURANCE
COMPETITION
LICENSES, PATENTS, TRADEMARKS AND REGULATORY EXCLUSITY
EMPLOYEES
COMPANY INFORMATION
AVAILABLE INFORMATION
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
RECENT EVENTS
RISK FACTORS
UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
PROPERTIES
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

© O 000 N~N~N~NO1LOO




PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Price for Our Common Stock
Performance Graph
Dividend Policy
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity @ensation Plans
Unregistered Shares of Equity Securities
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GNDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Overview
Significant Events
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Results Of Operations
Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resowsce
Contractual Obligations
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
PART IIl
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNAE
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANRMANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANIDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
1.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
3.EXHIBITS
SIGNATURES

CELSION CORPORATION
FORM 10-K
TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

29
29
30
30
30
30
30
31

32
32
32
36
36
38
41
41
41
42

42
42
43

44
44
44

44
44

45
45
45
45
51




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained in this AnmReggbort on Form 10-K are forward-looking and congstforwardiooking statements with
the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatiorfdR@ Act of 1995. In addition, from time to time may publish forwardeoking statemen
relating to such matters as anticipated financiatfprmance, business prospects, technological dewaetnts, product pipelines, clinical tri
and research and development activities, the adegoécapital reserves and anticipated operatingutes and cash expenditures, current
potential collaborations, strategic alternativesdanther aspects of our present and future busimggsations and similar matters that a
constitute such forwartboking statements. These statements involve kaadmunknown risks, uncertainties, and other factbes may caus
our or our industrys actual results, levels of activity, performanaeachievements to be materially different from &myre results, levels

activity, performance, or achievements expressetnptied by such forwartboking statements. Such factors include, amongrotiings
unforeseen changes in the course of research aneélg@ment activities and in clinical trials; poskibchanges in cost and timing
development and testing, possible changes in dagitacture, financial condition, future working miéal needs and other financial iter
changes in approaches to medical treatment; intotidm of new products by others; success or failfr@ur current or future collaboratic
arrangements, risks and uncertainties associatetth wossible acquisitions of other technologies.ets®r businesses; possible action:
customers, suppliers, strategic partners, potergtedtegic partners, competitors and regulatoryharities, as well as those listed underisk
Factors” below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on FA®AK. In some cases, you can identify forwiammking statements by terminolc
such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “believe, “could,” “intend,” “predict,” “may,” “sh ould,” “will” and words of simile
import regarding the Company’s expectations. Fomvioking statements are only predictions. Actualnéver results may differ material
Although we believe that our expectations are basedeasonable assumptions within the bounds ofkooivledge of our industry, busin
and operations, we cannot guarantee that actuallteswill not differ materially from our expectatis. In evaluating such forwaiddokinc
statements, you should specifically consider varitactors, including the risks outlined under “RiBRctors.” The discussion of risks a
uncertainties set forth in this Annual Report omiRdlOK is not necessarily a complete or exhaustiveolistll risks facing the Company at ¢
particular point in time. We operate in a highlynepetitive, highly regulated and rapidly changingzeonment and our business is in a stat
evolution. Therefore, it is likely that new riskdl wmerge, and that the nature and elements ddteng risks will change, over time. It is

possible for management to predict all such risitdes or changes therein, or to assess eitherigact of all such risk factors on our busir
or the extent to which any individual risk factopmbination of factors, or new or altered factamsay cause results to differ materially fr
those contained in any forward-looking statemeng. dhéclaim any obligation to revise or update aogwiarddooking statement that may
made from time to time by us or on our behalf.

Unless the context requires otherwise or unlessratise noted, all references in this Annual ReporfForm 10-K to “Celsion” “the
Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our” are to Celsion Corpaation.
Trademarks

The Celsion Corporation (“Celsion” or “the Compapyrand and product names, including but not lichite Celsion® or ThermoDox®
contained in this document are trademarks, regidtendemarks or service marks of Celsion Corpamdti the United States (U.S.) and cet
other countries. This document also contains rafse to trademarks and service marks of other coimpahat are the property of tt
respective owners.

OVERVIEW

Celsion is an oncology drug development companydged on the development of treatments for thodersuf with difficult to treat forms «
cancer. We are working to develop and commerciatimge efficient, effective, targeted chemotherajgeancology drugs based on
proprietary heat-activated liposomal technologye Fiomise of this drug technology is to maximizéicaty while minimizing sideeffect:
common to cancer treatments.

Our lead product ThermoDoxi® being evaluated in a Phase Il clinical trial fwimary liver cancer (the HEAT study), a Phaselihical trial
for colorectal liver metastasis (CRLM) and a Phd#selinical trial for recurrent chest wall breasareer. ThermoDox®s a liposome
encapsulation of doxorubicin, an approved and featly used oncology drug for the treatment of aemidnge of cancers. Localized he:
mild hyperthermia temperatures (greater than 3@graks Celsius) releases the encapsulated doxiordimen the liposome enabling hi
concentrations of doxorubicin to be deposited pesféally in and around the targeted tumor.
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On January 31, 2013, we announced that ThermoDox®mbination with radio frequency ablation dict meeet the primary endpoint of 1
HEAT study in patients with hepatocellular carcirmnalso known as primary liver cancer. Specifical determined, after conferring w
the HEAT study independent Data Monitoring Comnaiftinat the HEAT study did not meet the goal of destrating persuasive evidenct
clinical effectiveness that could form the basisregulatory approval in the population chosentf@ HEAT study. In the trial, ThermoD@&x
was welltolerated with no unexpected serious adverse evéswill continue to follow the patients enrolléd the HEAT study to tF
secondary endpoint, overall survival. We will atsmduct additional analyses of the data from théAHEtudy to assess the future strat
value of ThermoDox®.

In 2005, the Company made a strategic decisionvestits medical device business. The Company thidédmedical device business to Bo:
Scientific Corporation (Boston Scientific) in 2003t net aggregate payments of $43 million, recg\#13 million in 2007 and $15 million
each of 2008 and 2009. Since this divesture, we lkiadicated our efforts and resources to the dpuetnt and commercialization of car
drugs including tumor-targeting treatments usinguBed heat energy in combination with haetivated drug delivery systems. To suppor!
research and development, we have raised grossqasmf approximately $68 million in equity finamgs, debt financing and warrant :
option exercises in the years 2009 through 2012.

On December 5, 2008, we entered into a developmeoduct supply and commercialization agreement Wiakult Honsha Co. (the Yak
Agreement) under which Yakult was granted the esteiright to commercialize and market ThermoDde®the Japanese market. We w
paid a $2.5 million ugront licensing fee and may receive additional pagyta from Yakult upon receipt of marketing apprdwalthe Japane
Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare as well aoooghe achievement of certain levels of sales qmtcval for new indications. Under 1
Yakult Agreement, we will receive double digit elatmg royalties on the sale of ThermoDox®Japan, when and if any such sales occu
we also will be the exclusive supplier of ThermoBoto Yakult. Concurrent with a convertible preferstdck equity financing in Janus
2011, we amended the Yakult Agreement to provideufpto $4.0 million in an accelerated partial paynto us of a future drug appro
milestone which included $2.0 million paid to usoophe closing of the preferred equity financingl @am additional $2.0 million condition
upon the resumption of enrollment of Japanese miatie the Japan cohort of the HEAT study. In cdesition of these accelerated miles
payments from Yakult, we agreed to reduce futureyépproval milestone payments by approximateltyfpercent (40%). All other milesto
payments are unaffected.

On May 6, 2012, we entered into a long term commkersupply agreement with Zhejiang Hisun PharmacalCo. Ltd. (Hisun) for th
production of ThermoDox@n mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (the Cheratbry). Hisun will be responsible for providirai of the
technical and regulatory support services for trenufiacture of ThermoDox@n the China territory and we will repay Hisun thelatec
development costs and fees, which we expect toppeogimately $2.0 million in total, commencing dmetsuccessful completion of th
registrational batches of ThermoDox®&n January 18, 2013, we broadened our relationglhiip Hisun by entering into a technolc
development contract, pursuant to which Hisun pasda norrefundable research and development fee of $5.0omito support ot
development of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other tearsigpport in relation to a regulatory filing bysdin in Chin
for approval of ThermoDox@Following our announcement of the HEAT study resol January 31, 2013, we and Hisun are evaluagx|
steps in relation to ThermoDox®, which include sub-group analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienthénPhase Ill clinical trial for prima
liver cancer and other activities to further theelepment of ThermoDox® for the China territory.

Following the announcement of the HEAT study resuite are assessing our product pipeline and @sead development priorities. We n
evaluate licensing cancer products from third parfior cancer treatments to expand our productlipgpeTo the extent we are unable
maintain a broad range of product candidates, epeddence on the success of one or a few prododidedes would increase and results
as those announced in relation to the HEAT studyamuary 31, 2013 will have a more significant iotgen our financial prospects, finant
condition and market value. We may also considdrearaluate strategic alternatives, including inwvesit in, or acquisition of, complement
businesses, technologies or products. As demoedtiat the HEAT study results, drug research analdement is an inherently uncert
process and there is a high risk of failure at gwetage prior to approval. The timing and the omtef clinical results is extremely difficult
predict. Clinical development successes and falwan have a disproportionate positive or negatiygact on our scientific and medi
prospects, financial prospects, financial conditon market value.




Our current business strategy includes the poggibil entering into collaborative arrangementshthird parties to complete the developn
and commercialization of our product candidategshinevent that third parties take over the clinidgal process for one or more of our proc
candidates, the estimated completion date woulgelgrbe under the control of that third party rattean us. We cannot forecast with

degree of certainty which proprietary productsrafi¢ations, if any, will be subject to future ctitaative arrangements, in whole or in part,
how such arrangements would affect our developmlamt or capital requirements. We may also applystdssidies, grants, or governmen
agency-sponsored studies that could reduce outaj@aent costs.

THERMODOX® (DOXORUBICIN ENCAPSULATED IN HEAT-ACTIVA TED LIPOSOME)

Liposomes are manufactured submicroscopic vesgdasisting of a discrete aqueous central compattswnounded by a membrane bile
composed of naturally occurring lipids. Conventioliigosomes have been designed and manufacturedrty drugs and increase reside
time, thus allowing the drugs to remain in the llstoeam for extended periods of time before theyramoved from the body. However,
current existing liposomal formulations of canceugs and liposomal cancer drugs under developmenbtliprovide for the immediate rele
of the drug and the direct targeting of organ dpetiimors, two important characteristics that srquired for improving the efficacy of can
drugs such as doxorubicin. A team of research #sterat Duke University developed a heatsitive liposome which rapidly changes
structure when heated to a threshold minimum teatper of 39.5° to 42Celsius. Heating creates channels in the liposbitager that alloy
an encapsulated drug to rapidly disperse into theosnding tissue. Through a perpetual, wavide, exclusive development ¢
commercialization license from Duke University, §leh has licensed novel, hemttivated liposomal technology that is differergchfron
other liposomes through its unique low heat-actistatlease of encapsulated chemotherapeutic agents.

We intend to use several available focukedt technologies, such as radio frequency abld&sA), microwave energy and high inten
focused ultrasound (HIFU), to activate the releafsgrugs from our novel heat-sensitive liposomes.

THERMODOX® IN RELATION TO PRIMARY LIVER CANCER
Liver Cancer Overview

Primary liver cancer (hepatocellular carcinomaldCC”) is one of the most common and deadliest forms nf@aworldwide. It ranks as 1
fifth most common solid tumor cancer. It is estieththat up to 90% of liver cancer patients wik dvithin five years of diagnosis. T
incidence of primary liver cancer is approximat28;000 cases per year in the United States, appatgly 40,000 cases per year in Europe
is rapidly growing worldwide at approximately 75000cases per year. HCC has the fastest rate oftlymf all cancers and is projected tc
the most prevalent form of cancer by 2020. HCCommmonly diagnosed in patients with longstandingatiepdisease and cirrhosis (prima
due to hepatitis C in the U.S. and Europe and ktepBtin Asia).

At an early stage, the standard first line treatnfenliver cancer is surgical resection of the tormUp to 80% of patients are ineligible
surgery or transplantation at time of diagnosiseady stage liver cancer generally has few symptanmts when finally detected the tur
frequently is too large for surgery. There are fternative treatments, since radiation therapy @remotherapy are largely ineffective.
tumors generally up to 5 centimeters in diameté&ARas emerged as the standard of care treatmeaoh wfrectly destroys the tumor tist
through the application of high temperatures byabe inserted into the core of the tumor. Localireence rates after RFA directly correl:
to the size of the tumor. For tumors 3 cm or smaliediameter the recurrence rate has been reptotéd 10 —20%; however, for tumo
greater than 3 cm, local recurrence rates of 40%girer have been observed.

Celsion’s Approach

While RFA uses extremely high temperatures (greti@n 80° Celsius) to ablate the tumor, it may faitreat micrometastases in the ou
margins of the ablation zone because temperatarggiperiphery may not be high enough to destieycancer cells. Celsion’s Thermo[R®x
treatment approach is designed to utilize the tghilf RFA devices to ablate the center of the tumbile simultaneously thermally activati
the ThermoDox@®liposome to release its encapsulated doxorubickilteemaining viable cancer cells throughout theated region, includi
the tumor ablation margins. This novel treatmergraach is intended to deliver the drug directlytiiose cancer cells that survive RFA. ~
approach will also increase the delivery of theatakicin at the desired tumor site while potenyiaducing drug exposure distant to the tu
site.




Phase | Clinical Trial - Primary Liver Cancer

In the second quarter of 2007, we completed ost Rhase | single dose escalation clinical triat thvestigated ThermoDox@® combinatiol
with RFA for the treatment of primary and metastditrer cancer. The study was carried out at théddal Cancer Institute (NCI), which
part of the National Institutes of Health (NIH) a@deen Mary Hospital in Hong Kong.

In 2007 we initiated a second Phase | dose esoalatudy designed to investigate simplificationtlod current RFA/ThermoDox®&eatmer
regimen including a single vial formulation of TheyDox® designed for commercial distribution. The studyglermitted multiple dosing
liver cancer patients. This clinical trial was cdetpd in 2008.

Phase Il Global Clinical Trial - Primary Liver Can cer (The HEAT Study)

The HEAT study for ThermoDox®in combination with radiofrequency ablation (RFA$, being conducted under a Special Prof
Assessment agreed to with the U.S. Food and Drugididtration (FDA). The Special Protocol Assessmagreed to with the FDA specifi
Progression Free Survival (PFS) as the HEAT studlyimary endpoint. We scheduled a meeting with HiEAT study independent Ds
Monitoring Committee (DMC) on January 30, 2013 idey to conduct an analysis of the HEAT stwdyFS endpoint. Following review by
DMC, on January 31, 2013, we announced that Ther@Dn combination with RFA did not meet the primarydpoint of the HEAT study
patients with hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC), &dsown as primary liver cancer. Specifically, weeatatined, after conferring with the DM
that the HEAT study did not meet the goal of denmating persuasive evidence of clinical effectiventhat could form the basis for regula
approval in the population chosen for the HEAT gtuthe HEAT study was designed to show a 33 peroeptovement in PFS with |
percent power and a p-value = 0.05. In the triakrmoDox® was weltolerated with no unexpected serious adverse evdrgswill continue
following the patients enrolled in the HEAT studythe secondary endpoint, overall survival.

We will also conduct additional analyses of theadimbm the HEAT study to assess the future strategiue of ThermoDox®We plan t
continue with related partnerships, such as oangement with Zhejiang Hisun Pharmaceutical Co. (Hisun) described below, to the ex
feasible. In addition, we will assess our produpefine and research and development prioritieswAsvaluate strategic alternatives, we

need to consider a number of factors, including@tment in, or acquisition of, complementary busses, technologies or products, pos
capital raising transactions, partnering opportasiind working capital requirements. We expect tha strength of our balance sheet

afford us the opportunity to evaluate our futurgelepment plans. However, as demonstrated by th&THEudy results announced on Jani
31, 2013, drug research and development is anénbigruncertain process and there is a high ristaidfire at every stage prior to appro
The timing and the outcome of clinical results iremely difficult to predict. Clinical developmemsuccesses and failures can ha
disproportionate positive or negative impact on sgientific and medical prospects, financial prasgefinancial condition and market value.

Prior to the HEAT study results announced on Jan@ar 2013, and consistent with our global regulatirategy, we announced on April
2012, that randomization of at least 200 patiemthé Peoples Republic of China (PRC), a requirement for regtginal filing in the PRC, hi
been completed. The HEAT study had already enrdledifficient number to support registrationalnfijs in South Korea and Taiwan, 1
important markets for ThermoDox®&he future of these activities will be part of @irategic planning as we analyze the data annouoi
January 31, 2013 and will affect our partnershithwlisun described below.

On May 6, 2012, we entered into a long term comiakstpply agreement with Hisun for the productadriThermoDox®in mainland Chini
Hong Kong and Macau (the China territory). In ademice with the terms of the agreement, Hisun vélkésponsible for providing all of t
technical and regulatory support services, inclgdire costs of all technical transfer, registragicand bioequivalence studies, technical tral
costs, Celsion consultative support costs and tinehase of any necessary equipment and additiandity costs necessary to support capi
requirements for the manufacture of ThermoDoX®e will repay Hisun for the aggregate amount ofsthe&evelopment costs and 1
commencing on the successful completion of thrgest@tional batches of ThermoDox®he batches are expected to be successfully det
in mid-2013, and repayment of the development costs wdlpat any time on or prior to the fourth year igarsary of the signing of tl
agreement, which we expect in total to be approtetge$2.0 million. Hisun is also obligated to cémtgerformance requirements under
agreement. The agreement is initially limited tpemcentage of the production requirements of Th@ox® in the China territory with Hist
retaining an option for additional global supplyeaflocal regulatory approval in the China tergtain addition, Hisun will collaborate with
in relation to the regulatory approval activities ThermoDox® with the China State Food and Drugnidstration (SFDA).




On January 18, 2013, we broadened our relationshipHisun by entering into a technology developiesntract, pursuant to which His
paid us a non-refundable research and developreenpff $5.0 million to support our development ofefrhoDox® and we will provid
research data and other technical support in oglatd a regulatory filing by Hisun with the SFDArfapproval of ThermoDox&for
manufacturing and sale in the China territory. January 18, 2013, we also entered into an exclugitien agreement with Hisun, termine
at any time by Hisun, under which we granted Hianroption to enter into an exclusive license agm#nwith us for the manufacturing ¢
commercialization of ThermoDox®ith respect to all indications in the China temyt under the terms and conditions set forth ineheusive
option agreement and other customary terms andittmmlto be set forth in the license agreemerdanif. Hisun agreed to pay us an additi
$5.0 million within sixty days after the signing tife exclusive option agreement if it has not begminated within such time period. 1
exclusive option agreement contemplated paymentmaidpfront license fee, milestone payments andltieg to us if the exclusive licer
agreement were entered into.

Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 ThatmoDox®in combination with RFA did not meet the primarydpnoint of the Pha:
1l clinical trial for primary liver cancer, Hisuslected to terminate the exclusive option agreeraadtnot to pursue the option to enter int
exclusive license agreement with us for the Chémdtbry, which termination took effect as of Felryi 1, 2013. As a result of the terminat
we will not receive the additional $5 million paynteor any future payment originally contemplatedtbg exclusive option agreement.
technology development contract will remain in effeshile Hisun and we continue to collaborate arel evaluating next steps in relatior
ThermoDox®, which include the sudroup analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienth@Phase Il clinical trial for primary liver cegr an
other activities to further the development of TheDox® for the China territory.

THERMODOX® IN RELATION TO CANCERS OTHER THAN PRIMAF LIVER CANCER

In 2009, we formed a joint research agreement Rithips Healthcare, a division of Royal Philips &lenics, to evaluate the combinatior
Philips’ high intensity focused ultrasound (HIFU)tlwThermoDox®to determine the potential of this combination reat a broad range
cancers. As a result of our progress to clinicaletlgpment status, we are currently negotiating\a agreement with Philips. In August 20
we announced FDA clearance to commence a Phagsedll ef ThermoDox® and Philip’s Sonalleve® MR4ided HIFU technology for tl
palliation of painful metastases to the bone calbgeldng, prostate or breast cancers.

In June 2012, we announced a collaboration withHthiwersity of Oxford to begin an early phase dalistudy of ThermoDox®lus HIFU ir
the treatment of metastatic liver cancer. The,tudlich is supported by the National Institute fftgalth Research Oxford Biomedical Rese
Centre, will be carried out as a multidisciplinagilaboration between us, the Oxford Universitytilmge of Biomedical Engineering and

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust. This earljhgse clinical study is being finalized and will veg approval from a local eth
committee. Enrollment of the first patient in thifical study is targeted for the first half of 20

We are also working with the Focused Ultrasoundni@ation in preclinical studies designed to explbweuse of ThermoDox® combinatiol
with MR-guided HIFU for the treatment of pancreatic cangée studies are being conducted at the Univeddity/ashington (UW) School
Medicine. The UW research is expected to includmahmodels to confirm the ability of HIFU to tatgaigh concentrations of doxorubicin
proprietary pancreatic cancer cell lines and irowstudies to assess the response to these tureatedrusing ThermoDox®ith and withou
HIFU-induced hyperthermia. We believe that these cotlimns are just the beginning for combining impattdevice technologies suct
HIFU with our low heat activated liposomal techrgjo

In addition to the collaborations outlined aboves aave two ongoing clinical studies: a Phase Idtof ThermoDox®in combination witl
hyperthermia for the treatment of recurrent cheall (RCW) breast cancer (the DIGNITY study) and lsage Il study of ThermoDox@
combination with thermal ablation for the treatmehtolorectal liver metastases.

Recurrent Chest Wall (RCW) Breast Cancer Overview

Breast cancer is the most common malignancy in woim&oth the United States and the world. Despitariety of therapeutic approaches
to 40% of the estimated 95,000 patients in the ddhtates undergoing a mastectomy as their pritneagment will develop locally recurre
RCW breast cancer. There is currently no effectivtemotherapeutic standard of care for RCW bremster and as a result, many of tt
patients will die within two years of the recurrendatients with RCW breast cancer suffer fromiglising tumors and other sympto
including pain, foul-smelling wounds, and a vergual reminder of tumor progression.




Celsion’s Approach

We have been actively seeking a targeted localimatment for breast cancer using ThermoDdr®&onjunction with localized microwa
hyperthermia to treat RCW breast cancer. Studid3ute University and other centers have indicated heat may improve the therape
action of non-temperature sensitive liposomal dok@in formulations in advanced locegional breast cancer. Our liposomal encapst
doxorubicin is released by heat generated fromdermal microwave tissue hyperthermia device tlsaplaced on a womas'chest. Th
microwave hyperthermia heats the target to a teatper adequate to activate ThermoDdx® not to ablate the tissue like RFA. Upon he
to 39.5° to 42%C, a significant concentration of doxorubicin idessed directly to the tumor. As in our liver canpeogram, we use
commercially available thermotherapy device to lieattarget tissue and activate ThermoDox® at #eired target site.

Microwave hyperthermia as a separate standaloa#ntent has been found to have the ability to ki#ldst cancer cells. Because breast ¢
cells have higher water content than surroundimgnabcells, the tumor is heated to a greater exteart normal breast tissue and is select
destroyed. Thus heating cancer cells with a mier@wdevice for sixty minutes at 43°C has been faonide tumoricidal. We expect that
combination of microwave hyperthermia and ThermoPaxill be more efficacious than microwave hyperthexralone or treatment w
existing non-heat activated liposomal formulations.

Breast Cancer Clinical Phase /1l Clinical Trial - The DIGNITY Study

In 2009, the Company commenced an open label, éss@ating ThermoDox@®hase I/Phase 1l clinical trial for patients witlcW breas
cancer —the DIGNITY study). The DIGNITY study is designeal eéstablish a safe therapeutic dose in Phase linaRbase Il to demonstri
local control, including complete and partial respes, and stable disease as its primary endp®h@. DIGNITY study is also planned
evaluate kinetics in ThermoDox® produced from ntbgn one manufacturing site.

The Company completed enrollment of the Phase tiggoof the study in 2010 and an independent Dati@t$ Monitoring Board declar
50mg/m2 to be the Phase Il dose. The Phase tiopoof the DIGNITY study protocol has been revieliey the FDA and enrolime
commenced in the first quarter of 2013.

Duke University conducted a Phase | dose escaldiregmoDox®study in patients with RCW breast cancer and hasemted prelimina
results from the 16 enrolled patients that chareatehe safety of the drug in RCW patients andféassibility of ThermoDox®administratiol
in these patients. Furthermore, data presentedike suggested a beneficial clinical effect of TheDox®. Duke reported that tl
combination of ThermoDox®ith heat showed evidence in the patients of dihactivity and two of the six patients who wereated with th
30mg/m 2 dosage had a complete local response.

Colorectal Liver Metastases Overview

The American Cancer Society estimates that there weer 141,000 new cases of colorectal canceraandt 51,000 colorectal cancer de
in 2010. Up to 25% of patients with colorectal aanpresent with liver metastases and another 508laie liver metastases within 5 yei
Median survival of patients with colorectal liveetastases (CRLM) is 62 months if untreated. While hepatic resectiopatentially curative
most CRLM patients are inoperable and therefore R=A commonly used local treatment modality. BeeaRFA is both efficacious a
widely accepted, a rational strategy is to attetoghcrease its efficacy for medium (3610 cm) and large (> 5.0 cm) CRLM tumors witk
adjuvant such as ThermoDox®.
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Celsion’s Approach

The liver is a common site of metastases for canoérthe colon and rectum, as it provides a faveramvironment for their growth a
proliferation. Addressing these metastases allosvid improve three- and fiwear survival rates among patients with this aggvesdiseas
While RFA can be effective in treating these tumdrss often limited to smaller metastases witttie liver. Adding ThermoDox&o RFA a:
adjuvant therapy is a combination which has dematest early clinical promise in treating larger aimand multifocal disease.

Phase Il Clinical Trial — The ABLATE Study

In 2011, we initiated a Phase Il study of Thermo®dr combination with RFA for the treatment of colct@ liver metastases. In Febru
2012, we announced the enrollment of our firstgudtin the randomized Phase Il study of ThermoDax®ombination with RFA, for tt
treatment of colorectal liver metastases (the ABEAStudy). The ABLATE Study originally was expectedenroll up to 88 patients w
colorectal cancer metastasized to the liver. Pitieere to be randomized to receive RFA plus Th&ox® or RFA alone for the treatment
their liver tumors. In December 2012, the ABLATRidy was amended to an open label study expecteshitoll up to 41 patients
combination with thermal ablation. All patients Wiéceive ThermoDox®n combination with ablation using either Radiofuegcy ablatio
(RFA) or microwave ablation (MWA) devices. The pam endpoint is based on one year local tumor ognkith secondary endpoints of tii
to progression and overall survival.

PRODUCT FEASIBILITY

We developed a stable heat activated liposomal dtation of docetaxel and evaluated the liposomaletixel formulation in animal stud
that demonstrated a statistically significant turimdribition effect when compared both to free dazet and a noteat sensitive formulatic
We continue to evaluate its formulation. In aitait the Company has developed a third stable detatated liposomal formulation. This di
encapsulates carboplatin and in early studiesth@srsfavorable release characteristics and forraulatability.

In September 2010, we announced the award of a eiiiup Phase | Small Business Innovation and RebeSBIR) grant from the Natior
Institutes of Health (NIH), to support the propos@lew Thermal Sensitive Carboplatin Liposomes @mncer". This funding supports
efforts to develop a proprietary hesttivated liposomal technology in combination wédrboplatin, an approved and frequently used oy
drug for treatment of a wide range of cancers. B&eived approximately $184,000 collectively fromsthrant in 2011 and 2012 to supj
formulation development and preclinical efficacydies in collaboration with Duke University.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

An element of our business strategy has been &upuas resources permit, the research and devethdmrha range of product candidates 1
variety of indications. We may also evaluate liGegscancer products from third parties for canceatiments to expand our current proi
pipeline. This is intended to allow us to diversifie risks associated with our research and dereap expenditures. To the extent we
unable to maintain a broad range of product catelijaur dependence on the success of one or priuct candidates would increase
results such as those announced in relation taHBAT study on January 31, 2013 will have a moreni§icant impact on our financi
prospects, financial condition and market value. &y also consider and evaluate strategic alteremtincluding investment in, or acquisit
of, complementary businesses, technologies or ptsdi\s demonstrated by the Heat study resultsy degsearch and development is
inherently uncertain process and there is a higih of failure at every stage prior to approval. Tineing and the outcome of clinical result
extremely difficult to predict. Clinical developmtiesuccesses and failures can have a disproportigmaditive or negative impact on
scientific and medical prospects, financial prospefinancial condition and market value.

Our current business strategy includes the pogsibil entering into collaborative arrangementshwvthiird parties to complete the developn
and commercialization of our product candidategshinevent that third parties take over the clinidgal process for one or more of our proc
candidates, the estimated completion date woulgelgrbe under the control of that third party rattean us. We cannot forecast with

degree of certainty which proprietary productsrafi¢ations, if any, will be subject to future cditaative arrangements, in whole or in part,
how such arrangements would affect our developrlamt or capital requirements. We may also applystdssidies, grants or governmen
agency-sponsored studies that could reduce outaf@ent costs.
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As a result of the uncertainties discussed prelyousthis Annual Report on Form 10K, among othavs, are unable to estimate the dure
and completion costs of our research and developprejects or when, if ever, and to what extent witk receive cash inflows from ti
commercialization and sale of a product if one of drug candidates receives regulatory approvalnfarketing, if at all. Our inability -
complete our research and development projectstimely manner or to obtain positive results in alinical trials, as well as any failure
enter into collaborative agreements when appragrieduld significantly increase our capital requiemts and could adversely impact
liquidity. While our estimated future capital regpinents are uncertain and could increase or decesaa result of many factors, including
extent to which we choose to advance our resedmlelopment and clinical trials or whether we ara iposition to pursue manufacturing
commercialization activities, it is clear we willead significant additional capital to develop oupduct candidates through clini
development, manufacturing and commercializatioe. 8 not know whether we will be able to accesstiadel capital when needed or
terms favorable to us or our stockholders. Our ilitglio raise additional capital, or to do so arms reasonably acceptable to us, w
jeopardize the future success of our busir

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

We are engaged in a limited amount of researchdawdlopment in our own facilities and also spongsearch programs in partnership \
various research institutions, including the Natlo@ancer Institute and Duke University. The mayof the spending in research
development is for the funding of ThermoDox@nical trials. Research and development expensas approximately $15.8 million, $1!
million and $14.7 million for the years ended Debtem31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. I8sa 7 — Managemerst’'Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cyiem for additional information regarding expendituredated to our research ¢
development programs.

FDA REGULATION
Research and Development

Our research and development activities, @ircal tests and clinical trials are subject tdemsive regulation by the FDA as would
manufacturing, marketing and labeling of our praduif any. The Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic et Public Health Service Act and
regulations promulgated by the FDA govern, amorgothings, the testing, manufacture, safety, a€fyc labeling, storage, record keep
approval, advertising, promotion, import and expdrour products.

Under these statutes, our heativated liposomes will be regulated as a new dfing steps ordinarily required before such proslgenn b
marketed in the U.S. include (a) prinical and clinical studies; (b) the submissianthe FDA of an application for, or approval, as
Investigational New Drug application (IND), whichust become effective before human clinical trialBsyraommence; (c) adequate and wel
controlled human clinical trials to establish ttadesy and efficacy of the product; (d) the subnassio the FDA of a New Drug Applicati
(NDA); and (e) FDA approval of the application, linding approval of all product labeling.

Pre<linical tests include laboratory evaluation of gwot chemistry, formulation and stability, as weel animal studies, to assess the pott
safety and efficacy of the product. Rileical safety tests must be conducted by laboiegahat comply with FDA regulations regarding d
laboratory practice. The results of pinical tests are submitted to the FDA as paraofIND and are reviewed by the FDA before
commencement of human clinical trials. SubmissibaroIND will not necessarily result in FDA authoation to commence clinical trials, ¢
the absence of FDA objection to an IND does noessarily mean that the FDA will ultimately appraue NDA or that a product candid
otherwise will come to market.

Clinical trials involve the administration of th@sato humans under the supervision of a qualifiedgipal investigator. Clinical trials must
conducted in accordance with good clinical prastisader protocols submitted to the FDA as partrofND. Also, each clinical trial must
approved and conducted under the auspices of emaltreview board (IRB), and with patient informsmhsent. An IRB will consider, ama
other things, ethical factors and the safety of &nrsubjects and the possible liability of the tusibn conducting the clinical trials.

Clinical trials are typically conducted in two dirée sequential phases, but the phases may ovefase | clinical trials involve the init
introduction of the therapy to a small number dfjeats. Phase Il trials are generally larger treaducted in the target population. Pha
studies may serve as the pivotal trials, providimg demonstration of safety and effectiveness reduior approval. However, the FDA n
require additional, postiarket trials as a condition of approval. In theecaf drugs and biological products, Phase Il cdihirials generally a
conducted in a target patient population to gaéwilence about the pharmacokinetics, safety anlddigal or clinical efficacy of the drug f
specific indications, to determine dosage toleraamu optimal dosage and to identify possible agveffects and safety risks. When a dru
biological compound has shown evidence of efficaog an acceptable safety profile in Phase Il etialus, Phase Il clinical trials &
undertaken to serve as the pivotal trials to deitnatesclinical efficacy and safety in an expandatigmt population.
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There can be no assurance that any of our clitriedgs will be completed successfully within anyesfiied time period or at all. On January
2013, we announced that ThermoDox® combination with RFA did not meet the primarydpnint of the HEAT study in patients w
hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC), also known as pryniaver cancer. Specifically, we determined, aftenferring with the DMC, that tl
HEAT study did not meet the goal of demonstratirgspasive evidence of clinical effectiveness thatlat form the basis for regulatc
approval in the population chosen for the HEAT gtud

Eitherthe FDA or we may suspend clinical trials at amyej if the FDA, our Data Monitoring Committee, oe wonclude that clinical subje
are being exposed to an unacceptable health rikk ather reasons. The FDA inspects and reviewnscel trial sites, informed consent forr
data from the clinical trial sites (including casgort forms and record keeping procedures) angenfrmance of the protocols by clinical t
personnel to determine compliance with good clinicactices. The FDA also examines whether therg lvas in the conduct of clinical trie
The conduct of clinical trials is complex and difflt, especially in pivotal Phase Il or Phaserills. There can be no assurance that the ¢
or the performance of the pivotal clinical triabpycols or any of our current or future productdidates will be successful.

The results of pre-clinical studies and clinic@ls, if successful, are submitted in an applicafar FDA approval to market the drug or
biological product for a specified use. The testing approval process requires substantial timesffod, and there can be no assurance that
any approval will be granted for any product at ime, according to any schedule, or at all. ThéAFBay refuse to accept or approve an
application if it believes that applicable regulgtoriteria are not satisfied. The FDA may alsouieg additional testing for safety and efficacy.
Moreover, if regulatory approval is granted, thempal will be limited to specific indications. Tieecan be no assurance that any of our ct
product candidates will receive regulatory appreval marketing or, if approved, that approval Wi for any or all of the indications that we
request.

The FDA is authorized to require various user feesduding NDA fees (currently up to $1.4 millionfhe FDA may waive or reduce such user
fees under certain circumstances, such as orph@ndgdsignation for a product candidate. We wilkseaivers or reductions of user fees wt
possible, but we cannot be assured that we willliggble for any such waiver or reduction.

Post-Approval Requirements

After receipt of necessary regulatory approvalgny, for initial manufacturing and sale of our ¢wot candidates, our contract manufactc
facilities and products are subject to ongoingeevand periodic inspection. Each U.S. drug manufagy establishment must be registe
with the FDA. Manufacturing establishments in th&land abroad are subject to inspections by th& & must comply with current go
manufacturing practices. In order to ensure fudhtecal compliance with such practices, manufactuneust expend funds, time and effol
the areas of production and quality control. Iniadd, the FDA may impose posipproval requirements on us, including the requénentha
we conduct specified post-marketing studies.

Inspections

We are subject to the periodic inspection of oimic4l trials, facilities, procedures and operasi@md/or the testing of our products by the |
to determine whether our systems and processes arempliance with FDA regulations. Following suittspections, the FDA may iss
notices on Form 483 and warning letters that ceaalgse us to modify certain activities identifiedidg the inspection. A Form 483 notice
generally issued at the conclusion of an FDA inipacand lists conditions the FDA inspectors betieway violate FDA regulations. FI
guidelines specify that a warning letter only isb® issued for violations of “regulatory signifieai for which the failure to adequately ¢
promptly achieve correction may be expected tolt@san enforcement action.

Recalls
The FDA has the authority to require the recalbof products in the event of material deficienceslefects in manufacture. A government

mandated recall, or a voluntary recall by us, coakiilt from a number of events or factors, inaigdiomponent failures, manufacturing ert
instability of product or defects in labeling.
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Other FDA Regulations

We are also subject to recordkeeping and reporiégulations. These regulations require, among dtfiegs, the reporting to the FDA
adverse events alleged to have been associatedhwitise of a product or in connection with cerfaimduct failures.

Labeling and promotional activities are also retpdaby the FDA. We must also comply with recorceiag requirements as well
requirements to report certain adverse events winglour products. The FDA can impose other poatketing controls on us as well as
products including, but not limited to, restricttoan sale and use, through the approval procegdatens and otherwise.

PRODUCT LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

Our business exposes us to potential product itigliks that are inherent in the testing, mantuifeing and marketing of human therape
products. We presently have product liability imnge limited to $10 million per incident, and if weere to be subject to a claim in exces
this coverage or to a claim not covered by ourraisce and the claim succeeded, we would be reqtorpdy the claim out of our own limit
resources.

COMPETITION

Competition in the discovery and development of mesthods for treating and preventing disease ensd. We face, and will continue to fi
intense competition from pharmaceutical and biatetdgy companies, as well as academic and res@astitutions and government agent
both in the U.S. and abroad. We face significamhgetition from organizations pursuing the sameimmilar technologies used by us in
drug discovery efforts and from organizations depilg pharmaceuticals that are competitive withaduct candidates.

Most of our competitors, either alone or togethdthvtheir collaborative partners, have substantigifeater financial resources and la
research and development staffs than we do. Intiaddimost of these organizations, either alon¢ogether with their collaborators, hi
significantly greater experience than we do in digpieg products, undertaking preclinical testingl alinical trials, obtaining FDA and ott
regulatory approvals of products, and manufactuaind marketing products. Mergers and acquisitiorteé pharmaceutical industry may re
in even more resources being concentrated amongarpetitors. These companies, as well as acadestitutions, governmental agenc
and private research organizations, also compete ws in recruiting and retaining highly qualifisdientific personnel and consultants.
ability to compete successfully with other companie the pharmaceutical and biotechnology fieldo atlepends on the status of
collaborations and on the continuing availabilifycapital to us.

ThermoDox®

Although there are many drugs and devices markatddunder development for the treatment of cankerCompany is not aware of any o
heat activated drug delivery product either beiragkated or in human clinical development.

LICENSES, PATENTS, TRADEMARKS AND REGULATORY EXCLUS IVITY

In 1999, the Company entered into a license agreemigh Duke University under which we received lesive rights, subject to cert:
exceptions, to commercialize and use Duke’s thdipasome technology. In relation to these liposqgatents licensed from Duke Univers
we have filed two additional patents related to fitrenulation and use of liposomes. We have alsenbed from Valentis, CA certain glo
rights covering the use of pegylation for tempem@tensitive liposomes.

In 2003, our obligations under the license agreeameétlhh Duke University with respect to the testingd regulatory milestones and of
licensed technology performance deadlines wereirgditad in exchange for a payment of shares of oargon stock. The license agreen
continues to be subject to agreements to pay dtydyased upon future sales. In conjunction with platent holder, we have filed internatic
applications for a certain number of the United&tgatents.

Our rights under the license agreement with Dukevéisity extend for the longer of 20 years or timel ®f any term for which any relevi
patents are issued by the United States Patentraggmark Office. Currently, the Company has rightBuke’s patent for its thernmgosome
technology in the United States, which expires0t& and to future patents received by Duke in @anBurope, Japan and Australia, whe
has patent applications have been granted. ThepBamgrant provides coverage in the European Corntynufor this technology, tt
Company’s license rights are worldwide, includihg United States, Canada, certain European cosinfisstralia, Hong Kong, and Japan.
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In 2009, the FDA granted orphan drug designatiornfeermoDox®for the treatment of HCC. Orphan drug designatiatitles the Company
seven years of market exclusivity following FDA apyal, if any, FDA assistance in clinical trial g a reduction in FDA user fees, U.S.
credits related to development expenses as wéitleaspportunity to apply for funding from the Uglivernment to defray the costs of clin
trial expenses. In 2011, the European Commissiantgd orphan drug designation for ThermoDdr®the treatment of HCC in Europe.
established by the European Medicine Agency (“EMAfphan drug designation provides for scientificiaehand regulatory assistance fi
the EMA, direct access to centralized marketindharization and certain financial incentives, sushreduction of fees associated with pre
authorization inspections and marketing authoriratipplication fees. The orphan drug designatioBurope also provides 10 years of me
exclusivity subsequent to product approval.

On February 5, 2013, Celsion announced that itprigtary patent application, "Method of Storing Mparticle Formulations," had be
allowed in China and granted in South Korea andtralia. Celsion holds an exclusive license agregnwdth Duke University for it
temperature-sensitive liposome technology that otiee ThermoDox@ormulation. Celsion's newly issued patents pertgprcifically tc
methods of storing stabilized, temperatesessitive liposomal formulations and will assisthie protection of global rights. These patent
extend the overall term of the ThermoDox@&tent portfolio to 2026. The patents in thesedhreuntries are the first in this family, wh
includes pending applications in the U.S., Europé additional key commercial geographies in Aslhis extended patent runway to 2
allows for the evaluation of future developmenfatits for ThermoDox® and Celsion's heat-sensitipesome technology platform.

In addition to the rights available to us under ptated or pending license agreements, we rely erpmprietary knowhow and experience
the development and use of heat for medical thesapihich we seek to protect, in part, through pedary information agreements w
employees, consultants and others. There can lasswance that these proprietary information ageeésmwill not be breached, that we !
have adequate remedies for any breach, or that thgseements, even if fully enforced, will be adagquto prevent thirgharty use of th
Company’s proprietary technology. Please refetemI1A, Risk Factors, including, but not limited tWe rely on trade secret protection
other unpatented proprietary rights for importarappietary technologies, and any loss of such siglduld harm our business, result
operations and financial conditionSimilarly, we cannot guarantee that technology tedgicensed to us by others will not be succesg
challenged or circumvented by third parties, ot the rights granted will provide us with adequptetection. Please refer to Item 1A, F
Factors, including, but not limited to,Otr business depends on licensing agreements Wit parties to permit us to use patel
technologies. The loss of any of our rights urtiese agreements could impair our ability to dgveled market our products.”

EMPLOYEES

As of March 15, 2013, we employed 19 ftithe employees. We also maintain active independentractor relationships with varic
individuals, most of whom have month#tezenth or annual consulting agreements. None of emuployees are covered by a collec
bargaining agreement, and we consider our relatigthsour employees to be good.

COMPANY INFORMATION
Celsion was founded in 1982 and is a Delaware catjpm. Our principal executive offices are lochi&t 997 Lenox Drive, Suite 1(

Lawrenceville, NJ 08648. Our telephone numbe6@9] 896-9100. The Company’s website is www.celsiom. The information containi
in, or that can be accessed through, our websitetipart of, and is not incorporated in, this AahReport.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We make available free of charge through our websitvw.celsion.com, our Annual Report on Form 10arterly Reports on Form XD:
Current Reports on Form 8- and all amendments to those reports as sooaas®mably practicable after such material is edaatally filec
with or furnished to the Securities and Exchangen@dssion (the “SEC”).In addition, our website includes other items edato corporal
governance matters, including, among other thirgs, corporate governance principles, charters efoua committees of the Board
Directors, and our code of business conduct andse#pplicable to all employees, officers and doex We intend to disclose on our inte
website any amendments to or waivers from our addeusiness conduct and ethics as well as any amemtd to its corporate governa
principles or the charters of various committeethefBoard of Directors. Copies of these documeratg be obtained, free of charge, from
website. In addition, copies of these documentshei made available free of charge upon writtequest. The public may read and copy
materials filed with the SEC at the SECPublic Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wgstin DC 20549. The public may obt
information on the operation of the Public RefeeeRoom by calling the SEC at 1-800-SBE830. The SEC also maintains an internet site
contains reports, proxy and information statemants other information regarding issuers that féeiqdic and other reports electronically v
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The addfabsat site is www.sec.gov. The information aable on or through our website is n
part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and shaudt be relied upon.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During 2012, we received approximately $10.2 milliof gross proceeds from the exercise of warranfsutchase approximately 3.8 mill
shares of the Comparsycommon stock and $0.7 million of gross proceeas fthe exercise of options to purchase approxim@&e million
shares of the Company’s common stock.

On June 27, 2012, the Company entered into a LodnSacurity Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) wikford Finance LLC (“Oxfordy
and Horizon Technology Finance Corporation (“HonJo The Credit Agreement provides for a secured teram lof up to $10 million, wit
50% of any loans to be funded by Oxford and 50%etdunded by Horizon. The aggregate loan amountmeagdvanced in two tranches o
million each. The first tranche (the “Term A Loarf) $5 million was made available to the Companylone 27, 2012 and the second tra
(the “Term B Loan")was to be made available, if at all, during theqgebeginning on the date that the Company achipesitive data in i
Phase Il clinical trial of RFA and ThermoDox@é HEAT study) and ending on March 31, 2013. @nuary 31, 2013, the Comp:s
announced it did not meet the primary endpoinhefHHEAT study, therefore the Term B Loan will netdrawn down.

The Term A Loan is scheduled to mature on Octolier2015. The proceeds of the Credit Agreement béllused to fund the Compaay’
working capital and general corporate purposes. dliigations under the Credit Agreement are seclmedubstantially all assets of
Company other than its intellectual property andaie other agreedpon exclusions. The Term A Loan bears interesd fiked rate ¢
11.75%. For an initial period extending for the MeA Loan through May 1, 2013, the Company is omlguired to make interest payme
after which the Company is required to make consezequal monthly payments of principle and ins¢te each lender as calculated purs
to the Credit Agreement. The Company was also atdijto pay other customary facility fees for aitréacility of this size and type.

As a fee in connection with the Credit Agreemelm¢, Company issued warrants to Horizon and Oxfoggtchase the number of shares o
Companys common stock equal to 3% of each loan amountéd/by the exercise price equal to $2.92 per shdreh is calculated as t
average NASDAQ closing price of Celsion common Istfor the three days prior to the funding of tharioamount. This results in 51,:
warrant shares issuable in connection with the TArimoan. The warrants are immediately exercisablecish or by net exercise and
expire seven years after their issuance.

RECENT EVENTS

On January 31, 2013, we announced that ThermoDox@&mbination with RFA did not meet the primarydpoint of the HEAT study
patients with hepatocellular carcinoma, also knasmprimary liver cancer. Specifically, we deterndinafter conferring with the DMC, that 1
HEAT study did not meet the goal of demonstratirgspasive evidence of clinical effectiveness thatla form the basis for regulatc
approval in the population chosen for the HEAT gtuthe HEAT study was designed to show a 33 peroeptovement in PFS with |
percent power and a p-value = 0.05. In the triakfmoDox® was weltolerated with no unexpected serious adverse ev@rgswill continue
following the patients enrolled in the HEAT studythe secondary endpoint, overall survival.

Hisun technology development contr

On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whigbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5 million to support ouredepment of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other tecthsigpport i
relation to a regulatory filing by Hisun with thé&BA for approval of ThermoDox&r manufacturing and sale in mainland China, H&iegg
and Macau. On January 18, 2013, we also entetedimexclusive option agreement with Hisun, teahla at any time by Hisun, under wt
we granted Hisun an option to enter into an exetuicense agreement with us for the manufactuaimg commercialization of ThermoD®x



with respect to all indications in the China temt under the terms and conditions set forth in ¢kelusive option agreement and o
customary terms and conditions to be set fortiénlicense agreement, if any. Hisun agreed taugsagn additional $5 million within sixty de
after the signing of the exclusive option agreemiérit has not been terminated within such timei@eér The exclusive option agreem
contemplated payments of an upfront license feksstaine payments and royalties to us if the exetubtense agreement were entered into.
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Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 ThatmoDox®in combination with RFA did not meet the primarydpnoint of the Pha:
1l clinical trial for primary liver cancer, Hisuglected to terminate the exclusive option agreerardtnot to pursue the option to enter int
exclusive license agreement with us for the Chamatbry, which termination took effect as of Fetry 1, 2013. As a result of the terminat
we will not receive the additional $5 million paynteor any future payment originally contemplatedtbg exclusive option agreement.
technology development contract will remain in effeshile Hisun and we continue to collaborate arel @valuating next steps in relatior
ThermoDox®, which include the sudroup analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienth@Phase Il clinical trial for primary liver cegr an
other activities to further the development of TheDox® for mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.

“At-the-market” Offerings

On February 1, 2013, the Company entered into atrGited Equity OfferingSM Sales Agreement (the “ATM Agreementilith Canto
Fitzgerald & Co., as sales agent (“Cantogirsuant to which Celsion may offer and sell, frime to time, through Cantor, shares of
common stock having an aggregate offering pricapfo $25.0 million (the “ATM Shares”)The ATM Shares will be issued pursuant to
Company’s previously filed and effective RegiswatiStatement on Form $the base prospectus dated September 14, 204@,af part «
such Registration Statement, and the prospectysiesupnt dated February 1, 2013, filed by the Compaith the Securities and Exchal
Commission. Under the Agreement, Cantor may seMAShares by any method deemed to be an “at-theetiaokfering as defined in Ru
415 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933amended, including sales made directly on The DIXG Capital Market, on any ott
existing trading market for the our common stock@or through a market maker. From February 1,32through February 25, 2013,
Company sold and issued 5,381,670 ATM shares uhdehTM Agreement, receiving approximately $6.8lioil in net proceeds.

Celsion intends to use the net proceeds from tfezinf) for general corporate purposes, includirepagch and development activities, ca
expenditures and working capital. The Companyoisabligated to sell any ATM Shares under the ATrdement. Subject to the terms
conditions of the ATM Agreement, Cantor will usentoercially reasonable efforts, consistent withnissmal trading and sales practices
applicable state and federal law, rules and reguigstand the rules of The NASDAQ Capital Marketstdl ATM Shares from time to tir
based upon the Compasyinstructions, including any price, time or simmils or other customary parameters or conditioe$siBn ma
impose. In addition, pursuant to the terms and itioms of the ATM Agreement and subject to the rimstions of Celsion, Cantor may ¢
ATM Shares by any other method permitted by lawiuding in privately negotiated transactions.

The ATM Agreement will terminate upon the earliér(ip the sale of Shares under the ATM Agreementiitaan aggregate offering price
$25.0 million and (i) the termination of the ATMgheement by Cantor or the Company. The ATM Agreemay be terminated by Cantol
Celsion at any time upon 10 days' notice to thempgarty, or by Cantor at any time in certain anstances, including the occurrence

material adverse change in Celsion. The Compafflypay Cantor a commission of 3.0% of the aggregmtess proceeds from each sal
ATM Shares and has agreed to provide Cantor witttotmary indemnification and contribution rights.eT@ompany also agreed to reimbi
Cantor for legal fees and disbursements, not teeexkc$50,000 in the aggregate, in connection witeramg into the ATM Agreement.

connection with the preferred stock offering disad below, the Company agreed to not sell any ATdr&s for a period of one year fr
February 26, 2013.

Registered Direct Offerin

On February 22, 2013, the Company entered intocarfies Purchase Agreement with certain instingioinvestors, pursuant to which
Company agreed to sell, in a registered offerimgaggregate of 15,000.00422 shares of its Seri@%/Aconvertible preferred stock and
warrants to purchase shares of its common stoclgrf@ggregate purchase price of approximatelydbitilion (the Preferred Stock Offerin
The closing of the Preferred Stock Offering occdrom February 26, 2013, in which the Company rembiapproximately $15.0 million
gross proceeds. Subject to certain ownership ltroita, shares of Series A 0% convertible prefestedk are convertible, at the option of
holder thereof, into an aggregate of up to 12,08 ghares of common stock, and the warrants areisable to purchase an aggregate of |
6,036,219 shares of common stock. Each warranahasxercise price of $1.18 per share, equal telising bid price of common stock
February 21, 2013. The warrants are immediatelycésa@ble and expire five years after its issuareeof March 15, 2013, the Company
issued an aggregate of 8,018,112 shares of comtook spon conversion of 9,963 shares of the S&i@% convertible preferred stock.
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Warrant and option exercises

During the first quarter of 2013 thus far, we reeéli approximately $0.4 million of gross proceedsrirthe exercise of warrants and optior
purchase 120,516 shares of the Company’s commok. sto

We believe that our cash and investment resoufc8@31 million on hand at December 31, 2012, a6 agethe $26 million of net proceeds
Company collectively received thus far in the figstarter of 2013 from warrant exercises, the refandable payment from Hisun under
technology development agreement, the ATM Agreemamd the Preferred Stock Offering, is sufficient fttnd operations throu
2015. However, our future capital requirements @épend upon numerous unpredictable factors, diaty without limitation, the cost, timii
and outcomes of clinical studies and regulatoryesgs of our proprietary drug candidates, our effootimplement new collaborations, licer
and strategic transactions, general and admirigrakpenses, capital expenditures and other useasb. To complete the development
commercialization of our products, we will needréise substantial amounts of additional capitduttd our operations. We do not have
committed sources of financing and cannot give rasge that alternate funding will be available itinaely manner, on acceptable terms «
all. We may need to pursue dilutive equity finaggnsuch as the issuance of shares of common stogkertible debt or other convertible
exercisable securities, which financings couldtdilihe percentage ownership of our current comntarkbolders and could significantly lov
the market value of our common stock.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following is a summary of the risk factors, artainties and assumptions that we believe are retestant to our business. These are fa
that, individually or in the aggregate, we thinkulwbcause our actual results to differ significgritbm anticipated or historical results and
forward4ooking statements. You should understand that iidt possible to predict or identify all such €ast Consequently, you should
consider the following to be a complete discussibrall potential risks or uncertainties. Moreovese operate in a competitive and rap
changing environment. New factors emerge from tioneéme and it is not possible to predict the intpaf all of these factors on our busin
financial condition or results of operations. Wedeartake no obligation to publicly update forwdodking statements, whether as a rest
new information, future events, or otherwise. Yoa advised, however, to consult any further disglesve make on related subjects in
reports on forms 10-Q and 8-K filed with the SEC.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
We have a history of significant losses from contining operations and expect to continue such lossks the foreseeable future.

Since our inception, our expenses have substgngatieeded our revenues, resulting in continuirsgde and an accumulated deficit of 4
million at December 31, 2012. For the year endedeinber 31, 2012, we incurred a net loss of $2@l®m Because we presently have
product revenues and we are committed to continaimgproduct research, development and commeratadiz programs, we will continue
experience significant operating losses unless wtd we complete the development of ThermoDoa@®d other new products and th
products have been clinically tested, approvedhbyi.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and sssfully marketed.

Drug development is an inherently uncertain proceswith a high risk of failure at every stage of deviepment. Our lead drug candidate
failed to meets its primary endpoint in the Phasell HEAT study.

We have a number of drug candidates in researcldenelopment ranging from the early discovery reseahase through preclinical test
and clinical trials. Preclinical testing and cliaidrials are long, expensive and highly uncertaimcesses and failure can unexpectedly oct
any stage of clinical development. Drug developnigwery risky. It will take us several years taygalete clinical trials. The start or end ¢
clinical trial is often delayed or halted due tanbing regulatory requirements, manufacturing elmgiés, required clinical trial administrai
actions, slower than anticipated patient enrolimenéanging standards of care, availability or plewee of use of a comparator drug or reqt
prior therapy, clinical outcomes including insuiéiot efficacy, safety concerns, or our own finahc@nstraints.
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On January 31, 2013, we announced that our leatlptdhermoDox@n combination with radiofrequency ablation faiedmeet the prima
endpoint of the Phase Il clinical trial for prinyaliver cancer (the HEAT study). We have not cortgaddeour analysis of the data and do
know the extent to which, if any, the failure oféfmoDox®to meet its primary endpoint in the Phase 1l taauld impact our other ongoi
studies of ThermoDox®. ThermoDox® also being evaluated in a Phase Il clinical fva colorectal liver metastasis, a Phase |l clitrial
for recurrent chest wall breast cancer and otheclimical studies. Even with success in precliniesting and previously completed clin
trials, the risk of clinical failure for any druguedidate remains high prior to regulatory approkakn if ThermoDox@has positive results in
Phase Il clinical trials, there is a substantiakrihat it will fail to have sufficiently positiveesults in Phase 1ll clinical trials with regarc
efficacy, safety or other clinical outcomes. Onenarre of our clinical studies could fail at any ¢éinas evidenced by the failure of ThermoB®ox
to meet its primary endpoint in the HEAT study. Tladure of one or more of our drug candidates evelopment programs could hav
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

If we do not obtain or maintain FDA and foreign regulatory approvals for our drug candidates on a timéy basis, or at all, or if the terms
of any approval impose significant restrictions orlimitations on use, we will be unable to sell thosproducts and our business, results
operations and financial condition will be negativly affected.

To obtain regulatory approvals from the FDA andcefgn regulatory agencies, we must conduct clinidals demonstrating that our prodt
are safe and effective. We may need to amend ogdoals or the FDA and/or foreign regulatory agesanay require us to perform additic
trials beyond those we planned. This process gépdakes a number of years and requires the aipae of substantial resources. The 1
required for completing testing and obtaining appie is uncertain, and the FDA and foreign regulatmencies have substantial discretio
any phase of development, to terminate clinicadlistsi require additional clinical development dnesttesting, delay or withhold registrat
and marketing approval and mandate product withdigvincluding recalls. In addition, undesirabléeseffects caused by our drug candic
could cause us or regulatory authorities to infggrdelay or halt clinical trials and could resunlia more restricted label or the delay or deni
regulatory approval by regulatory authorities. Eifeme receive regulatory approval of a producg #pproval may limit the indicated uses
which the drug may be marketethe failure to obtain timely regulatory approvalprbduct candidates, any product marketing limotagior
product withdrawal would negatively impact our mesis, results of operations and financial condition

We do not expect to generate significant revenuerfthe foreseeable future.

We have devoted our resources to developing a ravergtion of products and will not be able to mattkese products until we he
completed clinical trials and obtain all necesggwyernmental approvals. Our lead product candiddtermoDox®,is still in various stages
development and trials and cannot be marketed wilhave completed clinical testing and obtainedessary governmental appro
Following our announcement on January 31, 2013ttleaHEAT study failed to meet its primary endpahiprogression free survival, we v
continue to follow the patients enrolled in the Hetudy to the secondary endpoint, overall survivethiermoDox®is currently also beir
evaluated in Phase Il clinical trials and othercfinical studies. We do not expect to realize ewenues from product sales in the next se
years, if at all. Accordingly, our revenue sourees, and will remain, extremely limited until oproduct candidates are clinically tes
approved by the FDA or foreign regulatory ageneied successfully marketed. We cannot guaranteaittyadf our product candidates will
successfully tested, approved by the FDA or foremgulatory agency or marketed, successfully oemtise, at any time in the foresee:
future or at all.

We will need to raise substantial additional capithto fund our planned future operations, and we maybe unable to secure such capit
without dilutive financing transactions. If we are not able to raise additional capital, we may not bable to complete the developmer
testing and commercialization of our product candichtes.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately $2Bomin cash, cash equivalents and sherm investments. We have substantial fu
capital requirements to continue our research aweldpment activities and advance our drug caneédtitrough various development sta
For example, ThermoDox® being evaluated in a Phase Il clinical trial ¢otorectal liver metastasis, a Phase Il clinical for recurrent che
wall breast cancer and other preclinical studieg. WMl conduct additional analyses of the data friva HEAT study to assess the fu
strategic value of ThermoDox® and are performinig-group analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienthénHEAT study and other activit
for further development of ThermoDoxf®r mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau. To corgpthe development and commercializatio
our product candidates, we will need to raise @il amounts of additional capital to fund ouergiions. We do not have any commi
sources of financing and cannot assure you thatrate funding will be available in a timely mannen acceptable terms or at all. We |
need to pursue dilutive equity financings, suchhasissuance of shares of common stock, convetrtigle or other convertible or exercise
securities. Such dilutive equity financings coultlitg the percentage ownership of our current commstockholders and could significar
lower the market value of our common stock. In #ddj a financing could result in the issuance eWnsecurities that may have rigl
preferences or privileges senior to those of oistiexy stockholders.
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If we cannot raise additional capital, we may bgureed to delay, reduce or eliminate certain asgpetbur operations or attempt to obtain ft
through unfavorable arrangements with partnerstiers that may force us to relinquish rights totaiar of our technologies, products
potential markets or that could impose onerousnfifed or other terms. Furthermore, if we cannotdfumur ongoing development and of
operating requirements, particularly those assediatith our obligations to conduct clinical trialeder our licensing agreements, we will b
breach of these licensing agreements and couldftiverlose our license rights, which could haveamal adverse effects on our business.

We have no internal sales or marketing capabilitylf we are unable to create sales, marketing and disbution capabilities or enter into
alliances with others possessing such capabilities perform these functions, we will not be able tcommercialize our products
successfully.

We currently have no sales, marketing or distrimuttapabilities. We intend to market our produiétand when such products are approves
commercialization by the FDA and foreign regulatagencies, either directly or through other striatadiances and distribution arrangems
with third parties. If we decide to market our puots directly, we will need to commit significamidncial and managerial resources to dev
a marketing and sales force with technical expemisd with supporting distribution, administratismd compliance capabilities. If we rely
third parties with such capabilities to market puwducts, we will need to establish and maintairingaship arrangements, and there can |
assurance that we will be able to enter into tpady marketing or distribution arrangements oregtable terms or at all. To the extent tha
do enter into such arrangements, we will be depende our marketing and distribution partners. hteeing into thirdparty marketing ¢
distribution arrangements, we expect to incur gigamt additional expense and there can be no asserthat such third parties will estab
adequate sales and distribution capabilities suseessful in gaining market acceptance for outlyicts and services.

Our business depends on license agreements withrhparties to permit us to use patented technologg The loss of any of our rights
under these agreements could impair our ability talevelop and market our products.

Our success will depend, in a substantial partpumability to maintain our rights under licenseemments granting us rights to use pate
technologies. We have entered into license agretsmweth Duke University, under which we have exslasrights to commercialize medi
treatment products and procedures based on Dukermbsensitive liposome technology. The Duke Univer§itgnse agreement contain
license fee, royalty and/or research support pionss testing and regulatory milestones, and gbeefiormance requirements that we must |
by certain deadlines. Additionally, we have a joiesearch agreement with Philips Healthcare, asidini of Royal Philips Electronics,
evaluate the combination of Philips’ high intenditgused ultrasound (HIFU) with ThermoDox® determine the potential of this combina
to treat a broad range of cancers. If we breachpainyisions of the license and research agreemesgtsnay our ability to use the subj
technology, as well as compensation for our effortdeveloping or exploiting the technology. Anychuoss of rights and access to technao
could have a material adverse effect on our busines

Further, we cannot guarantee that any patent cgrddchnology rights licensed to us by others witk be challenged or circumven
successfully by third parties, or that the rightanged will provide adequate protection. We mayréguired to alter any of our poten
products or processes, or enter into a licenseagdicensing fees to a third party or cease aedativities. There can be no assurance thi
can obtain a license to any technology that werdete we need on reasonable terms, if at all, at ¢te could develop or otherwise ob
alternate technology. If a license is not availadmlecommercially reasonable terms or at all, owsilmss, results of operations, and finar
condition could be significantly harmed and we nb@yprevented from developing and commercializirgy ghoduct. Litigation, which cou
result in substantial costs, may also be necessagyforce any patents issued to or licensed byrus determine the scope and validit
others’ claimed proprietary rights.

We rely on trade secret protection and other unpateted proprietary rights for important proprietary t echnologies, and any loss of such
rights could harm our business, results of operatias and financial condition.

We rely on trade secrets and confidential infororathat we seek to protect, in part, by confiddityiamgreements with our corporate partn
collaborators, employees and consultants. We caaswmire you that these agreements are adequatatéotpur trade secrets and confide
information or will not be breached or, if breachede will have adequate remedies. Furthermore, retimay independently deve
substantially equivalent confidential and propmigt@mformation or otherwise gain access to ouréradcrets or disclose such technology.

loss of trade secret protection or other unpateptedrietary rights could harm our business, resafltoperations and financial condition.
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Our products may infringe patent rights of others,which may require costly litigation and, if we arenot successful, could cause us
pay substantial damages or limit our ability to cormercialize our products.

Our commercial success depends on our ability &¥aip without infringing the patents and other petpry rights of third parties. There n
be third party patents that relate to our prodwmtsl technology. We may unintentionally infringe opwalid patent rights of thi
parties. Although we currently are not involvedainy material litigation involving patents, a thipdrty patent holder may assert a clair
patent infringement against us in the future. Alggively, we may initiate litigation against therthparty patent holder to request that a ¢
declare that we are not infringing the third pastyatent and/or that the third pastypatent is invalid or unenforceable. If a clain
infringement is asserted against us and is suades®id therefore we are found to infringe, we dobk required to pay damages
infringement, including treble damages if it isefatined that we knew or became aware of such afpatel we failed to exercise due car
determining whether or not we infringed the patéhtve have supplied infringing products to thirdrpes or have licensed third partie:
manufacture, use or market infringing productsmay be obligated to indemnify these third part@sdamages they may be required to pi
the patent holder and for any losses they may isustée can also be prevented from selling or coneiaézing any of our products that use
infringing technology in the future, unless we abta license from such third party. A license may be available from such third party
commercially reasonable terms, or may not be availat all. Any modification to include a namfringing technology may not be possible ¢
possible may be difficult or timeensuming to develop, and require revalidation,cividould delay our ability to commercialize our guots
Any infringement action asserted against us, eVemei are ultimately successful in defending agagsth action, would likely delay t
regulatory approval process of our products, hatm apmpetitive position, be expensive and requive time and attention of our k
management and technical personnel.

We rely on third parties to conduct all of our clinical trials. If these third parties are unable tocarry out their contractual duties in a
manner that is consistent with our expectations, eoply with budgets and other financial obligations © meet expected deadlines, v
may not receive certain development milestone paymts or be able to obtain regulatory approval for orcommercialize our produc
candidates in a timely or cost-effective manner.

We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on thpatty clinical research organizations to conductdinical trials. Because we do not conc
our own clinical trials, we must rely on the effodf others and cannot always control or predicueately the timing of such trials, the c«
associated with such trials or the procedures dhatfollowed for such trials. We do not expect ign#icantly increase our personnel in
foreseeable future and may continue to rely ordtparties to conduct all of our future clinicabts. If these third parties are unable to carn
their contractual duties or obligations in a marthet is consistent with our expectations or mepeeted deadlines, if they do not carry ou
trials in accordance with budgeted amounts, ifdhality or accuracy of the clinical data they obt& compromised due to their failure
adhere to our clinical protocols or for other reesar if they fail to maintain compliance with dippble government regulations and stand;
our clinical trials may be extended, delayed omieated or may become significantly expensive, vay mot receive development milest
payments when expected or at all, and we may noalite to obtain regulatory approval for or sucadbsfcommercialize our produ
candidates.

Our business is subject to numerous and evolving ate, federal and foreign regulations and we may nobe able to secure th
government approvals needed to develop and marketio products.

Our research and development activities, glirgical tests and clinical trials, and ultimatehe manufacturing, marketing and labeling of
products, are all subject to extensive regulatiprie FDA and foreign regulatory agencies. Blieical testing and clinical trial requireme
and the regulatory approval process typically tad@rs and require the expenditure of substantsuees. Additional government regula
may be established that could prevent or delaylatgy approval of our product candidates. Delaysegjections in obtaining regulatc
approvals would adversely affect our ability to epercialize any product candidates and our abititge¢nerate product revenues or royalties.

The FDA and foreign regulatory agencies requird tha safety and efficacy of product candidatesiggported through adequate and wel
controlled clinical trials. If the results of piatclinical trials do not establish the safety a&fificacy of our product candidates to the satisfa
of the FDA and other foreign regulatory agencies, will not receive the approvals necessary to ntaskeh product candidates. Eve
regulatory approval of a product candidate is grdnthe approval may include significant limitasoan the indicated uses for which
product may be marketed.
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We are subject to the periodic inspection of oimic4l trials, facilities, procedures and operasi@md/or the testing of our products by the |
to determine whether our systems and processéiso®se of our vendors and suppliers, are in compdiamth FDA regulations. Following su
inspections, the FDA may issue notices on Form &&3 warning letters that could cause us to modifyain activities identified during t
inspection. A Form 483 notice is generally issuetha conclusion of an FDA inspection and listsditians the FDA inspectors believe n
violate FDA regulations. FDA guidelines specify ttelawarning letter is issued only for violations “eégulatory significancefor which the
failure to adequately and promptly achieve corogctnay be expected to result in an enforcementracti

Failure to comply with the FDA and other governnaémégulations can result in fines, unanticipatethpliance expenditures, recall or sei:
of products, total or partial suspension of progucend/or distribution, suspension of the FBAéview of product applications, enforcen
actions, injunctions and criminal prosecution. Unckertain circumstances, the FDA also has the aityhio revoke previously granted prod
approvals. Although we have internal compliancegprms, if these programs do not meet regulatorp@gstandards or if our compliance
deemed deficient in any significant way, it coult/a a material adverse effect on the Company.

We are also subject to recordkeeping and reporgégglations. These regulations require, among dtfiegs, the reporting to the FDA
adverse events alleged to have been associatedhwitise of a product or in connection with cerfaimduct failures.

Labeling and promotional activities also are retpdaby the FDA. We must also comply with recorceiag requirements as well
requirements to report certain adverse events winglour products. The FDA can impose other poatketing controls on us as well as
products including, but not limited to, restricttoon sale and use, through the approval procegsat®ns and otherwise.

Many states in which we do or may do businessnowrhich our products may be sold, if at all, impdisensing, labeling or certificatic
requirements that are in addition to those impdsethe FDA. There can be no assurance that oneooe states will not impose regulation:
requirements that have a material adverse effeouombility to sell our products.

In many of the foreign countries in which we mayldsiness or in which our products may be soldwillebe subject to regulation by natiol
governments and supranational agencies as well &xcal agencies affecting, among other thingsdpod standards, packaging requirem
labeling requirements, import restrictions, taréggulations, duties and tax requirements. Therebeamo assurance that one or more countri
agencies will not impose regulations or requireraéinat could have a material adverse effect orability to sell our products.

Legislative and regulatory changes affecting the tathcare industry could adversely affect our businss.

Political, economic and regulatory influences aubjscting the healthcare industry to potential ameéntal changes that could substant
affect our results of operations. There have te&umber of government and private sector initeegtiduring the last few years to limit
growth of healthcare costs, including price redalat competitive pricing, coverage and payment giedi, comparative effectiveness
therapies, technology assessments and maragedarrangements. It is uncertain whether or vemgnlegislative proposals will be adopte:
what actions federal, state, or private payorshimalth care treatment and services may take ironsgpto any healthcare reform proposa
legislation. We cannot predict the effect healthamforms may have on our business and we can mdf@ssurances that any of these refi
will not have a material adverse effect on our bess. These actual and potential changes are gahsimarketplace to put increased empl
on the delivery of more cosfffective treatments. In addition, uncertainty rémaegarding proposed significant reforms to th8.Wealth cal
system.

The success of our products may be harmed if the gernment, private health insurers and other third-party payers do not provide
sufficient coverage or reimbursement.

Our ability to commercialize our new cancer treattmgystems successfully will depend in part ondgktent to which reimbursement for
costs of such products and related treatmentsbailavailable from government health administratothorities, private health insurers
other thirdparty payors. The reimbursement status of newlyrama medical products is subject to significantenmainty. We cann
guarantee that adequate thparty insurance coverage will be available foraggtablish and maintain price levels sufficiemtus to realize ¢
appropriate return on our investment in developirgyv therapies. Government, private health insuegrd other thirdsarty payors ai
increasingly attempting to contain healthcare cbstdimiting both coverage and the level of reimgmment for new therapeutic prodt
approved for marketing by the FDA. Accordingly, evécoverage and reimbursement are provided bygouent, private health insurers
third-party payors for uses of our products, market decee of these products would be adversely affeiftdte reimbursement availal
proves to be unprofitable for health care providers
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Our products may not achieve sufficient acceptancey the medical community to sustain our business.

The commercial success of our products will depgmsh their acceptance by the medical communitythind-party payers as clinically usef
cost effective and safe. Any or our drug candidatag prove not to be effective in practice. If iegtand clinical practice do not confirm the
safety and efficacy of our product candidates @nef further testing and clinical practice prodymssitive results but the medical community
does not view these new forms of treatment as téffeand desirable, our efforts to market our needpcts may fail, which would have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

The commercial potential of a drug candidate in deslopment is difficult to predict. If the market size for a new drug is significantly
smaller than we anticipate, it could significantlyand negatively impact our revenue, results of opetens and financial condition.

It is very difficult to predict the commercial pot#al of product candidates due to important facteuch as safety and efficacy compare
other available treatments, including potentialegendrug alternatives with similar efficacy prefil, changing standards of care, third
payor reimbursement standards, patient and physprieferences, the availability of competitive aiaives that may emerge either during
long drug development process or after commeraotabduction, and the availability of generic versoof our successful product candid
following approval by government health authoritiesed on the expiration of regulatory exclusieityour inability to prevent generic versit
from coming to market by asserting our patentslué to one or more of these risks the market piaiefior a drug candidate is lower than
anticipated, it could significantly and negativétypact the revenue potential for such drug candidatd would adversely affect our busin
financial condition and results of operations.

Technologies for the treatment of cancer are subjéto rapid change, and the development of treatmenrdtrategies that are more
effective than our technologies could render our @hnologies obsolete.

Various methods for treating cancer currently arel in the future are expected to be, the subjeextensive research and development. N
possible treatments that are being researchedicdessfully developed, may not require, or may kupgpthe use of our technologies.
successful development and acceptance of any on@ug of these alternative forms of treatment coslter our technology obsolete ¢
cancer treatment method.

We may not be able to hire or retain key officers oemployees that we need to implement our businestrategy and develop our
products and business.

Our success depends significantly on the contiragedributions of our executive officers, scientifiad technical personnel and consult:
and on our ability to attract additional personaelwe seek to implement our business strategy ewelap our products and businesses. Di
our operating history, we have assigned many @sseesponsibilities to a relatively small numbéiradividuals. However, as our business
the demands on our key employees expand, we haam bhed will continue to be, required to recruititidnal qualified employees. T
competition for such qualified personnel is intengrd the loss of services of certain key persownebur inability to attract additior
personnel to fill critical positions could advesselffect our business. Further, we do not carryy“k&n” insurance on any of our person
Therefore, loss of the services of key personnelldvaot be ameliorated by the receipt of the prdsdeom such insurance.

Our success will depend in part on our ability to gow and diversify, which in turn will require that we manage and control our growth
effectively.

Our business strategy contemplates growth andsification. Our ability to manage growth effectiyetill require that we continue to expe
funds to improve our operational, financial and agement controls, reporting systems and procedimeaddition, we must effective
expand, train and manage our employees. We willifsble to manage our business effectively if wewarable to alleviate the strain
resources caused by growth in a timely and suaglessinner. There can be no assurance that we willlile to manage our growth ar
failure to do so could have a material adverseceffa our business.
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If we engage in acquisitions, reorganizations or kginess combinations, we will incur a variety of riks that could adversely affect ou
business operations or our stockholders.

We may consider strategic alternatives intendedutther the development of our business, which nragtude acquiring business
technologies or products or entering into a busim@snbination with another company. If we do pursueh a strategy, we could, among c
things:

» issue equity securities that would dilute our cortockholders’ percentage ownership;
« incur substantial debt that may place strains aroperations;

» spend substantial operational, financial and mamagé resources in integrating new businesses, peesdntellectual propert
technologies and products;

« assume substantial actual or contingent liabilities
« reprioritize our development programs and evenedaselopment and commercialization of our druglaiates;
« suffer the loss of key personnel, or

« merge with, or otherwise enter into a business é¢oation with, another company in which our stocktesk would receive cash
shares of the other company or a combination df batterms that certain of our stockholders maydeeim desirable.

Although we intend to evaluate and consider difiesgrategic alternatives, we have no agreemenisaerstandings with respect to any
acquisition, reorganization or business combinagiotiis time.

We face intense competition and the failure to congie effectively could adversely affect our abilityo develop and market our products

There are many companies and other institutionaged)in research and development of various teogred for cancer treatment products
seek treatment outcomes similar to those that weparsuing. We believe that the level of intergsbothers in investigating the potential
possible competitive treatments and alternativbertelogies will continue and may increase. Potertahpetitors engaged in all areas of ca
treatment research in the United States and othertges include, among others, major pharmacdutpacialized technology companies,
universities and other research institutions. Mdsbur current and potential competitors have sarislly greater financial, technical, hun
and other resources, and may also have far gresperience than do we, both in plaical testing and human clinical trials of nevoguct:
and in obtaining FDA and other regulatory approv@ee or more of these companies or institutiondcceucceed in developing product:
other technologies that are more effective thanptfoelucts and technologies that we have been odereloping, or which would render «
technology and products obsolete and nompetitive. Furthermore, if we are permitted tonooence commercial sales of any of our prod
we will also be competing, with respect to manufdog efficiency and marketing, with companies mavsubstantially greater resources
experience in these areas.

We may be subject to significant product liabilityclaims and litigation.

Our business exposes us to potential product ifighilsks inherent in the testing, manufacturingdamarketing of human therapel
products. We presently have product liability irsce limited to $10 million per incident and $10lion annually. If we were to be subject
a claim in excess of this coverage or to a claimaovered by our insurance and the claim succeesledyould be required to pay the cli
with our own limited resources, which could havseaere adverse effect on our business. Whetheotova are ultimately successful in
product liability litigation, such litigation woultharm the business by diverting the attention awburces of our management, consul
substantial amounts of our financial resources landlamaging our reputation. Additionally, we mayt he able to maintain our prod
liability insurance at an acceptable cost, if &t al
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR SECURITIES

We do not generate operating income and will requi additional financing in the future. If additional capital is not available, we may
have to curtail or cease operations.

Our business currently does not generate the axgtsgaary to finance our operations. Since our trmgmur expenses have substantially
exceeded our revenues, resulting in continuingelwssid an accumulated deficit of $151 million at&weber 31, 2012. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, we incurred a net loss of $2@l®n. We presently have no product revenue. Wy meed to raise additional capital to
fund research and development and to develop amdhexcialize our products. Our future capital nedgjsend on many factors, including the
scope, duration and expenditures associated witklimical trials, the outcome of potential licengitransactions, if any, competing
technological developments and the regulatory aggbnarocess for our products.

We may seek to raise necessary funds through pobpdvate equity offerings, debt financings odgidnal strategic alliances and licensing
arrangements. We may not be able to obtain additiomancing on terms favorable to us, if at aheTfailure of the HEAT study to demonsti
clinical effectiveness, in addition to general ner&onditions, may make it very difficult for usgeek financing from the capital markets. We
may be required to relinquish rights to our tecbg@s or products, or grant licenses on termsatenot favorable to us, in order to raise
additional funds through alliance, joint venturdioensing arrangements. If adequate funds araveitable, we may have to delay, reduce or
eliminate one or more of our research or develogmmyrams and reduce overall overhead expensé. Swmnts could cause our independent
registered public accounting firm to indicate tthere may be substantial doubt about our abilityaiatinue as a going concern in future
periods.

The market price of our common stock has been, anthay continue to be volatile and fluctuate significatly, which could result in
substantial losses for investors and subject us 8ecurities class action litigation.

The trading price for our common stock has beed, @@ expect it to continue to be, volatile. Ouruly 31, 2013 announcement that
HEAT study failed to meet its primary endpoint hasulted in significant volatility and a steep deelin the price of our common stock, a l¢
of decline that could result in securities litigati Plaintiffs’ securities litigation firms have publicly announcttht they are investigati
potential securities fraud claims that they mayhviis make against us. The price at which our comstock trades depends upon a numb
factors, including our historical and anticipatgokemting results, our financial situation, annoumerts of technological innovations or r
products by us or our competitors, our ability mability to raise the additional capital we may chemd the terms on which we raise it,
general market and economic conditions. Some &ktfi@ctors are beyond our control. Broad marketdlations may lower the market price
our common stock and affect the volume of tradingour stock, regardless of our financial conditiogesults of operations, business
prospect. The closing price of our common stodk &igh price of $4.23 and a low price of $1.6%ie 52week period ended December
2011, a high price of $8.83 and a low price of $lir6the 52week period ended December 31 2012 and a high pfi$8.35 and a low price
$0.97 from January 1, 2013 through March 15, 2@t8ong the factors that may cause the market pricipcommon stock to fluctuate
the risks described in this “Risk Factors” sectionl other factors, including:

° fluctuations in our quarterly operating resultghe operating results of our competitors;

° variance in our financial performance from theeotations of investors;

° changes in the estimation of the future sizegmo@vith rate of our markets;

° changes in accounting principles or changestarjmetations of existing principles, which coufteat our financial results;
° failure of our products to achieve or maintairrkeaacceptance or commercial success;

° conditions and trends in the markets we serve;

° changes in general economic, industry and madeditions;

° success of competitive products and services;
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° changes in market valuations or earnings of ounpetitors;

° changes in our pricing policies or the pricindiges of our competitors;

° announcements of significant new products, catgracquisitions or strategic alliances by uswrammpetitors;
° changes in legislation or regulatory policiegqices or actions;

° the commencement or outcome of litigation invedvour company, our general industry or both;

° recruitment or departure of key personnel,

° changes in our capital structure, such as fuisigances of securities or the incurrence of aufthti debt;

° actual or expected sales of our common stockunystwckholders; and

° the trading volume of our common stock.

In addition, the stock markets, in general, the WA®) Capital Market and the market for pharmacelt@mampanies in particular, m
experience a loss of investor confidence. Such déssvestor confidence may result in extreme peaoe volume fluctuations in our comn
stock that are unrelated or disproportionate todperating performance of our business, finanodaldition or results of operations. Th
broad market and industry factors may materiallgththe market price of our common stock and expss® securities class action litigati
Such litigation, even if unsuccessful, could betlya® defend and divert managemeandttention and resources, which could further riadhg
harm our financial condition and results of openadi

Future sales of our common stock in the public mar&t could cause our stock price to fall.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our comstock in the public market, or the percepticat these sales might occur, could def
the market price of our common stock and could impar ability to raise capital through the saleaoiditional equity securities. As of Ma
15, 2013, we had 50,832,933 shares of common siatitanding, all of which shares, other than shamdd by our directors and cert
officers, were eligible for sale in the public merksubject in some cases to compliance with theirements of Rule 144, including the volt
limitations and manner of sale requirements. Initamd all of the shares of common stock issualperuexercise of warrants will be fre
tradable without restriction or further registratiopon issuance.

Our stockholders may experience significant dilutio as a result of future equity offerings or issuanes and exercise of outstandir
options and warrants.

In order to raise additional capital or pursueteg transactions, we may in the future offeryéser sell additional shares of our common ¢
or other securities convertible into or exchangedbl our common stock. Our stockholders may expee significant dilution as a result
future equity offerings or issuance. Investors pasing shares or other securities in the futureldctuave rights superior to existi
stockholders. As of March 15, 2013, we have a figant number of securities convertible into, doaling the purchase of, our common st
including 4,054,326 remaining shares of commonkstssuable upon conversion of our Series A 0% cdible preferred stock issued in

registered direct offering closed on February ZB,3and 13,818,772 shares of common stock issugiole exercise of warrants outstand
3,234,948 options to purchase shares of our comstaek and restricted stock awards outstanding, 2083,974 shares of common st
reserved for future issuance under our stock ineemians. Under the Controlled Equity OfferifigSales Agreement entered into with Ca
Fitzgerald & Co. on February 1, 2013, we may oéfad sell, from time to time through “at-the-markefferings, up to an aggregate of !
million of shares of our common stock. In connettiath the Series A 0% convertible preferred stoffkering, the Company agreed to not
any ATM Shares for a period of one year from Felyr@®, 2013.
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We may be unable to maintain compliance with NASDAVarketplace Rules which could cause our common stk to be delisted fron
The NASDAQ Capital Market. This could result in the lack of a market for our common stock, cause a degase in the value of a
investment in us, and adversely affect our businesBnancial condition and results of operations.

On April 6, 2011, we received notice from The NASQA.sting Qualifications Department that we weré imocompliance with the minimu
Market Value of Listed Securities (MVLS) requireniéor continued listing on The NASDAQ Capital Matkas set forth in NASDAQ Listir
Rule 5550(b)(2) (the Rule), which requires a listednpany to maintain a minimum MVLS of $35 millio®n May 10, 2011, we receive!
letter from NASDAQ stating that our MVLS had bee3b3million or greater for the previous ten conseeubusiness days (from April 26, 2(
to May 9, 2011) and that we had regained compliavittethe Rule.

We cannot guarantee that our MVLS will remain aabove $35 million and if our MVLS again drops hel&35 million, the stock cou
become subject to delisting again. If our commalsis delisted, trading of the stock will mostdik take place on an over-tlieeunter mark
established for unlisted securities, such as thk Bheets or the OTC Bulletin Board. An investdikisly to find it less convenient to sell, ot
obtain accurate quotations in seeking to buy, aumroon stock on an over-tle@unter market, and many investors may not buyetircsi
common stock due to difficulty in accessing ovez-tbbunter markets, or due to policies preventing tfigmm trading in securities not listed
a national exchange or other reasons. In addiisma delisted security, our common stock would uigest to SEC rules regardingenny
stock,” which impose additional disclosure requiegns on brokedealers. The regulations relating to penny stockspled with the typical
higher cost per trade to investors in penny statles to factors such as broker commissions genaisesenting a higher percentage o
price of a penny stock than of a higher pricedlstamuld further limit the ability and willingness investors to trade in our common st
For these reasons and others, delisting would adlyeaffect the liquidity, trading volume and priceour common stock, causing the valu
an investment in us to decrease and having an seheffect on our business, financial condition ezslilts of operations, including our abi
to attract and retain qualified executives and @ygxs and to raise capital.

The adverse capital and credit market conditions aald affect our liquidity.

Adverse capital and credit market conditions cafféct our ability to meet liquidity needs, as wadl our access to capital and cost of ca
The capital and credit markets have experienceeme volatility and disruption in recent years. r@sults of operations, financial conditi
cash flows and capital position could be materiatlyersely affected by continued disruptions indagital and credit markets.

Our ability to use net operating losses to offsetifure taxable income are subject to certain limitaions.

We currently have significant net operating log$¢SLs) that may be used to offset future taxabtmme. In general, under Section 382 o
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the)Cadeorporation that undergoes an “ownership clargsubject to limitations on
ability to utilize its preechange NOLs to offset future taxable income. Du20d.2 and 2011, the Company performed analysesttrdine i
there were changes in ownership, as defined byide882 of the Internal Revenue Code that wouldtlibs ability to utilize certain ni
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Thenfany determined that it experienced an ownershimge, as defined by Section 38:
connection with its registered direct and privatecpment offerings on July 25, 2011. As a reshé, utilization of the Company'federal ta
net operating loss carryforwards generated pridhéoownership change is limited. Future changesumstock ownership, some of which
outside of our control, could result in an ownepstihange under Section 382 of the Code, which wesigdificantly limit our ability to utiliz:
NOLs to offset future taxable inconr

We have never paid dividends on our common stock ithe past and do not anticipate paying cash dividets on our common stock in the
foreseeable future.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oma@muamon stock. We do not anticipate paying arshatividends on our common stocl
the foreseeable future. We currently intend toinetdl available funds and any future earnings undf the development and growth of
business. As a result, capital appreciation, if, afyour common stock will be the sole source ahdar the foreseeable future for holder:
our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents ad Delaware law could prevent or delay a change icontrol.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws maycdisrage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisitiaha stockholder may consider
favorable by authorizing the issuance of “blankaltigoreferred stock. This preferred stock may Iseiésl by our board of directors on such
terms as it determines, without further stockholjgproval. Therefore, our board of directors mayéssuch preferred stock on terms
unfavorable to a potential bidder in the event thatboard of directors opposes a merger or adoprisin addition, our classified board of
directors may discourage such transactions by asing the amount of time necessary to obtain ntgjogpresentation on our board of
directors. Certain other provisions of our bylaws af Delaware law may also discourage, delay evemt a third party from acquiring or
merging with us, even if such action were beneffttiasome, or even a majority, of our stockholders.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

In 2011, the Company executed a lease with BranuyWperating Partnership, L.P. (Brandywine), a ala limited partnership for a 10,¢
square foot premises located in Lawrenceville, Newnsey. In October 2011, the Company relocatedffitses to Lawrenceville, New Jers
from Columbia, Maryland. The lease has a term ®frénths and provides for 6 months rent free, lith first monthly rent payment
approximately $23,000 due in April 2012. Also, @gjuired by the lease, the Company provided Braimywith an irrevocable a
unconditional standby letter of credit for $250,0@tich the Company secured with an escrow dedsts banking institution of this sal
amount. The standby letter of credit will be reediby $50,000 on each of the 19 th , 31 st andd4Banths from the initial term, with t
remaining $100,000 amount remaining until the LeEeen has expired.

We believe our existing facility is suitable andegdate to conduct our business.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently a party to any material lggakeedings.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’'S COMMON EQ UITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price for Our Common Stock

Our Common Stock trades on the NASDAQ Capital Madkeler the symbol “CLSN”. The following table séorth the high and low closing
sale prices for the periods indicated. The quatatiget forth below do not include retail markuparkdowns or commissions.

High Low

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

First Quarter (January 1 — March 31, 2012) $ 222 % 1.64
Second Quarter (April 1 — June 30, 2012) $ 313 $ 1.76
Third Quarter (July 1 — September 30, 2012) $ 590 $ 2.85
Fourth Quarter (October 1 — December 31, 2012) $ 883 $ 4.30
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

First Quarter (January 1 — March 31, 2011) $ 297 $ 2.18
Second Quarter (April 1 — June 30, 2011) $ 337 $ 2.16
Third Quarter (July 1 — September 30, 2011) $ 423 $ 2.50
Fourth Quarter (October 1 — December 31, 2011) $ 3.67 $ 1.69
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

First Quarter (January 1 — March 31, 2010) $ 469 $ 2.76
Second Quarter (April 1 — June 30, 2010) $ 544 $ 3.13
Third Quarter (July 1 — September 30, 2010) $ 342 % 2.97
Fourth Quarter (October 1 — December 31, 2010) $ 3.63 $ 2.01

On March 15, 2013, the last reported sale pric@fwrCommon Stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market 8&a€6. As of March 15, 2013, there
were approximately 12,500 stockholders of recordwfCommon Stock.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the percentage chamglee cumulative return to the stockholders of common stock during the five yt
period ended December 31, 2012 with the cumulatéern the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDA@tBchnology Index for tt
same periods.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
A ssum es Initial Investment of 3100

3100 1

L

2007 2008 2005 2010 201 2012

| ——Celsion —B—NASDAQ Composite Index —&— NASDAQ Biotechnology Index |

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on Dec&hp007 in our common stock or an index, and alalividends were reinvested.
have not declared nor paid any dividends on ourmsomstock. Stockholder returns over the indicgtedod should not be conside
indicative of future stockholder returns.

Dividend Policy
We have never declared or paid and have no pregention to pay cash dividends on our Common Stodke foreseeable future. We intend
to retain any earnings for use in our businessatjmsrs.

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
See “ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Benafi©wners and Management and Related Stockholdeteké—Equity Compensation Ple
Information.”

Unregistered Shares Of Equity Securities
All unregistered shares of equity securities hasenbpreviously reported by the Company in its QuiriReport on Form 10-Q or a Current
Report on Form 8-K.

Issuer Purchases Of Equity Securities
None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below isneatessarily indicative of results of future opemasi and should be read together with Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations,” and the faialnstatements and related notes
thereto included in Part I, Item 8 of this FormKH Qo fully understand factors that may affect tdmenparability of the information presented
below.

Year Ended December 31,

Statement of operations data: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(in thousands, except per share data)

Licensing revenue $ - $ 2,000 $ - $ - $ 2,50(
Research and development expense 15,77( 19,86: 14,71« 13,68: 12,00¢
General and administrative expense 6,37 5,15¢ 4,92¢ 3,327 2,04
Total operating expense 22,14 25,01¢ 19,63] 17,00¢ 14,04¢
Operating loss (22,149 (23,019 (19,637 (17,009 (11,549
Other (loss) income (4,426 (204) 81¢ 1,00¢ (237)
Net loss $ (26,569 $ (23,229 $ (18,819 $ (16,007 $ (11,78¢)
Net loss per share (basic and dilut $ 0.7¢) $ (1.1 $ (1.52) $ (1.4%) $ (1.16)
Weighted average shares used in computing net I

per share 26,56¢ 20,91¢ 12,37¢ 10,65¢ 10,14¢

As of December 31,

Balance sheet data: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,99. $ 20,14 % 1,13¢ $ 6,92: $ 3,45¢
Investment securities, available for sale (inclgdin

interest receivable on investments) 8,10/ 10,40: 39¢ 5,69t 4,061
Working capital (deficit) 18,64 25,35¢ (4,769 10,36¢ 18,88¢
Total assets 25,35¢ 32,64¢ 2,52¢ 14,80¢ 23,68¢
Common stock warrant liability 4,28¢ 16€ 24¢ 822 -
Non current liabilities 8,39 302 30t 1,01¢ 28
Total liabilities 13,39: 6,45¢ 7,101 4,76¢ 3,96:
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 11,96: 26,19¢ (4,57¢) 10,03¢ 19,72¢

31




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI S OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussions should be read in conjiemcwith our financial statements and related adtereto included in this Annual Reg
on Form 10-K. The following discussion containsifarddiooking statements made pursuant to the safe harbersions of Section 21E of t
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Privateuffiies Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statnts are based on our beliefs
expectations about future outcomes and are sutgjettks and uncertainties that could cause actsllts to differ materially from anticipal
results. Factors that could cause or contribututh differences include those described unddriPidem 1A —Risk Factors appearing in t
Annual Report on Form 1R-and factors described in other cautionary statesjecautionary language and risk factors set fortlothe
documents that we file with the Securities and Exge Commission. We undertake no obligation toligybupdate forwardeoking
statements, whether as a result of new informafigore events or otherwise.

Overview

Celsion is an oncology drug development companyded on the development of treatments for thodersug with difficult to treat forms «
cancer. We are working to develop and commerciatioge efficient and effective targeted chemotheuipeoncology drugs based on
proprietary heagctivated liposomal technology. The promise of tisg technology is to maximize efficacy while nmizing side effect
common to cancer treatments.

Significant Events
ThermoDox®

Our lead product ThermoDoxi® being evaluated in a Phase Il clinical trial fwimary liver cancer (the HEAT study), a Phaselihical trial
for colorectal liver metastasis (CRLM) and a Phd#selinical trial for recurrent chest wall breasareer. ThermoDox®s a liposome
encapsulation of doxorubicin, an approved and feetiy used oncology drug for the treatment of aemidnge of cancers. Localized he
mild hyperthermia temperatures (greater than 3@grabs Celsius) releases the encapsulated doxiordimen the liposome enabling hi
concentrations of doxorubicin to be deposited pesféally in and around the targeted tumor.

The HEAT Study for Primary Liver Cancer

The HEAT study for ThermoDox®in combination with radiofrequency ablation (RFA$, being conducted under a Special Prof
Assessment agreed to with the U.S. Food and Drugididtration (FDA). The Special Protocol Assessnmagreed to with the FDA specifi
Progression Free Survival (PFS) as the HEAT studlyimary endpoint. We scheduled a meeting with HiEAT study independent Ds
Monitoring Committee (DMC) on January 30, 2013 idey to conduct an analysis of the HEAT stwdyFS endpoint. Following review by
DMC, on January 31, 2013, we announced that Theor@Dn combination with RFA did not meet the primandenint of the HEAT study
patients with hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC), &sown as primary liver cancer. Specifically, weetatined, after conferring with the DM
that the HEAT study did not meet the goal of denarting persuasive evidence of clinical effectiven¢hat could form the basis for regula
approval in the population chosen for the HEAT gtuthe HEAT study was designed to show a 33 perieptovement in PFS with |
percent power and a p-value = 0.05. In the triakfmoDox® was weltolerated with no unexpected serious adverse ev@rgswill continue
following the patients enrolled in the HEAT studythe secondary endpoint, overall survival.

We will also conduct additional analyses of theadimom the HEAT study to assess the future strategiue of ThermoDox®We plan tt
continue with related partnerships, such as oangement with Zhejiang Hisun Pharmaceutical Co. (tiisun) described below, to the exi
feasible. In addition, we will assess our produpefine and research and development prioritieswAsvaluate strategic alternatives, we

need to consider a number of factors, including@tment in, or acquisition of, complementary busées, technologies or products, pos
capital raising transactions, partnering opportasitnd working capital requirements. We expect tha strength of our balance sheet

afford us the opportunity to evaluate our futurgelepment plans. However, as demonstrated by th&THEudy results announced on Jani
31, 2013, drug research and development is anénhgruncertain process and there is a high ristaitfire at every stage prior to appro
The timing and the outcome of clinical results idremely difficult to predict. Clinical developmemsuccesses and failures can ha
disproportionate positive or negative impact on saientific and medical prospects, financial praspefinancial condition and market value.
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Prior to the HEAT study results announced on Jan8ay 2013, and consistent with our global reguiatirategy, we announced on April
2012, that randomization of at least 200 patiemthé Peoples Republic of China (PRC), a requirement for regtginal filing in the PRC, h:
been completed. The HEAT study had already enrdleifficient number to support registrationalnfijs in South Korea and Taiwan, 1
important markets for ThermoDox®&he future of these activities will be part of @irategic planning as we analyze the data annouoi
January 31, 2013 and will affect our partnershithwlisun described below.

On May 6, 2012, we entered into a long term comraksupply agreement with Hisun for the productafnThermoDox®in the mainlan
China, Hong Kong and Macau (the China territorg)atcordance with the terms of the agreement, Higlile responsible for providing all
the technical and regulatory support servicesuitiolg the costs of all technical transfer, regitreal and bioequivalence studies, techr
transfer costs, Celsion consultative support caststhe purchase of any necessary equipment ariibadtfacility costs necessary to supj
capacity requirements for the manufacture of Th&m®. We will repay Hisun for the aggregate amount osthdevelopment costs and 1
commencing on the successful completion of thrgestetional batches of ThermoDox®he batches are expected to be successfully prd
in mid-2013, and repayment of the development costs widlpat any time on or prior to the fourth year igarsary of the signing of tl
agreement, which we expect in total to be approtetge$2.0 million. Hisun is also obligated to cémtgperformance requirements under
agreement. The agreement is initially limited tpemcentage of the production requirements of Th@ox® in the China territory with Hist
retaining an option for additional global supplyeaflocal regulatory approval in the China tergtain addition, Hisun will collaborate with
in relation to the regulatory approval activities ThermoDox® with the China State Food and Drugnidstration (SFDA).

On January 18, 2013, we broadened our relationstitp Hisun by entering into a technology developimeontract with Hisun, pursuant
which Hisun paid us a non-refundable research avéldpment fee of $5.0 million to support our depehent of ThermoDox@&nd we wil
provide research data and other technical suppalation to a regulatory filing by Hisun with ti&=DA for approval of ThermoDox®&r
manufacturing and sale in the China territory.

On January 18, 2013, we also entered into an axelaption agreement with Hisun, terminable at ime by Hisun, under which we gran
Hisun an option to enter into an exclusive liceageeement with us for the manufacturing and comiakzation of ThermoDox®with respec
to all indications in the China territory under tieems and conditions set forth in the exclusivBaspagreement and other customary terms
conditions to be set forth in the license agreemieany. Hisun agreed to pay us an additional $6illon within sixty days after the signing
the exclusive option agreement if it has not beeminated within such time period. The exclusivé@pagreement contemplated paymen
an upfront license fee, milestone payments andlitiegdo Celsion if the exclusive license agreenvegite entered into.

Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 ThaermoDox®in combination with radiofrequency ablation did moeet the primai
endpoint of the Phase Il clinical trial for prinyaiver cancer, Hisun has elected to terminateetkelusive option agreement and not to pu
the option to enter into an exclusive license age® with us for the China territory, which termtioa took effect as of February 1, 2013. /
result of the termination, we will not receive theditional $5 million payment or any future paymeriginally contemplated by the exclus
option agreement. The technology development coinivél remain in effect while we and Hisun contato collaborate and are evaluating |
steps in relation to ThermoDox®, which include Hub-group analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienthénHEAT study and other activit
to further the development of ThermoDox® for thar@hterritory.

ThermoDox® in Relation to Cancers other than Primat.iver Cancer

In 2009, we formed a joint research agreement Rithips Healthcare, a division of Royal Philips &lenics, to evaluate the combinatior
Philips’ high intensity focused ultrasound (HIFU)tlwThermoDox®to determine the potential of this combination reat a broad range
cancers. As a result of our progress to clinicaletlpment status, we are currently negotiatinga agreement with Philips. In August 20
we announced FDA clearance to commence a Phasedif sf ThermoDox® and Philip’s Sonalleve® MRuided HIFU technology for tl
palliation of painful metastases to the bone caligeldng, prostate or breast cancers.

In June 2012, we announced a collaboration withuithizersity of Oxford to begin a clinical study ©hermoDox®plus HIFU in the treatme
of metastatic liver cancer. The trial, which is gaged by the National Institute for Health Resbabxxford Biomedical Research Centre,
be carried out as a multidisciplinary collaboratioetween us, the Oxford University Institute of Biedical Engineering and the Oxfi
University Hospitals NHS Trust. This early phasmichl study is being finalized and will requirepapval from a local ethics committ:
Treatment of the first patient is targeted for fingt half of 2013.
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We are also working with the Focused Ultrasoundni@ation in preclinical studies designed to explbeeuse of ThermoDox®& combinatiol
with MR-guided HIFU for the treatment of pancreatic can¢ée studies are being conducted at the Univeddit}/ashington (UW) School
Medicine. The UW research is expected to includemahmodels to confirm the ability of HIFU to tatggigh concentrations of doxorubicin
proprietary pancreatic cancer cell lines and iro\studies to assess the response to these turaatedrusing ThermoDox@ith and withou
HIFU-induced hyperthermia. We believe that these cotkimns are just the beginning for combining impattdevice technologies suct
HIFU with our low heat activated liposomal techrmpfo

In addition to the collaborations outlined aboves aave two ongoing clinical studies: a Phase Idtof ThermoDox®in combination witl
RFA for the treatment of colorectal liver metastagthe ABLATE study) and a Phase Il study of TheDox® in combination witl
hyperthermia for the treatment of recurrent chest (RCW) breast cancer (the DIGNITY study). Thémary study endpoint for the ABLAT
study is based on one year local tumor recurrewith, secondary endpoints of time to progression avetall survival. The DIGNITY stuc
has opened for enrollment with the activation eéénclinical sites. The primary study endpointted DIGNITY study is bioequivalence of 1
drug supplied by our second U.S. manufacturing, sitth the secondary endpoint of tumor responseedasn RECIST criteria. Tl
continuation of these studies will be subject tdetailed analysis of the data from the HEAT studlyassess the future strategic value o
product pipeline and research and developmentipei®r

Equity and Debt Financing

During 2012, we received approximately $10.2 milliof gross proceeds from the exercise of warranfsutchase approximately 3.8 mill
shares of the Comparsycommon stock and $0.7 million of gross proceeas fthe exercise of options to purchase approxim@&e million
shares of the Company’s common stock.

On June 27, 2012, the Company entered into a LodnSacurity Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) wikford Finance LLC (“Oxfordy
and Horizon Technology Finance Corporation (“HonJo The Credit Agreement provides for a secured teram lof up to $10 million, wit
50% of any loans to be funded by Oxford and 50%etdunded by Horizon. The aggregate loan amountmeagdvanced in two tranches o
million each. The first tranche (the “Term A Loanias made available to the Company on June 27, 20d 2he second tranche (thieetm E
Loan”) was to be made available, if at all, during theiqeebeginning on the date that the Company achigeeitive data in its Phase
clinical trial of RFA and ThermoDox@®tlfe HEAT study) and ending on March 31, 2013. @muary 31, 2013, the Company announced

not meet the primary endpoint of the HEAT studgréiore the second tranche will not be drawn down.

The Term A Loan is scheduled to mature on Octolier2015. The proceeds of the Credit Agreement béllused to fund the Compaay’
working capital and general corporate purposes. dliigations under the Credit Agreement are seclmedubstantially all assets of
Company other than its intellectual property andaie other agreedpon exclusions. The Term A Loan bears intereatfated rate of 11.759
For an initial period extending for the Term A Laodmough May 1, 2013, the Company is only requiedake interest payments, after wt
the Company is required to make consecutive equaltimy payments of principle and interest to eamider as calculated pursuant to
Credit Agreement. The Company was also obligatgmhtoother customary facility fees for a creditiligcof this size and type.

As a fee in connection with the Credit Agreemelm¢, Company issued warrants to Horizon and Oxfoggtchase the number of shares o
Companys common stock equal to 3% of each loan amountéd/by the exercise price equal to $2.92 per shdreh is calculated as t
average NASDAQ closing price of Celsion common Istfor the three days prior to the funding of tharioamount. This results in 51,:
warrant shares issuable in connection with the TArimoan. The warrants are immediately exercisablecish or by net exercise and
expire seven years after their issuance.

On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whidbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5 million to support ouredepment of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other teethsigpport i
relation to a regulatory filing by Hisun with thé&BA for approval of ThermoDox@r manufacturing and sale in mainland China, H&iegg
and Macau. On January 18, 2013, we also entetedimexclusive option agreement with Hisun, teahla at any time by Hisun, under wt
we granted Hisun an option to enter into an exchiicense agreement with us for the manufactuaimg commercialization of ThermoD®x
with respect to all indications in the China temyt under the terms and conditions set forth in ¢kelusive option agreement and o
customary terms and conditions to be set forthénlicense agreement, if any. Hisun agreed tousagn additional $5 million within sixty de
after the signing of the exclusive option agreemiéiit has not been terminated within such timeiper The exclusive option agreem
contemplated payments of an upfront license fekestane payments and royalties to us if the exetutense agreement were entered into.
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Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 ThatmoDox®in combination with RFA did not meet the primarydpnoint of the Pha:
1l clinical trial for primary liver cancer, Hisuglected to terminate the exclusive option agreerardtnot to pursue the option to enter int
exclusive license agreement with us for the Chamatbry, which termination took effect as of Fetry 1, 2013. As a result of the terminat
we will not receive the additional $5 million paynteor any future payment originally contemplatedtbg exclusive option agreement.
technology development contract will remain in effeshile Hisun and we continue to collaborate arel @valuating next steps in relatior
ThermoDox®, which include the sudroup analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienth@Phase Il clinical trial for primary liver cegr an
other activities to further the development of TheDox® for mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.

On February 1, 2013, the Company entered into atrGied Equity OfferingSM Sales Agreement (the “ATM Agreementilith Canto
Fitzgerald & Co., as sales agent (“Cantogirsuant to which Celsion may offer and sell, frime to time, through Cantor, shares of
common stock having an aggregate offering pricappfo $25.0 million (the “ATM Shares”)The ATM Shares will be issued pursuant to
Company’s previously filed and effective RegiswatiStatement on Form $the base prospectus dated September 14, 204@,af part «
such Registration Statement, and the prospectyslesupnt dated February 1, 2013, filed by the Compaith the Securities and Exchal
Commission. Under the Agreement, Cantor may seMAShares by any method deemed to be an “at-theetiaokfering as defined in Ru
415 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933amended, including sales made directly on The DIXG Capital Market, on any ott
existing trading market for the our common stock@or through a market maker. From February 1,32through February 25, 2013,
Company has sold and issued 5,381,670 ATM shamarihe ATM Agreement, receiving approximately $8ilion in net proceeds.

Celsion intends to use the net proceeds from tfezinf) for general corporate purposes, includirepagch and development activities, ca
expenditures and working capital. The Companyoisabligated to sell any ATM Shares under the ATrédement. Subject to the terms
conditions of the ATM Agreement, Cantor will usentoercially reasonable efforts, consistent withnibemal trading and sales practices
applicable state and federal law, rules and reguigtand the rules of The NASDAQ Capital Marketstdl ATM Shares from time to tir
based upon the Compasyinstructions, including any price, time or simmils or other customary parameters or conditioe$siBn ma
impose. In addition, pursuant to the terms andlitmms of the ATM Agreement and subject to thetrmstions of Celsion, Cantor may ¢
ATM Shares by any other method permitted by lawiuding in privately negotiated transactions.

The ATM Agreement will terminate upon the earli€ér(iy the sale of Shares under the ATM Agreementiitaan aggregate offering price
$25.0 million and (i) the termination of the ATMgheement by Cantor or the Company. The ATM Agreemaay be terminated by Cantol
Celsion at any time upon 10 days' notice to thempgarty, or by Cantor at any time in certain anstances, including the occurrence

material adverse change in Celsion. The Compaifiypay Cantor a commission of 3.0% of the aggregmtess proceeds from each sal
ATM Shares and has agreed to provide Cantor witttotmary indemnification and contribution rights.eT@ompany also agreed to reimbi
Cantor for legal fees and disbursements, not teeexkc$50,000 in the aggregate, in connection witeramg into the ATM Agreement.

connection with the preferred stock offering disad below, the Company agreed to not sell any ATdr&s for a period of one year fr
February 26, 2013.

On February 22, 2013, the Company entered intocaries Purchase Agreement with certain instingioinvestors, pursuant to which
Company agreed to sell, in a registered offerimgaggregate of 15,000.00422 shares of its Seri@%/Aconvertible preferred stock and
warrants to purchase shares of its common stoclkarf@aggregate purchase price of approximatelyOddfilion (the Preferred Stock Offerin
The closing of the Preferred Stock Offering occdrom February 26, 2013, in which the Company remkigpproximately $15.0 million
gross proceeds. Subject to certain ownership ltioita, shares of Series A 0% convertible prefestedk are convertible, at the option of
holder thereof, into an aggregate of up to 12,032 ghares of common stock, and the warrants areisable to purchase an aggregate of |
6,036,219 shares of common stock. Each warranahasxercise price of $1.18 per share, equal talieing bid price of common stock
February 21, 2013. The warrants are immediatelycésa@ble and expire five years after its issuareeof March 15, 2013, the Company
issued an aggregate of 8,018,112 shares of comtnck gpon conversion of 9,963 shares of the S&i6% convertible preferred stock.

During the first quarter of 2013 thus far, we reeéli approximately $0.4 million of gross proceedasrirthe exercise of warrants and optior
purchase approximately 120,516 shares of the Cop'gpaammon stock.

We believe that our cash and investment resourc®31 million on hand at December 31, 2012, a agethe $26 million of net proceeds

Company collectively received in the first quartdr2013 from the warrant exercises, the mefundable payment from Hisun under
technology development agreement, the ATM Agreeraadtthe Preferred Stock Offering, is sufficienfund operations through 2015.
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However, our future capital requirements will depperpon numerous unpredictable factors, includinighaut limitation, the cost, timing a
outcomes of clinical studies and regulatory reviefveur proprietary drug candidates, our effortantiplement new collaborations, licenses
strategic transactions, general and administratimgenses, capital expenditures and other usessbf do complete the development
commercialization of our products, we will needrédse substantial amounts of additional capitduttd our operations. We do not have
committed sources of financing and cannot give rasge that alternate funding will be available itinaely manner, on acceptable terms «
all. We may need to pursue dilutive equity finagginsuch as the issuance of shares of common stockertible debt or other convertible
exercisable securities, which financings couldtdilihe percentage ownership of our current comntarkbolders and could significantly lov
the market value of our common stock. Please tefétlem IA, Risk Factors, including, but not limé to, ‘We will need to raise substan
additional capital to fund our planned future opierss, and we may be unable to secure such capittabut dilutive financing transactions.
we are not able to raise additional capital, we may be able to complete the development, testivy @mmercialization of our prodi
candidates.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements, which appear at Item Thts Annual Report on Form 10; have been prepared in accordance with accot
principles generally accepted in the United Statdsch require that we make certain assumptionseatidhates and, in connection therev
adopt certain accounting policies. Our significantounting policies are set forth in Note 1 to fimancial statements. Of those policies,
believe that the policies discussed below may wwa higher degree of judgment and may be morialrito an accurate reflection of «
financial condition and results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

We follow the provisions of ASC topic 718 “Competisa’ which requires the expense recognition over a serperiod for the fair value
share based compensation awards, such as stockh®gptestricted stock and performance based sh@idgs.standard allows us to estak
modeling assumptions as to expected stock pricatilil, option terms, forfeiture and dividend ratevhich directly impact estimated fair va
as determined. Our practice is to utilize reastnand supportable assumptions which are reviewitd our board of directors and
appropriate committee.

We review our financial reporting and disclosuraqtices and accounting policies on an ongoing liasisisure that our financial reporting
disclosure system provides accurate and transparfarmation relative to the current economic andgibess environment. As part of
process, the Company reviews the selection, apjgitaand communication of critical accounting p@i and financial disclosures. 1
preparation of our financial statements in confdéymwith accounting principles generally acceptedthe United States requires that
management make estimates and assumptions thet @iféereported amounts of assets and liabilities$ @isclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeautsl the reported amounts of revenues and expensieg the reporting period. We review
estimates and the methods by which they are detedron an ongoing basis. However, actual resutikiatiffer from our estimates.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20h® &iscal Year Ended December 31, 2011.

Licensing Revent

We had no licensing revenue for the year ended mbee 31, 2012. In the first quarter of 2011, weommized $2 million in licensing rever
after amending our development, product supply @rmmercialization agreement for ThermoDox@h Yakult Honsha Co. to provide 1
accelerated payments of up to $4 million in futamdestone payments, including $2 million that wasdpto us on January 12, 2011
exchange for a reduction in product approval miless that we may receive in the future under thaut@greement.
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Research and Development Exper

Research and Development (R&D) expenses decreasktbt8 million in 2012 compared to $19.9 million2011. Costs associated with
Phase Ill HEAT study decreased to $7.7 million @12 compared to $12.1 million in 2011. This desee& primarily the result of reach
enrollment targets for this pivotal study in the@ed quarter of 2012. Costs associated with czurrent chest wall breast cancer clinical
(RCW) remained relatively unchanged at $0.4 miliior2012 and 2011. Costs associated with the CagipdCRLM trial were $0.2 million i
2012 compared to $0.3 million in 2011. Other cliaicelated expenses decreased slightly to $1.%omiih 2012 compared to $1.6 million
2011. Preclinical costs increased slightly to $®iBion in 2012 compared to $0.8 million in 201Costs associated with regulatory activi
increased to $1.1 million in 2012 compared to $iflion in 2011 as the Company prepared for a pigérsubmission of a New Dri
Application (NDA) in the event of positive data fincthe HEAT Study. Costs associated with the pradoatf ThermoDox®decreased to $4
million in 2012 compared to $4.3 million in 201limarily due to the timing of registration batcheglangoing development of manufactu
capabilities for ThermoDox®.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased.don$iflion in 2012 compared to $5.2 million in 201This increase is largely the result o
increase in professional fees related to producketanalysis, business development activities,@ardonnel costs in 2012 compared to 2011

Change in common stock warrant liability

A common stock warrant liability was incurred aseault of warrants issued in a public offering ep&mber 2009. This liability is calcula

at its fair market value using the Black-Scholesavppricing model and is adjusted at the end aheguarter. During 2012 we recorded a not
cash charge of $4.1 million based on the changleisrfair value in 2012. During 2011 we recordeaba-<cash benefit of $0.1 million based
the change in this fair value during 2011.

Investment income and interest expe

Investment income was $0.1 million in 2012 compace0.2 million in 2011. Interest expense in 20d&s $0.4 million mostly as a resulf
interest charges the Company incurred in conneetiinthe Companys $5.0 million Venture Debt Loan facility. In coration with the share
of preferred stock we issued in our January 20&iepred stock offering, we incurred dividend chargéapproximately $0.5 million in 2011.

Other (expense) income

Other (expense) income for 2012 and 2011 was gatfiiant.
Comparison of Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20hil &iscal Year Ended December 31, 2010.

Licensing Revent

In the first quarter of 2011, we recognized $2 imil in licensing revenue after amending our develept, product supply a
commercialization agreement for ThermoDox@®@th Yakult Honsha Co. to provide for accelerateayments of up to $4 million in futu
milestone payments, including $2 million that wasdpto us on January 12, 2011, in exchange fodaatéon in product approval milestol
that we may receive in the future under the Yakgliteement. We had no licensing revenue for the gaded December 31, 2010.

Research and Development Exper

Research and Development (R&D) expenses increasgid9 million in 2011 compared to $14.7 million2010. Costs associated with
Phase Ill HEAT study increased to $12.1 million2@11 compared to $8.2 million in 2010. This inseas primarily the result of costs
investigator grants, monitoring costs and milestpagments associated with higher patient enrolinkerdls for the Phase Il HEAT stud
Costs associated with our recurrent chest wallstreancer clinical trial (RCW) decreased to $0.4liom in 2011 compared to $0.6 million
2010. We completed the Phase | portion of thid iriathe first half of 2011. In 2011, we initiatedd Phase Il study of ThermoDoxi®
combination with radiofrequency ablation (RFA) fbe treatment of colorectal liver metastases (CRLEMpsts associated with the Company’
CRLM trial were $0.3 million in 2011. Costs assoetwith the production of ThermoDoxt®lals increased to $4.3 million in 2011 comp:
to $2.9 milion in the same period of 2010 primarildue to developing our commercial manufacturingpatdlities fo
ThermoDox®. Preclinical, regulatory, personnel atiter costs remained relatively unchanged at S2l&n in 2011 from 2010.
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General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increasedtlgligh $5.2 million in 2011 compared to $4.9 mitlion 2010. We continue to careft
monitor operating costs and focus our efforts dndrfcial resources on completing enroliment andepafollow-up in the Phase Ill HEA
study.

Change in common stock warrant liability

A common stock warrant liability was incurred aseault of warrants issued in a public offering Ep&mber 2009. This liability is calcula
at its fair market value using the Black-Scholetiarppricing model and is adjusted at the end of eadirtqu During 2011 and 2010,
recorded a non-cash benefit of $0.1 million and $illion respectively based on the change in fdiisvalue during the respective years.

Interest income and exper

Interest income was $0.2 million in 2011 as a festithe financing activities we completed during12. In connection with the shares
preferred stock we issued in our January 2011 texgid direct equity offering, we incurred dividecltarges of approximately $0.5 million
2011. In connection with our July 2011 financingsoutstanding shares of preferred stock mandgtooinverted into common stock in Aug
2011. Interest income and interest expense wdrsiguaificant in 2010.

Other income

Other income for 2011 was not significant compame#0.2 million in 2010. In November 2010, we werearded a $244,000 grant under
Qualifying Therapeutic Discovery Project (QTDP) gram under The Patient Protection and AffordableeGact of 2010 (PPACA). Th
maximum grant amount for a single program was aecrtb us for the ThermoDox®linical development program, which is curre
conducting clinical trials for primary liver cancand recurrent chest wall breast cancer.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have incurred significattses and negative cash flows from operations. &ve financed our operations prima
through the net aggregate proceeds of $43 millierreceived from the divestiture of our medical devbusiness to Boston Scientific in 2
(paid to us in installments of $13 million in 208Ad $15 million in each of 2008 and 2009), amouwateived under our product licens
agreement with Yakult and a series of equity finagg. The process of developing and commercialiZiihgrmoDox®requires significar
research and development work and clinical triadiigts, as well as significant manufacturing anccess development efforts. We expect t
activities, together with our general and admiaiséie expenses to result in significant operatogsés for the foreseeable future. Our expe
have significantly and regularly exceeded our relesnand we had an accumulated deficit of $15Ianilit December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012 we had total current asse®28f6 million (including cash, cash equivalentsl ahort term investments and relz
interest receivable on short term investments 28.3% million) and current liabilities of $5.0 mdin, resulting in net working capital of $1
million. At December 31, 2011, we had total currassets of $31.5 million (including cash, cash eajents and short term investments
related interest receivable on short term investmeh$30.5 million) and current liabilities of $6million, resulting in working capital of $2¢
million.

During 2012, we received approximately $10.2 milliof gross proceeds from the exercise of warranfsutchase approximately 3.8 mill
shares of the Comparsycommon stock and $0.7 million of gross proceeds fthe exercise of options to purchase approxim@&e million
shares of the Company’s common stock.

On June 27, 2012, the Company entered into a LodnSacurity Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) wilford Finance LLC (“Oxfordy
and Horizon Technology Finance Corporation (“HonJo The Credit Agreement provides for a secured teram lof up to $10 million, wit
50% of any loans to be funded by Oxford and 50%etdunded by Horizon. The aggregate loan amountmeagdvanced in two tranches o
million each. The first tranche (the “Term A Loanias made available to the Company on June 27, 20d2he second tranche (thieetm E
Loan”) was to be made available, if at all, during theiqeebeginning on the date that the Company achigeeitive data in its Phase
clinical trial of RFA and ThermoDox@ilfe HEAT study) and ending on March 31, 2013. @muary 31, 2013, the Company announced

not meet the primary endpoint of the HEAT studréiore the Term B Loan will not be drawn down.
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The Term A Loan is scheduled to mature on Octolser2D15. The proceeds of the Credit Agreement méllused to fund the Compasy’
working capital and general corporate purposes. diiigations under the Credit Agreement are seclmedubstantially all assets of
Company other than its intellectual property andaie other agreedpon exclusions. The Term A Loan bears interesd fiked rate ¢
11.75%. For an initial period extending for the MeA Loan through May 1, 2013, the Company is omlguired to make interest payme
after which the Company is required to make cornsexzequal monthly payments of principle and ing¢tte each lender as calculated purs
to the Credit Agreement. The Company was also at#ijto pay other customary facility fees for altrfacility of this size and type.

As a fee in connection with the Credit Agreemelm®, Company issued warrants to Horizon and Oxfoggltchase the number of shares o
Companys common stock equal to 3% of each loan amounted/by the exercise price equal to $2.92 per shdreh is calculated as t
average NASDAQ closing price of Celsion common Istfor the three days prior to the funding of tharioamount. This results in 51,:
warrant shares issuable in connection with the TAriroan. The warrants are immediately exercisablecish or by net exercise and
expire seven years after their issuance.

During the first quarter of 2013 thus far, we reeei approximately $0.4 million of gross proceedsfrthe exercise of warrants and optior
purchase approximately 120,516 shares of the Cop'gpaammon stock.

On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whidbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5 million to support ouredepment of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other teethsigpport i
relation to a regulatory filing by Hisun for appedwof ThermoDox®for manufacturing and sale in mainland China, H&mgg and Macal
Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 thatHEAT study failed to meet its primary endppiwe and Hisun continue
collaborate and evaluate next steps in relatiohhitermoDox®, which include the sugroup analysis of the Chinese cohort of patientthé
Phase Il clinical trial for primary liver cancené other activities to further the development befimoDox®for mainland China, Hong Kol
and Macau.

On February 1, 2013, the Company entered into atrGited Equity OfferingSM Sales Agreement (the “ATM Agreementilith Canto
Fitzgerald & Co., as sales agent (“Cantogirsuant to which Celsion may offer and sell, frime to time, through Cantor, shares of
common stock having an aggregate offering pricappfo $25.0 million (the “ATM Shares”)The ATM Shares will be issued pursuant to
Company’s previously filed and effective RegiswatiStatement on Form Bthe base prospectus dated September 14, 204@,a8 part «
such Registration Statement, and the prospectysiesupnt dated February 1, 2013, filed by the Compaith the Securities and Exchal
Commission. Under the Agreement, Cantor may seMAShares by any method deemed to be an “at-theetiaokfering as defined in Ru
415 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933amended, including sales made directly on The DG Capital Market, on any ott
existing trading market for the our common stock@mior through a market maker. From February 1,32through February 20, 2013,
Company has sold and issued 5,381,670 ATM shamarihe ATM Agreement, receiving approximately $8iion in net proceeds.

Celsion intends to use the net proceeds from tfezinf) for general corporate purposes, includirepagch and development activities, ca
expenditures and working capital. The Companyoisabligated to sell any ATM Shares under the ATrédement. Subject to the terms
conditions of the ATM Agreement, Cantor will usentoercially reasonable efforts, consistent withnisémal trading and sales practices
applicable state and federal law, rules and reguistand the rules of The NASDAQ Capital Marketstdl ATM Shares from time to tir
based upon the Compasyinstructions, including any price, time or simmils or other customary parameters or conditioedsiBn ma
impose. In addition, pursuant to the terms and itimms of the ATM Agreement and subject to the rimstions of Celsion, Cantor may ¢
ATM Shares by any other method permitted by laweluding in privately negotiated transactions. Immection with the preferred stc
offering discussed below, the Company agreed teelbany ATM Shares for a period of one year fieebruary 26, 2013.

The ATM Agreement will terminate upon the earliér(ip the sale of Shares under the ATM Agreementiitaan aggregate offering price
$25.0 million and (i) the termination of the ATMgheement by Cantor or the Company. The ATM Agreemaay be terminated by Cantol
Celsion at any time upon 10 days' notice to thempgarty, or by Cantor at any time in certain anstances, including the occurrence

material adverse change in Celsion. The Compaiflypay Cantor a commission of 3.0% of the aggregmtess proceeds from each sal
ATM Shares and has agreed to provide Cantor wisftornary indemnification and contribution rights.eT@ompany also agreed to reimbi
Cantor for legal fees and disbursements, not t@ek$50,000 in the aggregate, in connection witergrg into the ATM Agreement.

connection with the preferred stock offering disad below, the Company agreed to not sell any ATdr&s for a period of one year fr
February 26, 2013.
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On February 22, 2013, the Company entered intocarfies Purchase Agreement with certain instingioinvestors, pursuant to which
Company agreed to sell, in a registered offerimgaggregate of 15,000.00422 shares of its Seri@8oAconvertible preferred stock and
warrants to purchase shares of its common stoclgrf@ggregate purchase price of approximatelydbitilion (the Preferred Stock Offerin
The closing of the Preferred Stock Offering occdrom February 26, 2013, in which the Company rembiapproximately $15.0 million
gross proceeds. Subject to certain ownership ltroita, shares of Series A 0% convertible prefestedk are convertible, at the option of
holder thereof, into an aggregate of up to 12,82 ghares of common stock, and the warrants areisable to purchase an aggregate of |
6,036,219 shares of common stock. Each warranahasxercise price of $1.18 per share, equal talising bid price of common stock
February 21, 2013. The warrants are immediatelycis@ble and expire five years after its issuadseof March 15, 2013, the Company
issued an aggregate of 8,018,112 shares of comtook spon conversion of 9,963 shares of the S&i@% convertible preferred stock.

We believe that our cash and investment resourc®31 million on hand at December 31, 2012, a agethe $26 million of net proceeds
Company collectively received in the first quartdr2013 from the warrant exercises, the mefundable payment from Hisun under
technology development agreement, the ATM Agreenmmmd the Preferred Stock Offering, is sufficient fttnd operations throu
2015. However, our future capital requirements @épend upon numerous unpredictable factors, diaty without limitation, the cost, timii
and outcomes of clinical studies and regulatoryesgs of our proprietary drug candidates, our effaotimplement new collaborations, licer
and strategic transactions, general and admiriigrakpenses, capital expenditures and other dsessh.

Net cash used in operating activities for the 20d#5 $22.3 million. Our 2012 net loss included $inilion in nor-cash stockbase:
compensation expense and $4.1 million in non-cashge based on the change in the common stockntdiahility.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1ilion during 2012 which consisted of approximgt$10.1 million of net proceeds frc
the exercise of warrants to purchase approxima&@&ymillion shares of the Compasy¢ommon stock, $0.7 million of gross proceeds fthe
exercise of options to purchase approximately Oillom shares of the Comparg/’'common stock and approximately $5.0 million ofsg
proceeds from the Credit Agreement.

The $22.3 million net cash used in operating atisiwas mostly funded from cash and short terrastments. At December 31, 2012, we
cash, cash equivalents and short term investmentgelated interest receivable on short term imaests of $23.1 million. We will ne
substantial additional capital to complete ourichhtrials, obtain marketing approvals and to careralize our products.

We may seek additional capital through further pubk private equity offerings, debt financing, &iduhal strategic alliance and licens
arrangements, collaborative arrangements, or sambioation of these financing alternatives. If vaese additional funds through the issuz
of equity securities, the percentage ownershipuofstockholders could be significantly diluted ahd newly issued equity securities may |
rights, preferences, or privileges senior to thokthe holders of our common stock. If we raised&ithrough the issuance of debt secur
those securities may have rights, preferences pantdeges senior to those of our common stockwéf seek strategic alliances, license:
other alternative arrangements, such as arrangemsétit collaborative partners or others, we maydnerelinquish rights to certain of ¢
existing or future technologies, product candidategproducts we would otherwise seek to developomnmercialize on our own, or to licel
the rights to our technologies, product candidateproducts on terms that are not favorable to Uife overall status of the economic clin
could also result in the terms of any equity offgridebt financing, or alliance, license, or otagangement being even less favorable to u
our stockholders than if the overall economic ctienavere stronger. We also will continue to loak fjovernment sponsored rese:
collaborations and grants to help offset futurécpated losses from operations and, to a lesgengxnterest income.

If adequate funds are not available through eithercapital markets, strategic alliances, or coltators, we may be required to delay or, re
the scope of, or eliminate our research, developmaimical programs, manufacturing, or commercaalion efforts, or effect additior
changes to our facilities or personnel, or obtaimds through other arrangements that may requite tedinquish some of our assets or righ
certain of our existing or future technologies,dqurct candidates, or products on terms not favoriables.
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Contractual Obligations

In 2011, the Company executed a lease with BranuyWperating Partnership, L.P. (Brandywine), a ala limited partnership for a 10,¢
square foot premises located in Lawrenceville, Nevgey. The lease has a term of 66 months andtpsofor 6 months rent free, with the f
monthly rent payment of approximately $23,000 duépril 2012. Also, as required by the lease,@lmenpany provided Brandywine with
irrevocable and unconditional standby letter ofigréor $250,000, which the Company secured witleacrow deposit at its banking institut
of this same amount. The standby letter of creditbe reduced by $50,000 on each of the 19 th st3nd 43 ranonths from the initial terr
with the remaining $100,000 amount remaining uhtl lease term has expired.

In November 2011, the Company financed $144,448mequipment through a capital lease. This le&digation has thirty monthly payme
of $5,651 through February 2014. During 2012, @rmenpany made principal and interest payments tmfah67,817. The outstanding le
obligation is $71,602 as of December 31, 2012.

Following is a summary of the future minimum paynserequired under leases that have initial or raingilease terms of one year or more as
of December 31, 2012:

Capital Operating
For the year ending December 31: Leases Leases
2013 $ 67,817 $ 280,80¢
2014 11,30z 286,24
2015 — 291,67¢
2016 — 297,11
2017 and beyond — 99,64:
Total minimum lease payments 79,12C $ 1,255,48!
Less amounts of lease payments that represen¢ster 7,51€
Present value of future minimum capital lease payme 71,60z
Less current obligations under capital leases 60,711
$ 10,891

Following is a schedule of future principle paynsedtie on the Credit Agreement as discussed above:

Credit
Agreement
For the year ending December 31:
2013 $ 1,349,74¢
2014 1,994,03:
2015 1,656,22¢
$ 5,000,00(

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not utilize off-balance sheet financing agements as a source of liquidity or financing.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCL OSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary objective of our cash investment atiigiis to preserve principal while at the samestimaximizing the income we receive fr
our investments without significantly increasingkti Some of the securities that we invest in maguigect to market risk. This means th
change in prevailing interest rates may cause timeipal amount of the investment to fluctuate. Egample, if we hold a security that \
issued with a fixed interest rate at the tipeavailing rate and the interest rate later rigies,principal amount of our investment will probg
decline. A hypothetical 50 basis point increasimiarest rates reduces the fair value of our alukEléor-sale securities at December 31, 201
an immaterial amount. To minimize this risk in fiaéure, we intend to maintain our portfolio of casfjuivalents and marketable securities
variety of securities, including commercial papgovernment and nogevernment debt securities and/or money marketsuhdt invest i
such securities. We have no holdings of derivafivancial or commodity instruments. As of DecemB#&y 2012, our investments consiste
investments in corporate notes and obligationsnomoney market accounts and checking funds witlhalikr market rates of interest. '
believe our credit risk is immaterial.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLE MENTARY DATA

The financial statements, supplementary data goattref independent registered public accounting fare filed as part of this report on page:s
F-1 through F-29 and incorporated herein by refezen

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have conducted an evaluation of the effectiverndéshe design and operation of our disclosurerotmand procedures (as such ter
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 158(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded (the Exchange Act)) under the superv
and with the participation, of our management,tdalg our principal executive officer and princifi@ancial officer. Based on that evaluati
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer concluded that as of December 31, 20t4ch is the end of the period coverec
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our disclosuretoals and procedures are effective.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Cain®ver Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaititaining adequate internal control over finahmporting as defined in Rules 13&(f)
and 15d15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934ur fdternal control over financial reporting is eopess designed by, or under
supervision of, our chief executive officer andefhiinancial officer, or persons performing simifamctions, and effected by our boarc
directors, management and other personnel, to geaeasonable assurance regarding the reliabfliipancial reporting and the preparatior
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with accounting principles generally acceptedhe United States of Ameri
(GAAP). Our internal control over financial repog includes those policies and procedures thapd(itain to the maintenance of records
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and disposition of the assetieoCompany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgreparation of financial statements in accorgaméth GAAP and that receipts ¢
expenditures of the Company are being made onpcgordance with authorization of management anecttirs of the Company; and (
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ,usedisposition of the Compars/asse
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cghspaternal control over financial reporting as oédember 31, 2012. In making 1
assessment, management used the criteria setbfprthe Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Tneadway Commission in Inter
Control-Integrated Framework (COSO Framework). d8lasn its evaluation, management has concludedttiba€ompanys internal contre
over financial reporting is effective as of DecemBg, 2012.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes an attgstareport of the Compang’independent registered public accounting firreg8tan an
Company, regarding internal control over financedorting.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtsver financial reporting may not prevent or detamisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdutes may deteriorate. A control system, no mattev well designed and operated
provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assertirat the control systembbjectives will be met. The design of a consydtem must refle
the fact that there are resource constraints, lemtdénefits of controls must be considered reldtu@ere cost.
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(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Ficial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal coowen financial reporting in the fiscal quarter edd@ecember 31, 2012, which were identit
in connection with our management’s evaluation ireguby paragraph (d) of rules 13a-15 and 15d-Ieuthe Exchange Act, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

(d) Inherent Limitations on the Effectness of Controls

Our management, including the chief executive effiand chief financial officer, does not expect thar disclosure controls and proced:
and our internal control over financial reportingllvprevent all error and all fraud. A control sget, no matter how well conceived
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absohgeurance that the objectives of eth controlesysare met. Because of the inhe
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidncontrols can provide absolute assurance thataaitrol issues and instances of fraud, if
within the company have been detected. These inhéngitations include the realities that judgmeimtsiecision making can be faulty and -
breakdowns can occur because of simple error daka@s Additionally, controls can be circumventedthg individual acts of some persons
collusion of two or more people or by managemerdroge of the control. The design of any systentaftrols also is based in part y
certain assumptions about the likelihood of futewents, and there can be no assurance that amndesisucceed in achieving its stated g
under all potential future conditions. Over timentrols may become inadequate because of changesditions, or the degree of complia
with the policies or procedures may deterioratecaBee of the inherent limitations in a ceffective control system, misstatements due tor
or fraud may occur and not be detected.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes an attéstareport of the Company’s independent registgngtalic accounting firm, Stegman and
Company, regarding internal control over financeorting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 10 is herigicorporated by reference to thefinitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the Geties an
Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant to Regulatioh di#thin 120 days after the end of the fiscal yeawvered by this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is herigiocorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is hergicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&@ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELA TED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is herigicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is hergicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&@ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.
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PART IV.
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEM ENT SCHEDULES

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a list of the financial statemenfsCelsion Corporation filed with this Annual Repon Form 10-K, together with the reports
of our independent registered public accountands\d@nagement’s Report on Internal Control over fai@ Reporting.

Page

REPORTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm F-1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheets F-2

Statements of Operations F-3

Statements of Comprehensive Loss F-4

Statements of Cash Flows F-5

Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (@fi F-6
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F-9

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

All financial statement schedules are omitted bseahe information is inapplicable or presentethenotes to the financial statements.
3. EXHIBITS

The following documents are included as exhibitthts report:

EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Celsion, as amendedorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 8.1hie Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended B0, 2004.

3.2 Certificate of Ownership and Merger of Celsion Gogiion (a Maryland Corporation) into Celsion (Dretae) Corporatiol
(inter alia, changing the Company’s hame to “Celsimrporation” from “Celsion (Delaware) Corporafjpimcorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1.3 to the Anriraport on Form 10-K of the Company for the yeareeh8eptember 30,
2000.

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Imgoration effective and filed on February 27, 20@06prporated therein
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current ReporfForm 8-K of the Company filed on March 1, 2006.

3.4 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rightd himitations of Series A 0% Convertible Prefer&dck, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Curreep&t on Form 8-K of the Company, filed on Febru2sy2013.
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3.5

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

10.1%**

By-laws of the Company, as amended and restatedrgorated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 soGurrent Report on
Form 8-K of the Company, filed December 1, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Certificate, par value $0ifdorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.th® Annual Report
on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended &eper 30, 2000.

Form of Common Stock Warrant, incorporated hergindference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current ReporfFonm 8-K of the
Company, filed with the SEC on September 28, 2009.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 17, 28) @nd between Celsion Corporation and Small GapeBh Value,
Ltd., incorporated herein by reference to Exhiblt # the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Compdifsd with the SEC
on June 18, 2010.

Form of Common Stock Warrant, incorporated hergingberence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current ReporfFonm 8-K filed
with the SEC on January 18, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Warrant incorporated hereimdigrence to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current ReporFomm 8-K filed
with the SEC on June 2, 2011.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 26, 2@%1and among Celsion Corporation and the purchasemed therein,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the S&CJune 2, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, incorporaéedin by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Curf@eport on Form 8-
K filed with the SEC on July 6, 2011.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 25, 20%Jand between Celsion Corporation and the pustkasamed therei
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.sh®Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the S&CJuly 25, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, incorporaéedin by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Curf@eport on Form 8-
K filed with the SEC on July 25, 2011.

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, incotpdrherein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the QuiriReport on Forr
8-K filed with the SEC on July 25, 2011.

Form Warrant to Purchase Common Stock Purchasarpacated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 toGluerent Report
on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 6, 2011.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 11 28y and between Celsion Corporation and thehasers named
therein, incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBi3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed wiitlie SEC on
December 6, 2011.

Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated June 27, 2012nthyetween Celsion Corporation and Oxford FinantinC,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1hto Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Compamyte quarter ended
June 30, 2012.

Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated June 27, 2012nthypetween Celsion Corporation and Horizon TeagywFinance
Corporation, incorporated herein by reference thilkik4.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qlaf Company for the
quarter ended June 30, 2012.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, incorporagedin by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Curiigaport on Form 8-
K of the Company, filed on February 26, 2013.

Celsion Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, ipooated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to@uarterly Report on
Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended 3M&004.
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10.2%**

10.3***

10.4%**

10.5%**

10.6***

10.7%*

10.8***

10.9%**

10.10***

10.11%**

10.12%**

10.13***

10.14*

10.15*

Celsion Corporation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan,raeraded, incorporated herein by reference to Exfihit to the Current
Report on Form 8-K of the Company, filed on Jun2(,2.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Celsion @oation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatecdtimeby reference 1
Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10f@h@ Company for the quarter ended September@5.2

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement for Celsionmg@oation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatecein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Reporform 10-Q of the Company for the quarter endgateé®aeber 30, 2006.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Celsion @oation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatectimeby reference 1
Exhibit 10.1.5 to the Annual Report on Form 10-Ktoeé Company for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement for Celsionrg@oation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatecen by
reference to Exhibit10.1.6 to the Annual ReporFonm 10-K of the Company for the year ended Decerbhe2007.

Restricted Stock Agreement, dated October 3, 20€8yveen Celsion Corporation and William Hahne, ipootated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Reporform 8-K of the Company, filed on October 100&0

Stock Option Grant Agreement, dated October 3, 2B86Gveen Celsion Corporation and William Hahneomporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the CuriRaport on Form 8-K of the Company, filed on Octob@y 2006.

Stock Option Agreement effective January 3, 20@fwben Celsion Corporation and Michael H. Tardugmmprporated
herein by reference Exhibit 10.1 to the Currentd®epn Form 8-K of the Company, filed on Januarg@)7.

Employment Agreement, effective January 3, 200&yvéen Celsion Corporation and Mr. Michael H. Tanaoig
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.fhe Current Report on Form 8-K of the Companygdfibn December 21,
2006.

Employment Agreement, effective March 1, 2009, leetwthe Company and Michael H. Tardugno, incorpdrherein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporfFormm 8-K of the Company, filed on February 19, 2008

Separation Agreement and General Release, datedryath, 2010, between Celsion Corporation and $4aran,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.fh® Current Report on Form 8-K of the Compangdfibn January 8,
2010.

Employment Offer Letter, entered into on June T8, between the Company and Jeffrey W. Churcloypurated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Reporform 8-K of the Company, filed on June 18, 2010.

Patent License Agreement between the Company akd Duiversity dated November 10, 1999, incorpordtectin by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Annual Report onnfr 10-K of the Company for the year ended Septeid3de1999.

License Agreement dated July 18, 2003, betwee@tmpany and Duke University, incorporated hereimdigrence to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement of tlenPany (File No. 333-108318) filed on August 28020
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10.16*

10.17

10.18*

10.19*

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.33

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27%**

10.28***

Settlement and License Agreement dated Febru&9d7, by and among Celsion Corporation, Americaulivhd Systems
and AMS Research Corporation, incorporated hergireference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report~orm 10-Q of
the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2007.

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of Novemp20@7, by and between Celsion Corporation and Néaturers and
Traders Trust Company, incorporated herein by egfez to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on F8¢ki of the
Company, filed on November 14, 2007.

Development, Product Supply and Commercializatigne&ment, effective December 5, 2008, by and betese
Company and Yakult Honsha Co., Ltd., herein byrexfee to Exhibit 10.15 to the Annual Report on FAOK of the
Company for the Year Ended December 31, 2008.

The 2nd Amendment To The Development, Product Sufiptl Commercialization Agreement, effective Jagugr2011,
by and between the Company and Yakult Honsha Gd. jhcorporated herein by reference to ExhibitL10.the Current
Report on Form 8-K of the Company filed with theCSé&n January 18, 2011.

Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated June 1@, B@land between Celsion Corporation and SmallBlafech
Value, Ltd., incorporated herein by reference thiBi 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of @@mpany filed on
June 18, 2010.

Securities Purchase Agreement dated January 12,80and among Celsion Corporation and the Investamed therein,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.Zorm 8-K of the Company filed on January 18, 2011.

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated May 26, 201 anidyamong Celsion Corporation and the purchasengdaherein,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.th® Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the S&CJune 2, 2011.

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Jon203 1, by and among Celsion Corporation and tineh@sers named
therein, incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBil to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed witle SEC on July 6,
2011.

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Jylg@11, by and among Celsion Corporation and tiiehasers named
therein, incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBil to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed wiitle SEC on July 25,
2011

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated July 20, 201 anlbyamong Celsion Corporation and the purchasengd therein,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.theCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the S&CJuly 25, 2011.

Lease Agreement, executed July 21, 2011, by amaeleet Celsion Corporation and Brandywine Operatiagrership,
L.P., incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBitl1to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed witke tREC on July 25,
2011.

Offer letter, dated July 8, 2011, by and betweelsi@e Corporation and Gregory Weaver, incorpordteiin by reference
to Exhibit 10.37 to the Annual Report on form 10Akaf the Company for the year ended December 31120

Change in control severance agreement, dated Nare2®h 2011, by and between Celsion CorporationMictiael H.

Tardugno, incorporated herein by reference to Exhilx38 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of Bempany for the
year ended December 31, 20
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10.29 ***

10.30 ***

10.31 ***

10.32%**

10.33***

10.34*

10.35

10.36

10.37

23.1+

31.1+

31.2+

32.17

32.2"

101**

Change in control severance agreement, dated Nare2®h 2011, by and between Celsion CorporationGegjory
Weaver, incorporated herein by reference to ExHibi89 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of then@pany for the
year ended December 31, 20

Change in control severance agreement, dated Nare?®h 2011, by and between Celsion CorporationNiodolas
Borys, M.D., incorporated herein by reference thigi 10.40 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/Atlké Company for
the year ended December 31, 2011.

Change in control severance agreement, dated NareP8h 2011, by and between Celsion CorporationJafidey W.
Church, incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBi#i1 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of thengpany for the
year ended December 31, 20

Change in control severance agreement, dated Nawe289h 2011, by and between Celsion CorporationRuatzert A.
Reed, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#2 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A of the @amy for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated December 1, 291dnd among Celsion Corporation and the purcbasamned
therein, incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBil to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed wiitie SEC on
December 6, 2011.

Technology Development Agreement effective as of Ma2012, by and between Celsion Corporation amgjidng Hisun
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., incorporated herein bgrexice to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report omfr10-Q of the
Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2012.

Loan and Security Agreement, dated June 27, 2042nt among Celsion Corporation, Oxford Finance La€collateral
agent, and the lenders named therein, incorpolhaszin by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quayt&¢port on Form 1@
of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2012.

Controlled Equity OfferingM Sales Agreement, dated February 1, 2013, by awdeket Celsion Corporation and Cantor
Fitzgerald & Co., incorporated herein by referetwcthe Current Report on Form 8-K of the Compailgdfwith the SEC
on February 1, 2013.

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Februarydd3, by and among Celsion and the purchasers ndmazin,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.fhe Current Report on Form 8-K of the Compangdfilith the SEC on
February 26, 2013.

Consent of Stegman & Company, independent regiaublic accounting firm for the Company.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiio8e906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioB8e906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following materials from the Company’s Annuagd®rt on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decen#i, 2012,
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportingngaage): (i) the unaudited Condensed ConsolidatdanBe Sheets,
(i) the unaudited Condensed Consolidated StatesrafrDperations, (iii) the unaudited Condensed Glidasted
Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) Notes to Cormtk@onsolidated Financial Statements.
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Portions of this exhibit have been omitted parsito a request for confidential treatment unddeR4b-2 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, amended, and the omitted materialdessn separately filed with the Securities and ErgeaCommission.

Filed herewith.

Furnished herewith.

Exhibit 101 is being furnished and, in accordarwith Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, shall not leehed to be “filed” for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834amended, or otherwise subject to liability aft thection, nor shall such exhibit
be deemed to be incorporated by reference in agigtration statement or other document filed uriderSecurities Act of 1933, as
amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934mended.

Management contract or compensatory plan caagement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused its annual report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgsil thereunto duly authorized.

CELSION CORPORATION
Registrant

March 18, 2013 By:  /s/ Michael H. Tardugn

Michael H. Tardugno
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 18, 2013 By: /s/ Gregory Weave

Gregory Weaver
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Bxghaict of 1934, this report has been signed bydhewing persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsdted:

Name Position Date
/s/ MICHAEL H. TARDUGNO President and Chief Executive Officer
(Michael H. Tardugno) (Principal Executive Officer) and Director March 18, 2013
/sl GREGORY WEAVER Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
(Gregory Weaver) Officer (Principal Financial Officer) March 18, 2013
/s/ TIMOTHY J. TUMMINELLO Controller and Chief Accounting Officer March 18, 2013

(Timothy J. Tumminello)

/s MAX E. LINK Chairman of the Board, Director March 18, 2013
(Max E. Link, PhD.)

/sl AUGUSTINE CHOW Director March 18, 2013
(Augustine Chow, PhD.)

/sl FREDERICK J. FRITZ Director March 18, 2013
(Frederick J. Fritz)

/sl ROBERT W. HOOPER Director March 18, 2013
(Robert W. Hooper)

/s/ ALBERTO MARTINEZ Director March 18, 2013
(Alberto Martinez, MD)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celsion Corporation
Lawrenceville, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying balance sheéslsion Corporation (the “Companyds of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the re
statements of operations, statements of comprefeeimss, changes in stockholdeesgjuity, and cash flows for each of the years intkiree
year period ended December 31, 2012. We also hadited the Compar's internal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 201
based on criteria establishediimernal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadwa
Commission (COSO). The Compasyhanagement is responsible for these financitdrsents, for maintaining effective internal contook!
financial reporting, and for its assessment of éffectiveness of internal control over financiapoeting, included in the accompany
Managemens Report on Internal Control Over Financial RepgytiOur responsibility is to express an opiniontloese financial stateme
and an opinion on the company’s internal contr@rdinancial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal coraka@r financial reporting was maintained in all eval respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleage supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitla@cial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, and evaluating the ovenalhfial statement presentation. Our ¢
of internal control over financial reporting inckedl obtaining an understanding of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and ewuadutite design and operating effectiveness of ir@lecontrol based on the assessed risk
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstavweedelieve that our audits provid
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateisidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdiose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet tlransactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalskurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrediove present fairly, in all material respedis, financial position of Celsion Corporatior
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results apierations and its cash flows for each of thesy/an the three year period ended Dece
31, 2012 in conformity with accounting principlesngrally accepted in the United States of Amerdso in our opinion, Celsion Corporati
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveeinal control over financial reporting as of DecemB1, 2012, based on criteria establishe
Internal Contro—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO).

/sl Stegman & Compat
Baltimore, Maryland
March 18, 2013
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CELSION CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

ASSETS 2012 2011
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,991,48! $ 20,145,85.
Investment securities — available for sale 8,037,62( 10,157,16!
Accrued interest receivable on investment secasritie 65,92¢ 243,74
Advances and deposits on investigator grants 246,35 758,297
Vendor reimbursements receivable 116,87 -
Other current assets 190,72; 203,42¢
Total current assets 23,648,98: 31,508,48!
Property and equipment(at cost, less accumulated depreciation of $924a9611$643,472,
respectively) 1,114,62: 782,72(
Other assets:
Deferred financing fees 306,49¢ -
Security deposit on letter of credit 250,00( 250,00(
Patent license fees, net 28,12t 35,62¢
Deposits and other assets 10,69: 72,62¢
Total other assets 595,31 358,254
Total assets $ 25,358,911 $ 32,649,45!
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable - trade $ 2,339,76¢ $ 4,010,20:
Other accrued liabilities 1,254,97¢ 2,031,93:
Note payable - current portion 1,410,45! 110,28
Total current liabilities 5,005,20: 6,152,42:
Common stock warrant liability 4,283,93: 166,39¢
Note payable — non-current portion 3,661,14° 71,60z
Other liabilities - noncurrent 446,77¢ 65,46
Total liabilities 13,397,06! 6,455,89:
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock - $0.01 par value (75,000,000 sharéeazed; 37,967,708 and 33,899,057
shares issued at December 31, 2012 and 2011 aB@23735 and 33,186,325 shares
outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respbgti 379,67 338,99
Preferred Stock - $0.01 par value (100,000 shar#®ezed, 5,000 shares issued and zero
shares outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011) - -
Additional paid-in capital 165,276,06' 153,237,22
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (126,607 (276,700)
Accumulated deficit (150,876,77)) (124,221,82)
Subtotal 14,652,36! 29,077,69:
Treasury stock, at cost (664,923 and 712,732 slai@scember 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively) (2,690,51) (2,884,12)
Total stockholders’ equity 11,961,85! 26,193,56!
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 25,358,911 $ 32,649,45!

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Licensing revenue $ - $ 2,000,000 $ —
Operating expenses:
Research and development 15,770,16! 19,863,83! 14,714,46!
General and administrative 6,372,55: 5,154,93: 4,922,96°
Total operating expenses 22,142, 71 25,018,76! 19,637,42
Loss from operations (22,142,71)) (23,018,769 (19,637,42)
Other (expense) income:
(Loss) gain from valuation of common stock warrgadility (4,117,53) 81,73: 573,76(
Investment income 52,322 174,06¢ 32,28¢
Interest expense (359,41 (501,855 (31,517
Other (expense) income (1,040 42,14¢ 244,46(
Total other (expense) income (4,425,66") (203,909 818,99:
Net loss $ (26,568,38) $ (23,222,67) $ (18,818,43)
Net loss per common share — basic and diluted $ (0.76) $ (1.11) $ (1.52)
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basind diluted 34,789,06! 20,917,67: 12,375,40:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net loss $ (26,568,38) $ (23,222,67) $ (18,818,43)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities 150,09z (138,767 (86,540
Comprehensive loss $ (26,418,28) $ (23,361,44) $ (18,904,97)




CELSION CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Non-cash items included in net loss:

Year ended December 31,

2012

2011

2010

(26,568,38) $

(23,222,679 $

(18,818,43F)

Depreciation and amortization 281,48¢ 169,358 165,480
Change in fair value of common stock warrant liapil 4,117,53¢ (81,733) (573,760)
Stock based compensation - options 1,084,32¢ 1,036,337 1,295,382
Stock based compensation — restricted stock 59,43¢ 171,549 357,678
Shares issued out of treasury 57,23¢ 60,360 -
Amortization of patent license fee 7,50C 7,500 7,500
Shares issued in exchange for services 49,81( 71,550 18,060
Change in deferred rent liability 55,25¢ 65,467 -
Net changes in:

Refundable income taxes - - 806,255

Prepaid expenses and other 585,59¢ (393,676) 340,837

Deposits and other assets 61,93¢ 4,167 20,286

Accounts payable (1,344,379 (538,383) 2,357,62¢

Other accrued liabilities (776,95¢%) (92,255) 655,699

Net cash used in operating activities (22,329,59) (22,742,437) (13,367,38¢)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investment securities (16,208,95)) (10,659,23¢) (11,844,35¢)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investment $@esir 18,478,59. 395,556 17,057,72¢
Security deposit on letter of credit - (250,000) -
Purchases of property and equipment (613,390 (573,406) (6,745)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,656,24: (11,087,08¢) 5,206,62E
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of 8% Series A Redeemable, CilvlecPreferred -

Stock, net of issuance costs 4,324,08C -
Proceeds from sale of common stock equity, nessafance costs - 48,082,02¢ 2,484,53¢€
Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants 10,106,55 428,337 -
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options 697,22( - -
Proceeds from note payable 4,825,49: 144,448 -
Principal payments on note payable (110,287) (142,427) (108,332)

Net cash provided by financing activities 15,518,98. 52,836,46: 2,376,204
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,154,36¢) 19,006,93¢ (5,784,560)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 20,145,85: 1,138,91€ 6,923,47¢€
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 14,991,48! 20,145,85¢ $ 1,138,91¢€
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 359,41 $ 501,855 $ 31,517
Income taxes $ - $ - $ =




CELSION CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFI CIT)

Balance December 31, 2009

Net loss

Unrealized loss on investments
available for sale

Shares issued under CEFF, net of

issuance costs

Stock-based compensation expens
Issuance of restricted stock upon

vesting
Shares issued in exchange for
services

Balance at December 31, 2010

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Common Stock

Outstanding Treasury Stock Accum.
Additional Other
Paid in Compr. Accumulated
Shares Amount  Capital Shares Amount Income Deficit Total

12,134,900 $128,95. $95,035,16! 760,27 $(3,076,67() $ 68,17¢ $ (82,119,82) $ 10,035,79-
- - - - - - (18,818,43) (18,818,43)

- _ - - - (86,540 - (86,540)
1,103,91¢ 11,03¢ 2,611,49° - - - - 2,622,53¢
- - 1,653,086 - - - - 1,653,06(

86,277 863 (863) - - - ; )
6,00C 60 18,00( 18,06(

13,331,091 $140,91« $99,316,85! 760,274 $(3,076,67() $(18,367) $ (100,938,26) $ (4,575,529
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Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Unrealized loss on investments
available for sale

Valuation of common stock
warrants in connection with
issuance of 8% Series A
Redeemable, Convertible
Preferred Stock

Conversion of 8% Series A
Redeemable, Convertible
Preferred Stock

Shares issued under CEFF, net (
issuance costs

Registered Direct and Private
Placement Private Placement
common stock offerings

Conversion of common stock
warrants

Stock-based compensation expe

Issuance of restricted stock upon
vesting

Issuance of common stock out of
treasury

CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFI CIT) (continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Common Stock

Outstanding Treasury Stock Accum.
Additional Other
Paid in Compr. Accumulated
Shares  Amount Capital Shares  Amount Income Deficit Total
- - - - - - (23,222,67) (23,222,67))
- - - - - (258,33 - (258,337
- - 2,030,00t - - - - 2,030,00(
2,083,32: 20,83t 2,610,51. - - - - 2,631,34°
1,340,51.  13,40% 3,102,68: - - - - 3,116,08"
16,129,37. 161,29¢ 44,543,24. - - - - 44,704,553
156,86¢ 1,56¢ 426,76¢ - - - - 428,33
- - 1,207,88t - - - - 1,207,88t
97,61z 976 (976) - - - - -
47,54z - 249 (24,24)) 98,17¢ - (48,36¢€) 131,91(

Balance at December 31, 2011  33,186,32! $338,99] $153,237,22. 712,73 $(2,884,12" $(276,700) $(124,221,82) $ 26,193,56:
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CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFI CIT) (continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Common Stock

Outstanding Treasury Stock Accum.
Additional Other
Paid in Compr. Accumulated
Shares  Amount Capital Shares  Amount Income Deficit Total

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss - - - - - - (26,568,38) (26,568,38)
Unrealized gain on investments

available for sale - - - - - 150,09: - 150,09z
Valuation of common stock

warrants in connection with not

payable - - 73,654 - - - - 73,654
Conversion of common stock

warrants 3,804,86¢ 38,04¢ 10,126,84. - - - - 10,164,89:
Stock-based compensation expel - - 1,143,76: - - - - 1,143,76¢
Issuance of restricted stock and

option exercise 263,78 2,63¢ 694,58 - - - - 697,22(
Issuance of common stock out of

treasury 47,80¢ - - (47,809 193,61« - (86,56¢) 107,04¢

Balance at December 31, 2012  37,302,78! $379,677 $165,276,06 664,92 $(2,690,51.) $(126,607) $(150,876,77) $ 11,961,85:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CELSION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 20

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Busines

Celsion Corporation, referred to herein as “Celsiéwe”, or “the Company,’a Delaware corporation based in Lawrenceville, Newsey, i
an oncology drug development company focused orrdwmipg treatment for those suffering with difficuth treat forms of cancer. We
working to develop and commercialize more efficjegiifective, targeted chemotherapeutic oncologygsirbased on our proprietary heat
activated liposomal technology. Our lead produstrmoDox®is being tested in human clinical trials for thesttment of primary liver canc
recurrent chest wall breast cancer and coloreivel inetastases.

Basis of Presentatio

The accompanying financial statements of Celsioreeeen prepared in accordance with generally éedegrcounting principles (“GAAPTh
the United States and include the accounts of tbmpgany. The preparation of financial statementcanformity with GAAP require
management to make judgments, estimates, and assuomphat affect the amount reported in the Corgmirinancial statements a
accompanying notes. Actual results could diffetarially from these estimates.

Events and conditions arising subsequent to the megent balance sheet date have been evaluatedeiorpossible impact on the finan:
statements and accompanying notes. No eventc@mditions would give rise to any information thafjuired accounting recognition
disclosure in the financial statements other thwsé arising in the ordinary course of businese Sote 16 for a summary of subseq
events.

Certain items in the prior period financial statemsehave been reclassified to conform to the ctiperiod presentation.
Revenue Recognitic

At the inception of each collaborative agreemerdt timcludes milestone payments, the Company eweduathether each milestone
substantive on the basis of the contingent natliteeomilestone, specifically reviewing factors ks the scientific and other risks that mu:
overcome to achieve the milestone, as well aseel bf effort and investment required. Milestottest are not considered substantive anc
do not meet the separation criteria are accourdeadd license payments and recognized on a stiighbasis over the remaining perioc
performance. Payments received or reasonably abkatter performance obligations are met complededyrecognized as earned.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hantheestments purchased with an original maturitghmée months or less. A portion of th
funds are not covered by FDIC insurance.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen
The carrying values of financial instruments apprate their respective fair values.
Short Term Investments

The Company classifies its investments in marketaacurities with readily determinable fair valuges investments available-fegle ir
accordance with Accounting Standards Codificatid8) 320,Investments - Debt and Equity Securitigsvailable-forsale securities cons
of debt and equity securities not classified aditig securities or as securities to be held to nitgtuThe Company has classified all of
investments as available-for-sale. Unrealized mgidgains and losses on available-dafe securities are reported as a net amot
accumulated other comprehensive gain or loss itketdders’ equity until realized. Gains and lossaghe sale of available-faale securitie
are determined using the specific identificationtime. The Companyg’ short term investments consist of corporate b@mik governme
agency bonds.




Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment is stated at cost less adetea depreciation. Depreciation is provided aber estimated useful lives of the rele
assets, ranging from three to seven years, usigtthightine method. Major renewals and improvements apétalized at cost and ordine
repairs and maintenance are charged against apgetpenses as incurred. Depreciation expense pyasxamately $281,500, $169,000
$165,000 for years ended December 31, 2012, 20d 2@10, respectively.

The Company reviews property and equipment for impant whenever events or changes in circumstaincésate that the carrying amoun
an asset may not be recoverable. An asset is @yesidmpaired if its carrying amount exceeds thiar&unet undiscounted cash flows that
asset is expected to generate. If such asset &dsoad to be impaired, the impairment recognizetthé amount by which the carrying amc
of the asset, if any, exceeds its fair value deit@thusing a discounted cash flow model.

Deposits
Deposits include real property security deposits @her deposits which are contractually requined af a long-term nature.
Patent License

The Company has purchased several licenses fasrigtpatented technologies. Patent license cdsk33125 have been capitalized and
amortized on a straighine basis over the estimated life of the relatatept. As of December 31, 2012, the total accuradlamortizatio
expense is $45,000. The weighed-average amortizpgidod for these assets is 10 years.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC 220,Comprehensive Incomeestablishes standards for the reporting and aispf comprehensive income and its components &
Companys consolidated financial statements. The objedifv&SC 220 is to report a measure (comprehensigenie (loss)) of all changes
equity of an enterprise that result from transaxstiand other economic events in a period othertiiaasactions with owners.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs are expensed asethddquipment and facilities acquired for reskaand development activities that h
alternative future uses are capitalized and chatgedpense over their estimated useful lives.

Net Loss Per Common She

Basic and diluted net income/(loss) per commonesigas computed by dividing net income/(loss) fer year by the weighted average nur
of shares of Common Stock outstanding, both basit diluted, during each period. The impact of Comn&iock equivalents has b
excluded from the computation of diluted weightegrage common shares outstanding in periods where is a net loss, as their effec
anti-dilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 arf®l 20istanding equity awards of 3,284,214, 3,16B&id 2,245,046 shares, respecti
and the warrants outstanding to purchase 7,873B0398,617 and 1,009,076 shares, respectivelye wamsidered antilutive and therefol
were not included in the calculation of diluted reisa

Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdtaduility method. Under this method, deferred tasets and liabilities are recognized for
future tax consequences attributable to differetme/een the financial statement carrying amouhexisting assets and liabilities and tl
respective tax bases and operating loss and taht carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liiedi are measured using enacted tax
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearatiich those temporary differences are expectedetoecovered or settled. The effec
deferred tax asset and liabilities of a changeainrates is recognized in results of operationthénperiod that the tax rate change oci
Valuation allowances are established, when necgstsareduce deferred tax assets to the amountceeghéo be realized. In accordance
ASC 740,Income Taxesa tax position is recognized as a benefit onlyt isi“more likely than notthat the tax position taken would
sustained in a tax examination, presuming thak @xamination will occur. The Company recognizdsriast and/or penalties related to inc
tax matters in the income tax expense categong ddmpany remains subject to examination for inctameeturns for the years ending s
2008.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs for all stobksed awards is measured at fair value on thedatee grant and recognized over the service pefdc
awards expected to vest. Such value is recogrigezkpense over the service period. The estimafistockbased awards that will ultimat:
vest requires judgment, and to the extent actuwllt®or updated estimates differ from the curestimates, such amounts will be recorde
cumulative adjustment in the period estimates evesed. We consider many factors when estimatimected forfeitures, including types
awards, employee class, and historical experience.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemengsissued by FASB and are adopted by us as of teeifgul effective date. Unle
otherwise discussed, we believe that the impactad#ntly issued accounting pronouncements will@et a material impact on the Company’
consolidated financial position, results of operasi, and cash flows, or do not apply to our openati

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2004-on fair value disclosures. This guidance amemedtain accounting and disclosure requirerr
related to fair value measurements. It is effecton a prospective basis for interim and annupbms beginning after December
2011. Early application is not permitted. The Q@amy is currently using ASU 2011-04 and the impdiéts adoption is not material.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2@H.-on the presentation of comprehensive incomeclwlimends current comprehen:
guidance. This accounting update eliminates th@ogo present the components of other comprekierisicome as part of stockholders
equity. Instead, the Company must report comprakienincome in either a single continuous statenténtomprehensive income wh
contains two sections, net income and other congm&tie income, or in two separate but consecutaterments. ASU 201@5 was initially tc
be effective for public companies during the intereand annual periods beginning after December 1H12with early adoptic
permitted. However, changes in ASU 2014 that related to the presentation of reclasgificaadjustments to other comprehensive inc
were deferred in December 2011 upon the FASB’saissel of ASU 20112, which allows the FASB time to deliberate whetteepresent tr
effects of reclassifications out of accumulatedeottomprehensive income on the components of hetr @dcome on the face of the finan
statements for all periods presented. While theSBAs considering the operational concerns aboat ghesentation requirements
reclassification adjustments and the needs of @ihrstatement users for additional information @boeclassification adjustments,
Company is required to continue reporting reclasaiions out of accumulated other comprehensivenre consistent with the presenta
requirements in effect before ASU 2011-05. All ethrequirements in ASU 2011-05 are not effected AU 2011412 including th
requirement to report comprehensive income eithea isingle continuous financial statement or in separate but consecutive finan
statements. Public entities should apply thesaireapents for fiscal years, and interim periodshimitthose years, beginning after Decen
15, 2011. The adoption of ASU 2011-0 and ASU 2021did not have an impact on the Compangonsolidated financial position, result:
operations or cash flows as it only required a gean the format of the current presentation. Tloenpany presented this information in
separate but consecutive statements as previoissliyssed.

2. FINANCIAL CONDITION

Since inception, the Company has incurred substampierating losses, principally from expenses @ased with the Compang’research ai
development programs, clinical trials conducteddnnection with the Comparg/product candidates, and applications and subonisso th
Food and Drug Administration. The Company beliehese expenditures are essential for the commizatiain of its technologies. As a res
of these expenditures, as well as general and dslnaitive expenses, the Company has an accumutigcit of $150.9 million as «
December 31, 2012.

The Company expects its operating losses to camtfouthe foreseeable future as it continues italpet development efforts, and whe
undertakes marketing and sales activities. The @moiyip ability to achieve profitability is dependent npiés ability to obtain governmen
approvals, produce, and market and sell its newymocandidates. There can be no assurance th@otin@any will be able to commercial
its technology successfully or that profitabilitylivever be achieved. The operating results of @lmenpany have fluctuated significantly in
past. The Company expects that its operating esuilt fluctuate significantly in the future and lilepend on a number of factors, man
which are outside the Company’s control.
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The Company will need substantial additional fugdimorder to complete the development, testinga@mmercialization of its oncology
product candidates and we have made a signifieantritment to heat-activated liposome research awedldpment projects and it is our
intention at least to maintain, and possibly insegdhe pace and scope of these activities. Thenitonent to these new projects will require
additional external funding, at least until the Qxamy is able to generate sufficient cash flow fisate of one or more of its products to suppor
its continued operations.

If adequate funding is not available, the Compaiay ime required to delay, scale back or eliminate&ageaspects of its operations or attem,
obtain funds through unfavorable arrangements wétners or others that may force it to relinquigihts to certain of its technologi
products or potential markets or that could imposerous financial or other terms. Furthermoreh& Company cannot fund its ongc
development and other operating requirements, qudatily those associated with its obligations tadwrct clinical trials under its licensi
agreements, it will be in breach of these licensiggeements and could therefore lose its liceng#s; which could have material adve
effects on its business. Management is continugefforts to obtain additional funds so that th@fpany can meet its obligations and su:
operations.

3. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Short term investments available for sale of $8,630 and $10,157,160 as of December 31, 2012 ahdl, 28spectively, consist of mor
market funds, commercial paper, corporate debtridexs) and government agency debt securities. Hreywalued at estimated fair value, \
unrealized gains and losses reported as a segaraponent of stockholders’ equity in Accumulateti@tComprehensive Income.

Securities available for sale are evaluated peralyi to determine whether a decline in their val@ther than temporary. The termitlie
than temporaryis not intended to indicate a permanent declinealne. Rather, it means that the prospects for teem recovery of value ¢
not necessarily favorable, or that there is a latlkevidence to support fair values equal to, oratge than, the carrying value of
security. Management reviews criteria such asntiagnitude and duration of the decline, as wellhesreasons for the decline, to pre
whether the loss in value is other than tempor&@wce a decline in value is determined to be dtien temporary, the value of the securi
reduced and a corresponding charge to earningsdgnized.

December 31,

Short-term investments available for sale, at faivalue 2012 2011

Bonds — corporate issuances $ 8,037,62( $ 10,157,16!

Equity securities — -
Total $ 8,037,62( $ 10,157,16!

A summary of the cost, fair value and maturitieshaf Company’s short-term investments is as follows

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Short-term investments
Bonds- corporate issuances $ 8,164,227 $ 8,037,62( $ 10,325,48° $ 10,157,16(
Equity securities - - 108,37z —
Total $ 8,164,227 $ 8,037,62( $ 10,433,86( $ 10,157,16(
Bond maturities
Within 3 months $ 3,053,74( $ 3,002,35( $ 5,128,56( $ 5,036,92(
Between 3-12 months 5,110,487 5,035,27( 5,196,927 5,120,24(
Total $ 8,164,227 $ 8,037,62( $ 10,325,48° $ 10,157,16(
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Investment income, which includes net realizeddesm sales of available for sale securities angsiment income interest and dividends, is
summarized as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Interest and dividend income $ 429,19 $ 32,28¢ $ 53,247
Realized losses, net (376,872) - (7,08€)
$ 52,32z $ 32,28¢ $ 46,161

In 2009, the Company recorded an equity investméapproximately $108,000 for stock received aflesaent of a transition agreement
Company previously entered into. The $108,000 assete reflected the estimated net realizable vafu@03,112 shares of Medifocus Int
the time of settlement. As of December 31, 2011k, émtire amount had been reduced to $0 and wageatas an unrealized loss in o
comprehensive loss. During théh4uarter of 2012, the Company sold this stock faragimately $138,000, thereby recording a realigait
of approximately $30,000 in investment income awkrsing the cumulative unrealized loss of $108j8Gfther comprehensive loss.

The following table shows the Company’s investnssdurities gross unrealized losses and fair vajueuestment category and length of time
that individual securities have been in a contiruonrealized loss position at December 31, 201284d. The Company has reviewed
individual securities to determine whether a dexlmfair value below the amortizable cost basitliger than temporary.

December 31, 2012

Less than 12 months 12 months or Longer Total
Gross
Gross Gross Unrealized
Unrealized Unrealized Holding
Holding Fair Holding Fair (Losses)
Description of Securities  Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Gains

Available for Sale
Bonds — corporate
issuances $ 8,03762( $ (126,607 $ - $ - $ 8,037,62( $ (126,607
Equity securities - —

$ 8,037,620 $ (126,607 $ - $ - $ 8,037,620 $ (126,607

December 31, 2011

Less than 12 months 12 months or Longer Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Fair Holding Fair Holding
Description of Securities  Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Available for Sale
Bonds — corporate
issuances $ 10,157,16( $ (168,327 $ - $ - $ 10,157,16( $ (168,327)
Equity securities — (93,9249) - (14,44¢) - (108,373)
$ 10,157,16( $ (262,257) $ - $ (14,449 $ 10,157,16( $ (276,700)

4. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Sett20,Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurestablishes a three tier level hiera
for fair value measurements which requires anemtitmaximize the use of observable inputs and mize the use of unobservable ing
when measuring fair value. The standard descrhreg flevels of inputs that may be used to measiiredlue:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) or identicadess or liabilities in active markets that the ®ntias the ability to access as of
measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs ottlean Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for amaksets or liabilities; quoted price:
markets that are not active; or other inputs thatdservable or can be corroborated by observahtket data.
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Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reifla reporting entity own assumptions that market participants wouddingricing an ass
or liability.

The fair values of securities available for sale determined by obtaining quoted prices on natipmatognized exchanges (Level 1 inputs
matrix pricing, which is a mathematical techniquiglely used in the industry to value debt securitigdout relying exclusively on quot
prices for the specific securities but rather Hying on the securitiegelationship to other benchmark quoted securities€l 2 inputs). Asse
and liabilities measured at fair value on a reagrihasis are summarized below:

Quoted
Prices
In Active
Markets For Significant
Total Fair Identical Other Significant
Value on the Assets Observable Unobservable
Balance /Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Sheet (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
As of December 31, 2012
Short-term investments available for sale
Bonds — corporate issuances $ 8,037,62( $ 8,037,62( $ - $ -
As of December 31, 2011
Short-term investments available for sale
Bonds — corporate issuances $ 10,157,16( $ 10,157,16( $ - $ -
Equity Securities - - - -
Liabilities:
As of December 31, 2012
Common stock warrant liability $ 4,28393. $ - $ - $ 4,283,93:
As of December 31, 2011
Common stock warrant liability $ 166,39¢ $ - $ - $ 166,39¢

The following is a summary the changes in the comstock equity securities and warrant liability fbe years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010:

Equity Warrant
Securities Liability
Beginning balance, January 1, 2010 $ 58,929 $ (821,891)
Unrealized (loss) gain included in other comprehenfoss) income (73,378) -
Gain from valuation of common stock warrant liagiincluded in net loss — 573,760
Ending balance, December 31, 2010 (14,449) (248,131)
Unrealized gain (loss) included in other comprehen@oss) income (93,924) -
Gain from valuation of common stock warrant ligiincluded in net loss — 81,733
Ending balance, December 31, 2011 $ (108,373) $ (166,398)
Unrealized gain (loss) included in other comprehenfoss) income 108,373 -
Loss from valuation of common stock warrant ligiiincluded in net loss — (4,117,534)
Ending balance, December 31, 2012 $ - $ (4,283,932)
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Machinery and equipment (5-7 year life) $ 1,618,67: $ 1,163,41¢
Furniture and fixtures (3-5 year life) 164,55¢ 162,99¢
Leasehold improvements (5-7 year life) 257,35(C 99,777
2,039,58: 1,426,19:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (924,967) (643,472)
Total $ 1,114,62. $ 782,72(
6. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Other accrued liabilities at December 31, 2012201l include the following:
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Amounts due to Contract Research Organization#ret contractual agreements $ 827,98¢ $ 1,234,87:
Accrued payroll and related benefits 338,36¢ 632,42t
Accrued professional fees 37,40C 137,40C
Other 51,225 27,234
Total $ 1,254,97¢ $ 2,031,93¢

7. NOTE PAYABLE

On June 27, 2012, the Company entered into a LodnSacurity Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) wiford Finance LLC (“Oxfordy
and Horizon Technology Finance Corporation (“Hon'Jo The Credit Agreement provides for a secured teram lof up to $10 million, wit
50% of any loans to be funded by Oxford and 50%etdunded by Horizon. The aggregate loan amounteagdvanced in two tranches o
million each. The first tranche (the “Term A Loantjas made available to the Company on June 27, 20d2he second tranche (thieetm E
Loan”) was to be made available, if at all, during theiqeebeginning on the date that the Company achigeeitive data in its Phase
clinical trial of RFA and ThermoDox®tfe HEAT Study) and ending on March 31, 2013. @muary 31, 2013, the Company announced

not meet the primary endpoint of the HEAT Study.

The Term A Loan is scheduled to mature on OctolBer2015. The proceeds of the Credit Agreement béllused to fund the Company’
working capital and general corporate purposes. diiigations under the Credit Agreement are seclmedubstantially all assets of
Company other than its intellectual property andaie other agreed-upon exclusions.

The Term A Loan bears interest at a fixed ratelo¥3%. However, for an initial period extending fbe Term A Loan through May 1, 20
the Company is only required to make interest paymerhe Company was also obligated to pay othstomary facility fees for a cre:
facility of this size and type.

The Credit Agreement contains customary covenant$iding covenants that limit or restrict the Camnp’s ability to incur liens, inci
indebtedness, make certain restricted paymentgerarconsolidate and make dispositions of asgtsn the occurrence of an event of del
under the Credit Agreement, the lenders may ceasldng loans, terminate the Credit Agreement, deckll amounts outstanding to
immediately due and payable and foreclose on andaje the Company’s assets that comprise the iehdeallateral. The Credit Agreeme
specifies a number of events of default (some oftlwlare subject to applicable grace or cure pejjddsluding, among other things, non-
payment defaults, covenant defaults, a materiakisgv change in the Company’s business, alefsults to other materials indebtedn
bankruptcy and insolvency defaults and materiadjjneint defaults. The Company is currently in coarple with these covenants.

As a fee in connection with the Credit Agreememt, Company issued warrants to Horizon and Oxfdre ‘(fVarrants”)to purchase the numt
of shares of the Comparsytommon stock equal to 3% of each loan amounti€d/by the exercise price, which was calculatethesverag
NASDAQ closing price of The Company common stoaktfe three days prior to the funding of the loaroant ($2.92 per share for the T¢
A Loan). This resulted in 51,370 warrant sharesésl in connection with the Term A Loan. The Watsassued in connection with the Te
A Loan are immediately exercisable for cash or éiyaxercise and will expire seven years after tissirance, which is June 27, 2019.
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The Company valued the Warrants using the BRackeles option pricing model and recorded $73,684deferred financing fees.
calculating the value of the warrants, the Compassumed a volatility rate of 74.3%, risk free iatdrrate of 1.10%, an expected life of
years, a stock price of $2.80 (closing price oredztthe Warrant) and no expected forfeitures neiddnds. In connection with the Cre
Agreement, the Company incurred cash expenseslaf, $25 which were recorded as deferred financieg.félThese deferred financing fees
being amortized as interest expense over theflifeenloan. For the period since the Credit Agreetis inception through December 31, 2(
$43,215 in deferred financing fees were amortizednéerest expense. Also, the Company paid $380i27nterest expense on the Cr
facility during this same period.

Following is a schedule of future principle payngedtie on the Credit Agreement:

Credit
Agreement
For the year ending December 31:
2013 $ 1,349,74¢
2014 1,994,03:
2015 1,656,22¢
$ 5,000,00(

In October 2009, the Company financed $288,20@lElquipment through a capital lease. This leabgadion had thirty monthly payments
$11,654 through April 2012. During the first haff2012, the Company has made principal and intgragients totaling $58,270. The le
obligation was paid in full during the second qeadf 2012.

In November 2011, the Company financed $144,448mequipment through a capital lease. This leatigation has thirty monthly payme
of $5,651 through February 2014. During 2012, tleenfany made principal and interest payments tafa67,817. The outstanding le
obligation is $71,602 as of December 31, 2012.NBgte 15 to the financial statements.

8. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the Company’s statutory taxeréd the effective rate for the years ended Dece®be2012, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Federal statutory rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 5.9 4.6 5.4
Recapture of alternative minimum tax - - -
Valuation allowance (39.9) (38.6) (39.4)
Effective tax rate -% —% —%

The components of the Company’s deferred tax asset December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
December 31,

In thousand: 2012 2011

Net operating loss carry forwar $ 49,40¢ $ 40,104

Compensation expense related to employee stocrapti 2,817 2,285
Subtotal 52,22t 42,38¢

Valuation allowance (52,22E) (42,38¢)
Total deferred tax asset $ - $ .

The evaluation of the realizability of such defértax assets in future periods is made based upaniety of factors that affect the Company’
ability to generate future taxable income, suchent and ability to sell assets and historical projected operating performance. At this ti
the Company has established a valuation resenalfof its deferred tax assets. Such tax assetailable to be recognized and benefit ft
periods.
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During 2012 and 2011 the Company performed analiseetermine if there were changes in ownershspdefined by Section 382 of 1
Internal Revenue Code that would limit its abiliyutilize certain net operating loss and tax drediryforwards. The Company determined
it experienced an ownership change, as defineddsid®h 382, in connection with its registered diraed private placement offerings on .
25, 2011. As a result, the utilization of the Comga federal tax net operating loss carryforwaresegated prior to the ownership chang
limited. As of December 31, 2012, the Company hetsoperating loss carryforwards for U.S. federal atate tax purposes of approxima
$129 million, before excluding net operating lostest have been limited as a result of Section IBBRations. The annual limitation due
Section 382 for net operating loss carry forwaitization is approximately $4.9 million per year fapproximately $96 million in net operat
loss carryforwards existing at the date of the awii¢p change. The utilization of these net opegakirss carryforwards may be further limi
if the Company experiences future ownership chaagetefined in Section 382 of the Internal Revehode.

Approximate

Amount Of
Unused Expiration
Operating Loss During
Carry Forwards Year
($000s) Ended
$ 4,84: 2022
2,29: 202:
15,64: 202¢
8,16¢ 202t
7,361 202¢
11,90t 202¢
18,54’ 202¢
18,14¢ 203(
21,38¢ 2031
20,58" 203z
$ 128,88:

9. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In August 2012, the Company filed with the Secastand Exchange Commission a $75 million shelfstegjion statement on Form3Stha
allowed the Company to issue any combination of mom stock, preferred stock or warrants to purcham®mon stock or preferr
stock. This shelf registration was declared effecon September 14, 2012. The Company did naeissy stock under this shelf registra
statement during the remainder of 2012.

During 2012 and 2011, the Company received grosseeds of approximately $10.2 million and $0.4 iomil] respectively, from the exercise
warrants to purchase 3,804,868 and 156,866 shaoesranon stock, respectively.

In 2009, the Company filed with the Securities &xthange Commission a $50 million shelf registratitatement on Form $that allowe
the Company to issue any combination of commonkstoeferred stock or warrants to purchase commecksor preferred stock. This st
registration was declared effective on April 17020 As of July 25, 2011, this shelf registratsdtatement had been fully utilized.

January 2011 Preferred Stock Offering

In January 2011, the Company entered into a defngecurities purchase agreement with a seleatpgod institutional investors, includi
certain officers and directors of the Company,dlh 5,000 shares of 8% redeemable convertible pedestock with a stated value of $1,
and warrants to purchase up to 2,083,333 sharesmimon stock in a registered direct offering. Thavertible preferred stock and warr:
were sold in units (the "Units"), with each Unitnsisting of one share of convertible preferredlstmed a warrant to purchase up to 416.¢
shares of common stock at an exercise price of5$ge2 share of common stock. The Units were offened sold to unaffiliated third pa
investors at a negotiated purchase price of $1@#0Unit and to officers and directors at an atrfsket price of $1,197.92 per Unit
accordance with NASDAQ Stock Market Rules. Eachrshof preferred stock is convertible into sharéc@ammon stock at an initi
conversion price of $2.40 per share, subject tosddjent in the event of stock splits, recapitalizet or reorganizations that affect all holdel
common stock equally. Concurrent with the issuaamug sale of the Units, the Company issued warr@nés“Placement Agent Warrantsd
purchase up to 350 shares of Preferred Stock exartise price of $1,000 per whole share of Prefe8tock to certain affiliates of Domin
and Dominick LLC, as the placement agent.
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The Company received gross proceeds from the nffesf approximately $5.1 million, before deductipigcement agents' fees and offe
expenses. The preferred shares are convertiblelaiees of common stock by the holders thereafwatiene and have a mandatory redemg
date of January 14, 2013 at a stated redemptiomeved $1,000 per preferred share. The converfiibiderred shares are also subjec
mandatory conversion upon the occurrence of cedga@nts, including the sale of Common Stock in onenore offerings for not less tF
$4.00 per share and aggregate gross proceeds ahiflidh, the achievement of a twenty day tradingrage of our Common Stock ab
$6.00 per share, or the receipt of an aggregateaat $4,000,000 as actual, or advanced paymefitafe, license, milestone or roye
payments from a strategic, licensing or developrpantner.

Until the preferred shares were redeemed, the dsand outstanding shares accrued dividends ataofeé8% per annum. Dividends on
convertible preferred shares were payable on aepabasis from the original issue date commenangpril 15, 2011 and are payable ¢
in cash.

The Units were sold pursuant to the Company’s steglfstration statement on Form S-3 (Registratian 883158402), which was declar
effective by the SEC on April 17, 2009, as suppletae by prospectus supplements dated January 12,8@ January 13, 2011 filed with
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to B24¢b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as aménlieconnection with the offerin
placement agent fees and other offering expenselntp $675,918 were capitalized as deferred firanéees and were amortized as inte
costs over the period from inception until the Jagul4, 2013 mandatory redemption date. When théeped shares were converted,
unamortized portion related to such shares wagsdedoas a cost of capital. Deferred financing f&fe®77,853 were amortized during the t
months ended September 30, 2011. During the péndoa the date of the offering and through Septen®e 2011, all 5,000 preferred shs
were converted into 2,083,322 shares of the Conigpacgmmon stock. In connection with these convassiaeferred financing fees
$598,065 were reclassified as a cost of capital.

June 2, 2011 Private Placement Offering

On June 2, 2011, the Company completed the issumrtsale in a private placement transaction wigtitutional investors, as well as cer
officers and directors of the Company, of 3,218,6hdres of common stock (the “Common Stock”) andavas (the “Warrants™o purchas
up to 3,218,612 shares of common stock. The Com@&tock and Warrants were sold in units (the “Unjtglith each Unit consisting of o
share of Common Stock and a Warrant to purchaseslogie of common stock. Units sold to unaffiliabestitutional investors were sold ¢
negotiated purchase price of $2.65 per Unit andffioers and directors at $2.895 per Unit, theelatepresenting the consolidated closing
price per share of Common Stock plus a warrant prenof $0.125 per Unit. The Warrants are immedyaexercisable and have a tern
exercise of seventgight months from the date of issuance and an iseeptice of $2.77 per share. The Company recaivess proceeds frc
the offering of approximately $8.6 million beforedlicting estimated offering expenses.

Concurrent with the issuance and sale of the UBibsnmon Stock and Warrants pursuant to the Purohgeement, the Company also entt
into a Registration Rights Agreement with the Inves (the “Registration Rights Agreementtat required the Company to file a re:
registration statement with the Securities and Brge Commission covering the resale by the Investbthe Common Stock and the share
common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrahitese Units were filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)i3der the Securities Act of 1933
the Prospectus for Registration Statement No. 33880 and was declared effective on June 24, 2011.

July 6, 2011 Regqistered Direct Offering

On July 6, 2011, the Company completed the issuandesale in a registered offering of 2,095,560eshaf our common stock and warrant
purchase up to 628,668 shares of our common stoakstitutional investors. The securities weredsial units at a price of $3.1675 per u
with each unit consisting of one share of commoglstind a warrant to purchase 0.3 shares of constook, for an aggregate offering price
$6,637,688 (the “Offering”). Net proceeds from tftering were approximately $6 million.
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Each Warrant to purchase shares of Common Stotkaik an exercise price of $3.13 per share, fat fotential additional proceeds to the
Company of up to approximately $2 million upon exse of the Warrants. The Warrants are immediaeércisable for cash or, solely in the
absence of an effective registration statementetyexercise and will expire five years from théedaf issuance.

The offer and sale of the Common Stock and Warrgmtd the shares of Common Stock issuable uportiegenf the warrants) are registe
under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities”A as amended, on a registration statement em %3 (File No. 333-158402).

July 25, 2011 Reaqistered Direct and Private Plac¢®@&erings

On July 25, 2011, the Company completed a regidtefiering of 3,047,682 shares of its common staell warrants (the “RD Warrantsi)
purchase up to 914,305 shares of its common sidak.common stock and the warrants were sold irstig price of $4.2575 per unit, v
each unit consisting of one share of the Compacgtamon stock and a warrant to purchase 0.30 slo&tbe Companys common stock, fi
an aggregate registered offering price of $12,995(fhe “Registered Offering”).

The offer and sale of the Compasy'ommon stock issued in the Registered Offerirtjtha shares of common stock issuable upon exent
the warrants issued in the Registered Offering raggstered under the Securities Act of 1933, asnale@ (the “Securities Act”)pn ¢
registration statement on Form S-3 (File No. 338402), as supplemented and amended by the ptasprpplement filed with the Securi
and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2011.

On July 20, 2011, the Company entered into a Psechfsgreement (the “Private Placement Purchase Agreg and, together with tt
Registered Direct Purchase Agreement, the “Agreéstiennder which the Company agreed to enter inforimate placement with oth
accredited institutional investors, a member of @wnpanys Board of Directors, and an accredited institwtlonvestor affiliated anoth
member of the Company’s Board of Directors (collety, the “Private Offering Purchasers’Pursuant to the Private Placement Purc
Agreement, the Company issued 1,281,031 sharets @bimmon stock and warrants (the “Private Placérd¢arrants”)to purchase up
512,412 shares of its common stock. The Privateeft@nt Purchase Agreement provided that the siesuwill be sold in units at a price
$4.27 per unit, with each unit consisting of onarehof the Company’s common stock and a warraptitohase 0.40 shares of the Company
common stock, for an aggregate private offeringef $5,469,998 (the “Private Offeringgbllectively with the Registered Offering,
“Offerings”).

In the Offerings, each warrant to purchase shaféheoCompanys common stock will have an exercise price of $428 share, for tot
potential additional proceeds to the Company ofaugpproximately $6 million upon exercise of thermaats. The warrants in the Offerings
immediately exercisable for cash or, solely in #éifsence of an effective registration statementdiyexercise and will expire five years fr
the date of issuance.

Concurrent with the issuance and sale of the Rri@dfering common stock and warrants, the Compésty entered into a Registration Ric
Agreement with the Private Offering Purchasers {Registration Rights Agreementthat requires the Company to file a registrati@iesher
within 30 days of the closing date on July 25, 2@idth the Securities and Exchange Commission cagetfie resale by the Private Offer
Purchasers of the common stock issued in the Rridéfering and the shares of common stock issuaiibe exercise of the warrants issue
the Private Offering. These Units were filed parsuto Rule 424(b)(3) under the Securities Act 883 on the Prospectus for Registra
Statement No. 333-17648@nd was declared effective on September 22, 2011.

The purchase and issuance of securities in theri@dfe were completed on July 25, 2011. Net procéexns the Registered Offering and
Private Placement Offering aggregated approximaig®/ million.

December 6, 2011 Private Placement Offering

On December 6, 2011, the Company completed tharnssuand sale in a private placement transactitin ingtitutional investors, as well
certain directors of the Company, of 6,486,488 ehaf common stock and warrants to purchase upR#8244 shares of common stock.
common stock and warrants were sold in units, @ébh unit consisting of one share of common stockaahalf of a warrant to purchase
share of common stock. Units sold to unaffiliatestitutional investors were sold at a negotiatetipase price of $2.3125 per unit represel
the consolidated closing bid price per share ofroom stock plus a warrant premium of $0.125 per. ufilie Company received gross proct
from the offering of approximately $15.0 millionfbee deducting estimated offering expenses.
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In this offering, each warrant to purchase shafeth@ Companys common stock will have an exercise price of $2086 share, for tot
potential additional proceeds to the Company ofougpproximately $7.5 million upon exercise of warants. The warrants in the Offering
immediately exercisable for cash or, solely in éisence of an effective registration statementdiyexercise and will expire five years fr
the date of issuance.

Concurrent with the issuance and sale of the @ffedommon stock and warrants, the Company alsaezhteto a Registration Rigt
Agreement with the Purchasers (the “Registratioghi®i Agreement”that requires the Company to file a registratiosteshent with th
Securities and Exchange Commission covering thaledsy the Purchasers of the common stock issuabeirOffering and the shares
common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrastsed in the Offering. These units were filedspant to Rule 424(b)(3) under
Securities Act of 1933 on the Prospectus for Regfisih Statement No. 333- 178679 and was decldfedtiee on February 8, 2012.

Committed Equity Financing Facility (CEFF)

On June 17, 2010, we entered into a Committed Edtiftancing Facility (CEFF) with Small Cap Biotedfalue Ltd. (SCBV). The CEF
provides that, upon the terms and subject to timelitions set forth therein, SCBV is committed taghase up to $15.0 million worth of ¢
shares of common stock over the rdénth term of the CEFF under certain specified @mrs and limitations, provided that in no everdy
we sell under the CEFF more than 2,404,434 shdresmmon stock, which is equal to one share leas 80% of our outstanding share:
common stock on June 17, 2010, the closing dateeoCEFF, less the number of shares of common stecissued to SCBV on the clos
date as Commitment Shares (described below). &umtbre, in no event shall SCBV purchase any shafresir common stock which, wh
aggregated with all other shares of our commonkstioen beneficially owned by SCBV, would resulttire beneficial ownership by SCBV
more than 9.9% of the then outstanding shares otommon stock. These maximum share and benebtwiakrship limitations may not
waived by the parties.

In partial consideration for SCBV's execution argliwery of the CEFF, we issued to SCBV 40,000 shary& our common stock (t
“Commitment Shares”)The issuance of the Commitment Shares, togethérallibther shares of common stock issuable to S@BMuant t
the terms of the CEFF, is exempt from registratimler the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (Becurities Act”),pursuant to tt
exemption for transactions by an issuer not inva@wany public offering under Section 4(2) and Ragjoh D under the Securities Act.

During 2011, the Company completed the three diaavissales of 1,340,514 shares of the Compatgmon stock to SCBV under the ClI
resulting in approximately $3.4 million in gros®peeds.

In connection with the CEFF, the Company capitaliaed deferred approximately $332,000 of fees ampereses in 2010. A portion of thi
amounts were amortized each time the Company caeetbtedraw under the CEFF. During 2011, $274,806ase expenses was amortize
connection with the three draws in 2011.

The proceeds from the CEFF draws were used forrgenerporate purposes, including the funding & @ompanys clinical developme
pipeline of cancer drugs. SCBV is an accrediteeé&tor as such term is defined in Rule 501 of Reguld of the Securities Act of 1933,
amended (the “Securities Act”), and all sales & @ompanys common stock to SCBV pursuant to the CEFF weesngk from registratic
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act Btk 506 of Regulation D of the Securities Act. W@mpany has registered the resale @
shares of common stock issued to SCBV pursuattet€EFF under the Securities Act on a registragtatement on Form S-1.

Availability under the CEFF was exhausted duringgbcond quarter of 2011. Also, in connection wihity offerings in the second quarte
2011, the Company agreed to suspend the use @ERE& and expensed the unamortized deferred fingriegs of $274,806 in the 2011.

10. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Employee Stock Options

The Company has longrm compensation plans that permit the grantinip@éntive awards in the form of stock options. &atly, the term
of these plans require that the exercise priceé@bptions may not be less than the fair marketevaf Celsiors Common Stock on the date
options are granted. Options generally vest oveipua time frames or upon milestone accomplishme®sne vest immediately. Others
over a period between one and five years. The opti@nerally expire ten years from the date ofjthaat.
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2001 Stock Option Plan

In 2001, the Board of Directors adopted a stock fta directors, officers and employees (the “2B04n”) under which 666,667 shares w
reserved for future issuance. The purpose of thE Z8an was to promote lorigrm growth and profitability of Celsion by providj key
people with incentives to improve stockholder vadimel contribute to the growth and financial sucadsselsion, and to enable the compar
attract, retain and reward the best available peréar positions of substantial responsibility.

2004 Stock Incentive Plan

In 2004, the Board of Directors adopted a stock e directors, officers and employees (the “2@04n”) under which 666,667 shares w
reserved for future issuance. The plan providestfock instruments to be issued enabling the hdlteneof to acquire Common stock of
Company at prices determined by the Company’s Bo&idirectors. The purpose of the 2004 Plan wagrtonote the longerm growth an
financial success of the Company and enable thep@oynto attract, retain and reward the best availpbrsons for positions of substar
responsibility. The 2004 Plan permitted the graptiri awards in the form of incentive stock optiorsstricted stock, restricted stock ur
stock appreciation rights, phantom stock, and perémce awards, or in any combination of the foregoirhe 2004 Plan terminates in 2014
years from the date of the P’s adoption by the Company’s stockholders.

Any options forfeited or terminated under the 2@04&n and 2004 Plan are rolled into the 2007 Stockentive Plan for future issuance.
December 31, 2012, 616,667 and 515,871 of availgttiens from these two plans respectively arelalila for future issuance under the 2
Stock Incentive Plan.

2007 Stock Incentive Plan

On June 13, 2007, the Company adopted the Celsiopo€ation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2007nPlainder which 1,000,000 sha
was available for issuance. The purpose of the Zl@i is to promote the lortgrm growth and profitability of the Company by piding
incentives to improve stockholder value and enabée Company to attract, retain and reward the beatlable persons for positions
substantial responsibility. The 2007 Plan perntits granting of awards in the form of incentive &taptions, nonqualified stock optio
restricted stock, restricted stock units, stockrapiation rights, phantom stock, and performancerds; or in any combination of i
foregoing. At the Annual Meetings of StockholdefsCelsion held on June 25, 2010 and June 7, 2b&2Xtockholders approved amendm
to the Plan. The only material difference betwtenexisting Plan and the amended Plan was the euaflshares of common stock availz
for issuance under the amended Plan which wasaseteby 1,000,000 to a total of 2,000,000 shar&0i® and by 2,250,000 to a tota
4,250,000 shares in 2012.

The Company has issued stock options and warrasployees, directors, vendors and debt holdgg8os and warrants are generally
granted at market value on the date of the grant.

Incentive stock options may be granted to purctemees of Common Stock at a price not less tha®616Dthe fair market value of t
underlying shares on the date of grant, providedlttie exercise price of any incentive option gzdrib an eligible employee owning more 1
10% of the outstanding stock must be at least 180%e such fair market value on the date of gr@mly officers and key employees n
receive incentive stock options; all other quatifigarticipants may receive non-qualified stock ami

Option awards vest upon terms determined by thedBoBDirectors. Restricted stock awards, perforogastock awards and stock options
subject to accelerated vesting in the event ofamgh of control. The Company issues new shareatitfysits obligations from the exercise
options.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2@BL484 and 246,667 equity awards, respectivelyewssued under the 2007 Plan. Du

2012 and 2011, a total of 297,091 and 256,002 nptiweere canceled or expired under the plans colédgt During 2012, options to purchi
214,091 shares of the Company’s common stock wereised and the Company received approximately Sllion in net proceeds.
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As of December 31, 2012, for all stock options pl#mere were a total of 3,284,214 shares resemveédhere were a total of 2,153,974 sh
available for future issuance.

Total compensation cost charged related to empletaik options and novested restricted stock awards amounted to 1.1omjl$1.2 millior
and $1.7 million for the years ended December 81222011 and 2010, respectively. No compensatist related to shateased paymer
arrangements was capitalized as part of the camtyhsset at these same periods.

As of December 31, 2012, there was $1.4 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related tewested share-based compensation
arrangements. That cost is expected to be recatjoizer a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.\iigighted average gradite fair values «
the equity awards granted during the years endeerer 31, 2012 and 2011 were $1.57 and $1.8lectsgely.

Equity Awards Issued to Consultants for Services

The Company periodically issues equity awards tesatiants in exchange for services provided. Tivevidue of options granted is meast
in accordance with ASC 718ompensation — Stock Compensatigsing the Blackscholes option pricing model and recorded as apresil
the period in which such services are received.e@dly, the terms of these plans require that fterase price of such awards may not be
than the fair market value of the Compa€ommon Stock on the date the equity awards amgtep. Consultant equity awards generally
over various time frames or upon milestone accashplients. Some vest immediately upon issuance. qilieyeawards generally expire witt
10 years from the date of grant. There were 21,3400 and 22,500 awards issued to consultanisgltive years ended December 31, 2
2011 and 2010, respectively.

A summary of stock option awards as of DecembefB812 and changes during the three years endedrbece1, 2012, is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Number Exercise Term Intrinsic

Stock Options Outstanding Price (in years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 1,641,970 $ 3.9¢

Granted 656,50( 3.04

Exercised - -

Canceled or expired (130,83) 3.0

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 2,167,64! 3.9¢

Granted 1,195,66 3.67

Exercised - -

Canceled or expired (250,169 3.2¢

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 3,113,14. 3.7¢

Granted 655,25: 2.2¢4

Exercised (214,09) 3.2¢

Canceled or expired (289,424 6.54

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 3,264,881 $ 3.25 6.7 $ 16,168,79
Exercisable at December 31, 2012 1,910,02 ¢ 3.7¢ 54 $ 8,487,06.
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A summary of stock options outstanding at Decen3tie2012 by price range is as follows:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Remaining Weighted Remaining  Weighted
Contractual Average Contractual Average
Term Exercise Term Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Number (in years) Price Number (in years) Price
$ 1.0C- $3.0C 2,279,91¢ 73 $ 2.47 1,108,56: 59 $ 2.59
$ 3.01- $5.0C 547,70« 6.3 3.85 364,20¢ 5.3 3.93
$ 5.01- $7.0C 388,631 4.4 5.77 388,631 4.4 5.77
$ 7.01-$10.0C 22,167 2.0 8.06 22,161 2.0 8.06
$ Above $10.0( 26,46( 1.2 17.04 26,46( 1.2 17.04
3,264,88( 1,910,02!

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veststticted stock awards as of December 31, 20@Zhanges during the two years endec
December 31, 2012, is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
Restricted Stock Outstanding Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 78,59¢ $ 3.06
Granted 113,24 3.16
Vested and issued (92,27¢) 2.84
Forfeited (22,16¢€) 3.06
Non-vested stock awards outstanding at December 30, 20 77,40C $ 3.47
Granted 51,00C 2.73
Vested and issued (67,200 3.12
Forfeited (6,339%) 3.96
Non-vested stock awards outstanding at December 31, 20 54,867 $ 3.16
Granted 13,24: 3.66
Vested and issued (41,109 3.37
Forfeited (7,667) 2.79
Non-vested stock awards outstanding at December 32, 20 19,33¢ ¢ 3.20

The fair values of stock options granted were estidth at the date of grant using the Black-Schopg®io pricing model. The Blackchole
model was originally developed for use in estimgtthe fair value of traded options, which have afight characteristics from Celsien’
nonqualified stock options. The model is also femsito changes in assumptions, which can matgreflect the fair value estimate. 1
Company used the following assumptions for deteimgitthe fair value of options granted under thecRi&choles option pricing model:

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011

2010

Risk-free interest rate

1.0¢t0 2.97%

2.2¢0 2.97% 0.8(t03.24%

Expected volatility 80.8%- 82.3% 72.2%- 81.0% 71.5%- 85.8%
Expected life (in years) 5.0tto 6.25 6.2F 2.¢- 6.5
Expected forfeiture rate 0.0Cto 7.50% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Expected volatilities utilized in the model are éd®n historical volatility of the Company’s stqekice. The risk free interest rate is derived
from values assigned to U.S. Treasury strips atighda in the Wall Street Journal in effect at tinee of grant. The model incorporates
exercise, pre-vesting and post-vesting forfeitsuaptions based on analysis of historical data.eXpected life of the fiscal 2012 and 2011
grants was generated using the simplified methalawed under Securities and Exchange Commisstaffi Sccounting Bulletin No. 107.
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11. WARRANTS

As more fully described in Note 9, the Company clatgel a series of equity financing transaction®i1 that included the issuance
warrants to purchase 10,774,791 shares of the Quytgpaommon stock. In June 2012 in connection withGhedit Agreement the Compe
entered into in June 2012 with Horizon and Oxfasdreore fully described in Note 6, the Company idswarrants to purchase 51,370 shart
the Companys common stock. During 2012 and 2011, the Compaogived gross proceeds of approximately $10.2aniléind $0.4 millior
respectively, from the exercise of warrants to pase 3,804,868 and 156,866 shares of common s&spectively. During the 1st quarte!
2013 and as of the date of this Form 10K filings tbompany received additional proceeds of appraeiyn&0.3 million from the exercise
warrants to purchase 81,100 shares of the Compaogisnon stock.

Following is a summary of all warrant activity fibre three years ended December 31, 2012:

Weighted
Number of Average
Warrants Exercise
Warrants Issued Price
Warrants outstanding at January 1, 2010 1,009,071 $ 5.2¢
Warrants exercised for common stock warrants ird201 - -
Warrants issued in 2010 - -
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2010 1,009,077 $ 5.2¢
Warrants issued in connection with 2011 equitydeations 10,774,79 2.9t
Warrants exercised for common stock warrants inl201 (156,866 2.7¢
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2011 11,627,00 $ 3.1E
Warrants issued in connection with the Credit Agrert as more fully described in
Note 7 51,37C $ 2.92
Warrants exercised for common stock in 2012 (3,804,86) 2.6¢
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2012 7,873,50: ¢ 3.37
Aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding warrant®ecember 31, 2012 $ 37,947,65
Weighted average remaining contractual terms (Years 3.94

Common Stock Warrant Liability

In September 2009, the Company closed a registiiredt offering with a select group of institutidriavestors that raised gross proceec
$7.1 million and net proceeds of $6.3 million. lanoection with this registered direct offering, Bempany issued 2,018,153 shares ¢
common stock and warrants to purchase 1,009,07@sld common stock. The warrants have an exeprise of $5.24 per share and
exercisable at any time on or after the six momthiveersary of the date of issuance and on or gdd®6 months after the date of issua
Under the terms of the warrants, upon certain #&etians, including a merger, tender offer or sdlalbor substantially all of the assets of
Company, each warrant holder may elect to receie@sh payment in exchange for the warrant, in anusmtndetermined by application of
Black-Scholes option valuation model. Accordingiyrsuant to ASC 815.4Merivative Instruments and Hedging - Contracts mtify’'s Owr
Equity, the warrants are recorded as a liability and thanked to market each period through the Statewie@perations in other income
expense. At the end of each subsequent quarte€dhgany will revalue the fair value of the warsaand the change in fair value will
recorded as a change to the warrant liability dweddifference will be recorded through the Statamé@perations in other income or expense
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company dedoa common stock warrant liability of $4.3 mitliand $0.2 million respectively. The
fair value of the warrants at December 31, 2012,124nd 2010 was calculated using the Black-Schapésen{pricing model with the followin
assumptions:

December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Risk-free interest rate 0.7:% 0.82% 2.02%
Expected volatility 92.02% 75.1% 63.5%
Expected life (in years) 1.1z 1.€ 2.1
Expected forfeiture rate 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected dividend yield 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%

As a result of this change in the warrant liabjlitye Company recorded a non-cash loss of $4.1omilh 2012, a noash benefit of $0
million and $0.6 million in 2011 and 2010 respeelx The following is a summary of the changeshia tommon stock warrant liability 1
2012, 2011 and 2010:

Beginning balance, January 1, 2010 $ 821,89
Benefit from the adjustment for the change in Yaiue included in net loss for 2010 (573,76()
Balance at December 31, 2010 248,131
Benefit from the adjustment for the change in failue included in net loss for 2011 (81,733
Balance at December 31, 2011 166,39¢
Loss from the adjustment for the change in faiugahcluded in net loss 4,117,53
Ending balance, December 31, 2012 $ 4,283,93.

12. CELSION EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Celsion maintains a definembntribution plan under Section 401(k) of the IntdrRevenue Code. The plan covers substantiallgraployee
over the age of 21. Participating employees magrdefportion of their pretax earnings, up to th8 Ehnual contribution limit. Commencincg
the fourth quarter for 2008, the Company began ntakimatching contribution up to a maximum of 3%aofemployees annual salary and |
Companys total contribution for the years ended December2®12, 2011 and 2010 was $61,767, $60,630 and480espectively. TI
Company’s contribution was made in the form of common stock.

13. LICENSES OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND PATENTS

On November 10, 1999, the Company entered intacemdie agreement with Duke University under whieh @ompany received worldwi
exclusive rights (subject to certain exceptiongyadmmercialize and use Dulkgthermally sensitive liposome technology. Therngzagreeme
contains annual royalty and minimum payment provisidue on net sales. The agreement also requiiledtonebased royalty paymer
measured by various events, including product agrekent stages, FDA applications and approvals,igorenarketing approvals a
achievement of significant sales. However, in ledfusuch milestone-based cash payments, Duke agoeadcept shares of the Company’
Common Stock to be issued in installments at time ach milestone payment is due, with each install of shares to be calculated at
average closing price of the Common Stock durirg2 trading days prior to issuance.

The total number of shares issuable to Duke urdset provisions is subject to adjustment in cexdases, and Duke has piggyback registr.
rights for public offerings taking place more thame year after the effective date of the licenseement. On January 31, 2003, the Com
issued 253,691 shares of Common Stock to Duke kityevalued at $2.2 million as payment for milestdased royalties under this lice
agreement. An amendment to the Duke license agrgecmmtains certain development and regulatory stolees, and other performa
requirements that the Company has met with redpettte use of the licensed technologies. The Compalh be obligated to make roya
payments based on sales to Duke upon commerciahzaintil the last of the Duke patents expire.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201Caimpany has not incurred any expense under théeagent and will not incur any future
liabilities until commercial sales commence.

Under the November 1999 license agreement with Dthiee Company has rights to the thermally sensiifyesome technology, includii
Duke’s US patents covering the technology as well asfom#tign counter parts and related pending apptinat Foreign counterpi
applications have been issued in Europe, Hong KAngtralia and Canada and have been allowed imJdje Japanese allowed applicatic



expected to issue without hindrance in March of1200he European patent has been validated in Audelgium, France, Germany, Gi
Britain, Italy, Luxembourg, Monaco, Spain and Sweitand. In addition, the Duke license agreemenviges the Company with rights
multiple issued and pending US patents relatededdrmulation, method of making and use of heasis@e liposomes. The Compasyfight:
under the license agreement with Duke Universitged for the life of the last-to-expire of the lised patents.

The Company has licensed from Valentis, CA cemgitval rights covering the use of pegylation fonperature sensitive liposomes.
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In addition to the rights available to the Compamder completed or pending license agreementsCtrepany is actively pursing pat
protection for technologies developed by the Compaimong these patents is a family of pending W8 eternational patent applicatic
which seek to protect the Company’s proprietarytmétof storing ThermoDox® which is critical for womwide distribution channels.

ThermoDox®is a registered trademark in the United Statesehtiga, Australia, Canada, China, Columbia, theopean Communitie
(Austria, Belgium, Bulgaria, Cyprus, Czech Repubbenmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, @&eEangary, Ireland, Italy, Kore
Latvia, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Malta, Netherlan®aland, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia, igpaweden, UK), Hong Kong, Isre
Japan, New Zealand, Peru, Philippines, Russia, apmg, South Korea and Taiwan. The Company hasteegd transliterations
ThermoDox®in China, Hong Kong, Japan, Singapore, South Kame Taiwan. The Company has an additional 14 trademrotectio
applications pending for ThermoDox® in countriesldewide.

Finally, through proprietary information agreemewith employees, consultants and others, the Cognpagks to protect its own propriet
know-how and trade secrets. The Company cannot offerasses that these confidentiality agreementsnaiilbe breached, that the Comp
will have adequate remedies for any breach, orttiede agreements, even if fully enforced, willdolequate to prevent thigghrty use of th
Companys proprietary technology. Similarly, the Companymat guarantee that technology rights licensedt tbyi others will not b
successfully challenged or circumvented by thirdigs, or that the rights granted will provide thempany with adequate protection.

14. TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT AND LICENSING AGREEMENTS

In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company entéméala Development, Product Supply and Commer@tbn Agreement with Yakult Hons
under which Yakult was granted the exclusive rightommercialize and market ThermoDof® the Japanese market. We were paid a
million up-front licensing fee and we have the potential teiee additional payments from Yakult upon receptnarketing approval by tl
Japanese Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare e as upon the achievement of certain levels &ssand approval for new indications.
will receive double digit escalating royalties & tsale ThermoDox®& Japan, when and if any such sales occur. Wewglsbe the exclusiv
supplier of ThermoDox® to Yakult.

Concurrent with the January 2011 Preferred Equitamicing as discussed in Note 9 to the Financiate®tents, the Company amende:
Development, Product Supply and Commercializatigne&ment with Yakult to provide for up to $4.0 oill in an accelerated partial paymrr
to the Company of a future drug approval milestanaich included $2.0 million paid to the Companyonghe closing of the preferred eq
financing and an additional $2.0 million conditiohepon the resumption of enrollment of Japanesematin the Japan cohort of the HE
study. In consideration of these accelerated toites payments from Yakult, the Company agreed doige future drug approval milestc
payments by approximately forty percent (40%).

In May 2012, the Company announced the signing lohg term commercial supply agreement with Zhgjidtisun Pharmaceutical Co. L
(Hisun) for the production of ThermoDox® the China territory. In accordance with tharierof the agreement, Hisun will be responsibli
providing all of the technical and regulatory supipgervices, including the costs of all technigalnsfer, registrational and bioequivale
studies, technical transfer costs, Celsion corsudtasupport costs and the purchase of any negesspipment and additional facility co
necessary to support capacity requirements fontaeufacture of ThermoDox®Celsion will repay Hisun for the aggregate amounthest
development costs and fees commencing on the sfatesmpletion of three registrational batcheSbérmoDox®. Hisun is also obligate
to certain performance requirements under the aggae The agreement will initially be limited tgarcentage of the production requirem
of ThermoDox®in the China territory with Hisun retaining an aptifor additional global supply after local regolgt approval in the Chit
territory. In addition, Hisun will collaborate witCelsion around the regulatory approval activif@sThermoDox®with the China State Fo
and Drug Administration (SFDA). As of December 2012, the Company has incurred approximately $8#bjn costs to be reimbursec
Hisun.
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On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whidbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5.0 million to support development of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other teethsicppor
in relation to a regulatory filing by Hisun witheiSFDA for approval of ThermoDox®r manufacturing and sale in the China territddyn
January 18, 2013, we also entered into an exclugii®n agreement with Hisun, terminable at anyetipy Hisun, under which we gran
Hisun an option to enter into an exclusive liceageeement with us for the manufacturing and comialkzation of ThermoDox®with respec
to all indications in the China territory under tieems and conditions set forth in the exclusivBaspagreement and other customary terms
conditions to be set forth in the license agreemieany. Hisun agreed to pay us an additional $6illon within sixty days after the signing
the exclusive option agreement if it has not beeminated within such time period. The exclusivé@pagreement contemplated paymen
an upfront license fee, milestone payments andtiegdo Celsion if the exclusive license agreenvesrte entered into.

Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 TharmoDox®in combination with radiofrequency ablation did moeet the primai
endpoint of the Phase Il clinical trial for prinydiver cancer, Hisun has elected to terminateetkedusive option agreement and not to pu
the option to enter into an exclusive license agesg with us for the China territory, which termtoa took effect as of February 1, 2013. /
result of the termination, we will not receive theditional $5 million payment or any future paymeriginally contemplated by the exclus
option agreement. The technology development contval remain in effect while we and Hisun contato collaborate and are evaluating |
steps in relation to ThermoDox®, which include thb-group analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienthénHEAT study and other activit
to further the development of ThermoDox® for thar@hterritory.

15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

In July 2011, the Company executed a lease (thas&®with Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P. (Bramthe), a Delaware limite
partnership for a 10,870 square foot premises éacat Lawrenceville, New Jersey. In October 20the, Company relocated its offices
Lawrenceville, New Jersey from Columbia, Marylarihe lease has a term of 66 months and provides foonths rent free, with the fi
monthly rent payment of approximately $23,000 duépril 2012. Also, as required by the Lease,@menpany provided Brandywine with
irrevocable and unconditional standby letter ofldréor $250,000, which the Company secured witleacrow deposit at its banking institut
of this same amount. The standby letter of creditbe reduced by $50,000 on each of the 19 th st3and 43 ranonths from the initial terr
with the remaining $100,000 amount remaining uhel Lease Term has expired.

Following is a summary of the future minimum paynserequired under leases that have initial or remgilease terms of one year or more as
of December 31, 2012:

Capital Operating
For the year ending December 31: Leases Leases
2013 $ 67,8171 $ 280,80¢
2014 11,30z 286,24:
2015 — 291,67¢
2016 — 297,11z
2017 and beyond — 99,64:
Total minimum lease payments 79,12C $ 1,255,48!
Less amounts of lease payments that represen¢ster 7,51¢€
Present value of future minimum capital lease payse 71,60z
Less current obligations under capital leases 60,711
$ 10,891
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16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During the first quarter of 2013 thus far, we reeéli approximately $0.4 million of gross proceedsrirthe exercise of warrants and optior
purchase approximately 120,516 shares of the Cop'gpaammon stock.

On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whidbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5 million to support ouredepment of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other teethsigpport i
relation to a regulatory filing by Hisun for appedwof ThermoDox®for manufacturing and sale in mainland China, H&wmgng and Macal
Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 thatHEAT study failed to meet its primary endppimte and Hisun continue
collaborate and evaluate next steps in relatiomhitermoDox®, which include the sugroup analysis of the Chinese cohort of patientthe
Phase Il clinical trial for primary liver cancené other activities to further the development befimoDox®for mainland China, Hong Kol
and Macau.

On February 1, 2013, the Company entered into atrGited Equity OfferingSM Sales Agreement (the “ATM Agreementilith Canto
Fitzgerald & Co., as sales agent (“Cantogirsuant to which Celsion may offer and sell, frime to time, through Cantor, shares of
common stock having an aggregate offering pricapfo $25.0 million (the “ATM Shares”)The ATM Shares will be issued pursuant to
Company’s previously filed and effective RegiswatiStatement on Form Bthe base prospectus dated September 14, 204@,ad part «
such Registration Statement, and the prospectysiesupnt dated February 1, 2013, filed by the Compaith the Securities and Exchal
Commission. Under the Agreement, Cantor may seMAShares by any method deemed to be an “at-theetiaokfering as defined in Ru
415 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933amended, including sales made directly on The DG Capital Market, on any ott
existing trading market for the our common stock@mor through a market maker. From February 1,32through February 25, 2013,
Company has sold and issued 5,381,670 ATM shamsrihe ATM Agreement, receiving approximately $&uion in net proceeds.

Celsion intends to use the net proceeds from tfezinf) for general corporate purposes, includirgpagch and development activities, ca
expenditures and working capital. The Companyoisabligated to sell any ATM Shares under the ATrdement. Subject to the terms
conditions of the ATM Agreement, Cantor will usentoercially reasonable efforts, consistent withnissmal trading and sales practices
applicable state and federal law, rules and reguigstand the rules of The NASDAQ Capital Marketstdl ATM Shares from time to tir
based upon the Compasyinstructions, including any price, time or simmils or other customary parameters or conditioe$sion ma
impose. In addition, pursuant to the terms and itomg of the ATM Agreement and subject to the rimstions of Celsion, Cantor may ¢
ATM Shares by any other method permitted by lawiuding in privately negotiated transactions.

The ATM Agreement will terminate upon the earliér(ip the sale of Shares under the ATM Agreementiitaan aggregate offering price
$25.0 million and (i) the termination of the ATMgheement by Cantor or the Company. The ATM Agreemay be terminated by Cantol
Celsion at any time upon 10 days' notice to thempgarty, or by Cantor at any time in certain anstances, including the occurrence

material adverse change in Celsion. The Compaflypay Cantor a commission of 3.0% of the aggregmtess proceeds from each sal
ATM Shares and has agreed to provide Cantor wisftotnary indemnification and contribution rights.eT@ompany also agreed to reimbi
Cantor for legal fees and disbursements, not t@ek$50,000 in the aggregate, in connection witergrg into the ATM Agreement.

connection with the preferred stock offering disad below, the Company agreed to not sell any ATdr&s for a period of one year fr
February 26, 2013.

On February 22, 2013, the Company entered intocaries Purchase Agreement with certain instingioinvestors, pursuant to which
Company agreed to sell, in a registered offerimgaggregate of 15,000.00422 shares of its Seri@8oAconvertible preferred stock and
warrants to purchase shares of its common stoclgrf@ggregate purchase price of approximatelydbifilion (the Preferred Stock Offerin
The closing of the Preferred Stock Offering occdrom February 26, 2013, in which the Company rembiapproximately $15.0 million
gross proceeds. Subject to certain ownership ltroita, shares of Series A 0% convertible prefestedk are convertible, at the option of
holder thereof, into an aggregate of up to 12,082 ghares of common stock, and the warrants areisable to purchase an aggregate of |
6,036,219 shares of common stock. Each warranahasxercise price of $1.18 per share, equal talising bid price of common stock
February 21, 2013. The warrants are immediatelycis@ble and expire five years after its issuadseof March 15, 2013, the Company
issued an aggregate of 8,018,112 shares of comitook spon conversion of 9,963 shares of the S&i@% convertible preferred stock.
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17. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Quarters Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2012

Total revenue $ - $ - $ - $ -

Net loss (6,18¢) (6,109 (6,018 (8,260

Basic and diluted net loss per share (0.19 (0.1¢) (0.1¢) (0.29)
2011

Total revenue $ 2,00 $ - $ - 3 =

Net loss (3,769 (6,944 (6,399 (6,127

Basic and diluted net loss per share (0.2¢) (0.42) (0.25) (0.22)
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Celsion Corporation
Lawrenceville, New Jersey

We consent to the incorporation by reference ofreport dated March 18, 2013, with respect to im@ricial statements of Celsion Corporat
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for ffear ended December 31, 2012.

[s/ Stegman & Company
Baltimore, Maryland
March 18, 2013




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 RULES 13a-14(a) AND15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael H. Tardugno, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkCelsion Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement oheaterial fact or omit to state a material fact rssesy tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, né¢adisg with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange Act R
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

€) Designed such disclosure controls prtedures, or caused such disclosure controlspamcedures to be desigr
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itsnsolidated subsidiaries, is mi
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control ovieaicial reporting, or caused such internal contnr financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financigborting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgisteants disclosure controls and procedures and presenteaHis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changehe registrang internal control over financial reporting thatcored during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosedsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thewedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and mid weaknesses in the design or operation of imatlecontrol over financial reportil
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tagistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refiagincial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidlat involves management or other employees who hasignificant role in tr
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 18, 2013 /sl Michael H. Tardugno
Michael H. Tardugno
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 RULES 13a-14(a) AND15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory Weaver, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkCelsion Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraainuntrue statement of a material fact or omatede a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, né¢adisg with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifile establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€)) and internal controls over financial repagt{as defined in Exchange Act RL
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

€)) Designed such disclosure contaold procedures, or caused such disclosure comtnolprocedures to be designed u
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is made know
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal controkio¥inancial reporting, or caused such internalte@nover financial reporting to |
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financigborting and the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of tlegistrant disclosure controls and procedures and presentetiis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report basec
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any oparin the registrand’ internal control over financial reporting thatcored during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrmg that has materially affect
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosedsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thewedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies anthterial weaknesses in the design or operationtefrial control over financial reporti
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tagistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refiaaincial informatior
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not matkritnat involves management or other employees téee a significant role in t

registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

March 18, 2013 /sl Greg Weave

Gregory Weaver
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 UNITED STATES CODE § 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
§ 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celsion mmation (the “Company”) on Form 10{or the period ended December 31, 2012, as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onbmutMarch 18, 2013 (the “Report”), Michael H. Tardugno, President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamtlO U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to S09@ite Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha
to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.
March 18, 2013 /sl Michael H. Tardugn

Michael H. Tardugno
President and Chief Executive Officer

This certification accompanies each Report purstm8806 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the ekrequired b
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filethbyCompany for purposes of §18 of the SecuritiehBnge Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement reqdirey 8906 has been provided to the Company andbegiltetained by the Company
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissidts staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 UNITED STATES CODE §1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
8906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celsion mmation (the “Company”) on Form 10{or the period ended December 31, 2012, as
with the Securities and Exchange Commission orbougMarch 18, 2013 (the “Report’), Gregory Weaver, Senior Vice President and ¢
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémtlO U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to S08@6e Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha
to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of
Company.
March 18, 2013 /sl Greg Weave

Gregory Weaver
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

This certification accompanies each Report purstm8806 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the ekrequired b
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filethbyCompany for purposes of §18 of the SecuritiehBnge Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement reqdirey 8906 has been provided to the Company andbegiltetained by the Company
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissidts staff upon request.




